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Key information and financial review

Key information

Credit Suisse financial highlights
Year ended December 31, in CHF m, excepl where indicated

2004

Consolidated income statement
Net revenues

Income from contmuung operations before extracrdinary
ftems and cumulative-effect of accounting changes
Net income

26,770

4,154 2827
4138 2,773

December 31, in CHF m, except whete indicated

Consolidated balance sheet
Total assets
ghareho{ders’ equity

Consolidated BIS capital data
Risk-weighted assets
'-I-‘;ér 1 ratic

Total capital ratio

Number of employees
Swilzedaq_d

Outside Swizerland

Number of employees (full-time equivatents)

Financial review

Credit Suisse (the Bank) recorded net income of CHF 3,575 milion for the year ended
December 31, 2005, compared to CHF 4,138 milion for the year ended December
31, 2004.

Net revenues increased 13%, from CHF 25,770 milion to CHF 29,131 million,
primarily as result of increased trading revenues and higher commissions and fees. In
addition, 2005 revenues refiect minority interest-related revenues of CHF 2,074 million
relating to the consalidation of certain private equity funds under Financial Accounting
Standards Board Interpretation No. 46 Revised (FIN 46R). This consolidation did not
affect net income 4s the increases to net revenues and expenses were offset by an
equivalent increase in minority interests.

Net interest income decreased 10% to CHF 6,539 milion compared to 2004, while
trading revenue increased 63% to CHF 5,696 million. Commissions and fees increased
7% to CHF 13,273 miflion. Other revenues increased from CHF 2,638 million to CHF
3,626 million primarily due to the consolidation of certain private equity funds.

A net release of provisions for credit losses of CHF 134 milion was reported in 2005
compared to CHF 70 mifion of credit loss provisions in 2004, largely reflecting a
favorable credit environment for lenders in 2005.

The Bank reported total operating expenses of CHF 22,979 miliion in 2006 compared
to CHF 19,327 million in 2004, an increase of CHF 3,662 million, or 13%. This
included a charge of CHF 960 million before tax to increase the reserve for certain
private litigation matters. Excluding the impact of the litigation charge, total operating
expenses increased by CHF 2,692 million, or 14%, reflecting an increase in banking
compensation primarily due to higher performance-refated compensation and benefits in
line with the improved results and increased commissions and professional fees.

Cradh Sulsse Anmial Repaort 2003 1
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Banking compensation and benefits was impacted by a change in the Bank’s
accounting for share-based compensation awards subject to a non-competition
provision that have scheduled vesting beyond an employee’s eligibility for early
retirement. The impact of this change in accounting was to increase banking
compensation and benefits by CHF 650 milion. This non-cash charge, booked in the
fourth quarter of 2005, represents the recognition of compensation expense for share-
based awards granted in 2000, principally to employees in the Institutional Securities
and Wealth & Asset Management segments, that otherwise would have been recorded
generally over vesting periods of three to five years. See note 2 of the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements for more information.

Income tax expense was CHF 659 miillion in 2005 compared to CHF 1,106 millions in
2004, a decrease of CHF 447 milion, or 40%. The effective tax rate, reflecting
nontaxable income arising from investments of CHF 2,042 milion that are required to
be consolidated under FIN 46R, was 16% in 2005. This also reflected the impact of
the increase in the reserve for certain private litigation matters, the release of tax
contingency accruals due to the favorable settlerment of certain tax audits and a
decrease in the full-year effective tax rate as a result of changes in the geearaphic mix
of taxable income. Income tax expense in 2005 was also impacted by the above-
mentioned change in the Bank's accounting for share-based compensation awards
subject to a non-cornpetition provision that have scheduled vesting beyond an
employee's eligibility for early retirement. This resulted in a decrease in income tax
expense of CHF 210 million.

Minority interests increased frorn CHF 1,113 million in 2004 to CHF 2,064 milion in
2005, primarily as a result of the consdlidation of certain private equity funds under FIN
46R,

Cumutative effect of accounting changes of CHF 12 million after tax in 2005 reflect the
Bank's application of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised
2004) *Accounting for Stock-based Compensation” (SFAS 123R), to reverse the
expense previously recognized on outstanding unvested awards that are not expected
to vest. The charge of CHF 16 million after tax in 2004 related to the adoption of FIN
48R,

Total assets increased by CHF 232.2 billion, or 26%, to CHF 1,130.8 bilion at
Decerber 31, 2005 compared to CHF 898.6 billion at December 31, 2004. Central
bank funds sold, securities purchased under resale agreements and securities
borrowing transactions increased by CHF 85.5 billion due mainly to increased prime
senvices business and increased volumes in Europe and Japan. The increase of CHF
70.0 billion in Central bank funds purchased, securities sold under repurchase
agreements and securntfies lending was consistent with the increase on the asset side.
In addition, Trading assets and Trading fiabilifies increased CHF 82.0 bilion and CHF
44.3 billion, respectively, reflecting market opportunities and an increase in the prime
brokerage business. Deposit liabilities increased CHF 60.0 bilion due partly to the
strengthening of the US dollar against the Swiss franc and partly to increased market
activity, resulting in an increase in time deposits and certificates of deposits. Additionally,
Long-term debt increased CHF 31.1 billion to CHF 125.9 billion in 2005.




Organization and description of business

Overview

Credit Suisse is a Swiss bank and a leading gioba! bank with total assets of CHF
1,131 billion and shareholder’s equity of CHF 256.8 billion, in each case at December
31, 2005. Effective January 1, 2006, Credit Suisse's operations have been structured
as three business divisions: Investment Banking, Private Banking and Asset
Management. See below “Organizational Changes in 2006, The following discussion
briefly presents the operational and management structure in place in 2005, and in
more detail the new integrated business structure from 2006.

Business structure through 2005

In 2005 the Bank's activities were operated and managed in four reporting segments:
Private Banking, Corporate & Retail Banking, Institutional Securities, and Wealth &
Asset Management. The information in this annual report refiects this operational and
management structure.

Brivale Banking

Private Banking provides wealth management products and services to high-net-worth
individuals in Switzerland and around the world. The private banking business is one of
the largest private banking operations worldwide, with a leading client sesvice model and
recognized innovation capabiliies. it includes the four independent private banks Bank
Leuy, Clariden Bank and Bank Hofmann, all headquartered in Zurich, and BGP Banca
di Gestione Patrimoniale, headquartered in Lugano, alt of which are managed by but
nat legally owned by the Bank.

Comorate & Retall Banking

Corporate & Retail Banking offers banking products and services to corporate and retail
clients in Switzerand. The comorate and retail banking business is the second-largest
bark in Switzeriand, with a nationwide branch network and leading multi-channel
distribution capabilities.

Ingtitutional Securilies
Institutional Securities provides securities and investment banking services to
institutional, corporate and government clients worldwide.

Waalth & Asset Management

Wealtn & Asset Management offers international asset management services —
including a broad range of investment funds — to institutional and private investors. It
also provides financial advisory senvices to wealthy individuals and corporate clients.

Cregit Suisse Annual Report 2005 3
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Organizational changes in 2006

The Bank faunched a key strategic initiafive in December 2004 to form a fully
integrated bank, with three lines of business: Investment Banking, Private Banking and
Asset Management. These changes reflect the increasingly complex needs and global
orientation of the Bank's clients, who require sophisticated, integrated solutions and
access to a broad spectrum of products and services. They also reflect the changes in
the way the Bank operates as a result of globalization and new technologies, and the
growing competitive pressure in the industry,

As an integrated bank, Credit Suisse is committed to delivering its combined experience
and expertise to clients by drawing on its tradition of innovation across businesses and
regions. With global divisions dedicated to investment banking, private banking and
asset management, the Bank can now provide more comprehensive solutions for its
clients, create synergies far revenue growth, increase efficiencies and grow shareholder
value. The new regional structure enables the Bank to leverage its resources and to
develop cross-divisional strategies that span the Americas, Asia Pacific, Europe, Middle
East and Africa (EMEA) and Switzerland.

The integration of the banking business began with the legal merger of the two Swiss
banks, Credit Suisse and Credit Suisse First Boston, on May 13, 2005,

The newly integrated global bank was launched on January 1, 2006. It operates under
a single brand: Credit Suisse. The brand names Credit Suisse First Boston and Credit
Suisse Asset Management are no longer used.

New organization
The chart below shows the major business realignments that have taken place as part
of the reorganization:

Until December 31, 2005

© iManagement

Trading execution

Discretionary mandates

Alternative investments

Private client services (US)
Small/mid-sized pension funds (CH)

Private funds group

As of January 1, 2006

Asset
Management

Investment Banking Frivate Banking
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Segment description

Investment Banking consists principally of the businesses that comprised the former
Institutional Securiies segment as wet as the trading execution that was formerly part
of Private Banking and Corporate & Retail Banking, and the private funds group that
was formerly part of Wealth & Asset Management.

Private Banking encompasses the businesses of the former Private Banking and
Corporate & Retail Banking segments other than discretionary mandates and alternative
investments, which have been moved to Asset Management. The US private client
senvices business has been transferred from Wealth & Asset Management to Private
Banking (with the excepticn of Volaris, which remains in Asset Management following
the reorganization). The small and mid-sized pension fund business in Switzerland was
transferred from Wealth & Asset Management to the Corporate & Retail Banking
business in Private Banking.

In addition to the discretionary mandates and alternative investment businesses, Asset
Management includes the businesses formerly part of the Wealth & Asset
Management segment other than the private funds group and the US private client
senvices business.

As a result of these realignments, the Bank now consists of Investment Banking
(investment banking and trading), Private Banking (wealth management and corporate
and retail banking) and Asset Management (tradiional asset management and
aliemative investments).

Shared Seyvices

The three global business segments are complemented by Shared Sewvices which
provides support in the areas of finance, legal and compliance, risk management,
operations and information technology. Shared Services consolidated former support
functions in the businesses in order to bundle resources and know-how from across the
Bank.

Regltonal structure

The regional structure is another key element in the creation of the new organization
and is expected to allow the Bank to leverage resources in each of its key regions. The
regions are the Americas; Asia-Pacific; EMEA and Switzerland. The combination of
divisional and regional management is key to the success of the integrated Bank. The
close cooperation among segments and regions is designed to help the Bank better
identify opportunities in its four regions and provide clients with a truly integrated
offering.

Credit Sutsse Annual Repart 2005 5
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Boeard of Directors and Executive Board

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is composed of the following individuals:

Name Principal or Former Occupation
Walter B. Kielholz Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Chalrman, Credit Suisse Group;

Chairman of the Chairman's and Governance Committee

Executive Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors of Swiss Re

Hans-Ulrich Doerig

Vice-Chairman

Chairman of the Risk Committee and

Member of the Chaimman’s and Govemance Committee

Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Credit Suisse Group

Thomas W. Bechtler
Member of the Risk Committee

Vice-Chairman and Delegate of

the Boards of Directors of Hesta AG and Hesta Tex AG;
Chairman of the Boards of Directors of Zellweger Luwa AG and
Schiesser Group AG

Robert H. Benmosche
Member of the Compensation Committee

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Met Life Inc. and Met Life Insurance Company

Peter Brabeck-Letmathe

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of Nestlé S.A.

Noreen Doyle

Former First Vice President and Head of

Member of the Risk Committee Banking of the European Bank for Reconstruction and
Development
Jean Lanier Former Chairman of the Managing

Member of the Audit Committee

Beard and Group Chief Executive
Officer of Euler Hermes

Anton van Rossum
Member of the Compensation Committee

Former Chief Executive Officer
and member of the Board of Directors of Fortis

Aziz R. D. Syriani

Chairman of the Compensation Committee,
Member of the Chairman's and

Govermnance Committee and the Audit Committee

President and Chief Executive
Officer of The Olayan Group

David W. Syz Chairman of the Boards of Directors of
Mermber of the Audit Committee ecodocs AG and Huber & Suhner AG
Emst Tanner Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Member of the Risk Cormmittee Lindt & Springl AG

Peter F. Weibe! Former Chiet Executive Officer of

Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of the Chairman’s and Governance Committee

PricewaterhouseCoopers AG Switzedand

6 Cradi Dusse Annust Reoort 20005
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Executive Board of Credit Suisse

The Executive Board of Credit Suisse is the most senior executive body within the
Bank. It is responsible for the day-to-day operational management of the Bank. 1t
develops and implements the strategic business plans for the Bank subject to approval
by the Board of Directors and reviews and co-ordinates significant initiatives and
projects in the segments and regions or in the Shared Services functions.

As of December 31, 2005 the Executive Board of Credit Suisse consisted of the

following individuals:
Oswald J. Grubel
Walter Berchtold
Brady W. Dougan
D. Wilson Ervin
Renato Fassbind

Urs Rohner

Richard E. Thomburgh

Effective January 1, 2006, Credit Suisse realigned its executive management bodies
with its new integrated bank structure. The Executive Board of Credit Suisse now
consists of the following members:

Oswald J. Gribel Chief Executive Officer

Walter Berchlold Chief Executive Officer, Private Banking

David J. Blumer Chief Executive Officer, Asset Management

Paul Calello Chief Executive Officer, Credit Suisse Asia Pacific

Brady W. Dougan

Chief Exetutive Officer, Investment Banking and Credit
Suisse Americas

D. Wilson Ervin

Chief Risk Officer

Renato Fassbind

Chief Financial Officer

Ulrich Kémer

Chief Executive Officer, Credit Suisse Switzerland

Michael G. Philipp

Chief Executive Officer, Credit Suisse Europe, Middle
East and Africa

Urs Rohner

Chief Operating Officer and General Counsel

Thomas J. Sanzone

Chief tnformation Officer

Credit Suisse Annuat Report 20053 7
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The Bank is part of Credit Suisse Group (the Group) and its risks are managed as part
of the global Credit Suisse Group entity. The Credit Suisse Group risk management
process is designed to ensure that there are sufficient independent contrals to
easure, meonitor and control risks in accordance with the Group's control framework
and in consideration of industry best practices. The primary responsibility for risk
management lies with Credit Suisse Group's senior business line managers, They are
held accountable for all risks associated with their businesses, including counterparty
risk, market risk, fiquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk and reputationad risk.

Risk management principles

The prudent taking of risk is fundamental to the business of the Group. The primary
objectives of risk management are fo protect the financial strength and the reputation of
the Group. The Group’s risk management framework is based on the foliowing
principles, which apply universally across all businesses and risk types.

— Protection of financial strength: the Group contrals risk in order to fimit the impact
of potentially adverse events on the Group's capital and income. The Group’s risk
appetite is to be consistent with its financial resources.

— Protection of reputation: The value of the Group franchise depends on the Group’s
reputation. Protecting a strong reputation is both fundamentat and an ovemiding
concem for all staff members.

- Risk transparency: Risk transparency is essential so that risks are well understood
by senior management and can be balanced against business goals.

— Management accourtability: The various businesses are organized into segments
that own the comprehensive risks assumed through their operations, Management
for each segment is responsible for the active management of their respective risk
exposures and the refurn for the risks taken.

— Independent oversight: Risk management is a structured process to identily,
measure, monitor and report risk. The risk management, controlling and legat and
compliance functions operate independently of the front offices to ensure the
integrity of the risk and control processes. The risk management functions are
responsible for implementing all relevant risk policies, developing tools fo assist
senior management to determine risk appetite and assessing the overall risk profile
of the Group.

Risk management oversight

Risk management oversight is performed at several levels of the organization. The
Group has adapted its existing framework to its new organizational structure. Key
responsibilities fie with the following management bodies and committees.

Risk management ovarsight at the Board level

- Group Board of Directors: Responsible to shareholders for the strategic direction,
supervision and control of the Group and for defining the Group's overall tolerance
for risk.

— Boards of Birectors of other Group legal entities: Responsible for the strategic
direction, supervision and control of the respective legal entity and for defining the
legal entity's tolerance for risk.

- Risk Committees: Responsible for assisting the Boards of Directors of the Group
and other Group legal entities in fulfiling their oversight responsibifities by providing
guidance regarding risk governance and the development of the risk profile,
including the regular review of major risk exposures and the appraval of risk fimits.

- Audit Committee: Responsible for assisting the Boards of Directors of the Group
and other Group legal entities in fulfiling their oversight responsibilities by manitoring
management’s approach with respect to financial reparting, internal controls,
accounting, and legal and regulatory compliance. Additionally, the Audit Committee
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is responsibie for monitoring the independence and the performance of the intemal
and external auditors.

Intenal auditors: Responsible for assisting the Boards of Directors, the Audit
Committee and management in fuliiling their responsibilities by providing an
objective and independent evaluaiion of the effectiveness of control, risk
management and governance processes.

Risk management oversight at the Group managemeit e

Group Executive Management (Group CEO and Group Executive Board):
Responsible for implementing the Group’s strategy, managing the Group's portfolio
of businesses and managing the risk profile of the Group as a whole within the risk
tolerance defined by the Group Board of Directors.

Group Chief Risk Officer: Responsible for providing risk management oversight for
the Group as a whole in order fo ensure that the Group’s aggregate risk appetite is
cansistent with its financial resources as well as the risk tolerance defined by the
Group Board of Directors. Additionally, risk management identifies group-wide risk
concentrations, reviews and ratifies high risk exposures and unusual or special
transactions, ensures consistent and thorough risk management practices and
processes throughout the Group and recommends corrective action if necessary.

Risk management oversight at the Bank management tevel as of
lanuary 1, 2008

Credit Suisse Executive Management (Chief Executive Officers and Executive
Boards): Responsible for implementing the strategy and actively managing its
porifolio of businesses and ils risk profile to ensure that risk and return are balanced
and appropriate for current market conditions.

Strategic Risk Management (SRM): At the Bank, SRM is an independent function
with responsibility for assessing the overall risk profile both on a bank-wide level and
for individual businesses, and recommending corrective action if necessary. SRM
reports to the Chief Risk Officer of the Bank.

Risk Measurement and Management (RMM): RMM is an independent function
responsible for the measurement and reporting of credit risk, market risk,
operational risk and economic risk capital data; managing risk limits; and
establishing policies on market risk and economic risk capital. RMM reports to the
Chief Risk Officer of the Bank.

Credit Risk Management (CRM): CRM is an independent function headed by the
Chief Credit Officer with respensibility for approving credit limits, monitoring and
managing individual exposures and assessing and managing the quality of the
segment and business area's credit portfolios. CRM reports to the Chief Risk
Cfficer of the Bank.

The Rank risk manzgement commitiees

Capital Allocation and Risk Management Committee {CARMC) is responsible for
supervising and directing the Bank risk profile on a consolidated basis,
recommending risk limits to the Bank’s Board of Directors and its Risk Committee
and for establishing and allocating risk kmits within the Bank. CARMC is also
responsible for supervising the development of the Bani's balance sheet and for
reviewing and addressing operational risk issues at the Bank. CARMC meetings
focus on the following three topics on a rotating basis: Asset and Liability
Management; Posiiion Risk for Market and Credit Risk; and Operational Risk.
Risk Processes and Standards Committee is responsible for establishing and
approving standards regarding risk management and risk measurement.

Credit Portfolio & Provisions Review Committee is responsible for reviewing the
quality of the credit portfofio, with a focus on the development of impaired assets
and the assessment of related provisions and valuation allowances.

Credit Suisse Annual Repor 2005 9
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- Reputational Risk Review Commitiee is responsible for setting the policy regarding
reputational risks within the Bank.

— Divisional Risk Management Committees (RMC): Within the investment banking,
private banking and asset management divisions of the Bank, the respective
divisionat RMC is respansible for supervising and directing the divisional risk profie
on a consoiidated basis, for establishing and implementing risk managerment
policies, recommending risk limits to CARMC and establishing and allocating risk
limits within the division.

Risk categories
The Bank is expased to many risks and differentiates between them using the following
major risk categories:

- Market risk — the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates, equily prices and other relevant market rates and prices,
such as commodity prices and volatilities;

- Credit risk - the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in the creditworthiness of
counterparties;

— Expense risk — the risk that the businesses are not able to cover their ongoing
expenses with ongoing income subsequent to a severe crisis, excluding expense
and income items already captured by the other risk categories;

- Liguidity and funding risk — the risk that the Bank or ane of its businesses is unable
to fund assets or meet obligations at a reasonable or, in case of extreme market
disruptions, at ary price;

- Operational risk — the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed intemal
processes, people and systems or from external events;

—  Slrategy risk — the risk that the business aciivities are not responsive to changes in
industry trends; and

- Reputationai risk — the risk that the Bank's market or sewvice image declines.

While most businesses are exposed to all risk types, their relative significance varies.
Group-wide risk management and measurement approaches are applied where
appropriate and meaningfut,

Risk limits

Fundamental to risk management is the establishment and maintenance of a sound
system of risk limits to control the range of risks inherent in the business activities. The
size of the limits reflects the Group's risk appetite given the market enviranment, the
business strategy and the financial resources avallable o absorb losses,

The Group uses an Economic Risk Capital {ERC) limit structure to limit overall position
risk-taking. The level of risk incurred by the segments is further restricted by specific
{imits, for example, with respect to trading exposures, the mismatch of interest-eaming
assets and interest-bearing liabiliies at the banking businesses, private equity and seed
money investments and emerging market country exposures. Within the businesses,
the risk limits are allocated to lower organizational levels, numerous other limits are
established to control specific risks and a system of individual counterparty credit limits
is used to limit concentration risks.
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Economic Risk Capital

Introduction

Economic risk capital represents current market best practice for measuring and
reporting all quantifiable risks. It is called *economic™ risk capital because it measures
risk in terms of economic realities rather than regulatory or accounting rutes. The Grroup
uses an economic risk capital model as a consistent and comprehensive risk
management tool, which also forms an important element in the capital management
and planning process and an element in the performance measurement process. The
ERC model is subject to regular methodology reviews to ensure it appropriately reflects
the risk profile of our portfolio in the current market environment.

Concept

The ERC model is designed to measure all quantifiable risks associated with the
Group's activities on a consistent and comprehensive basis. It is based on the following
general definition: *Economic Risk Capital” is the economic capital needed to remain
solvent and in business even under extreme market, business and operational
conditions, given the institution’s target financial strength.

ERC is calculated separately for position risk, operational risk and expense risk. These
three risk categories measure very different types of risk:

—  Position risk ERC — the level of unexpected loss in economic value on the Group's
portfolio of positions over a one-year horizon that is exceeded with a given, small
probability (1% for risk management purposes; 0.03% for capital management
purposes).

—  Operational risk ERC — the leve! of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or from extemal events over a one-year horizon that
is exceeded with a small probability (0.03%). Estimating this type of ERC is
inherently more subjective, and reflects both quantitative tocls as well as senior
management judgment.

- Expense risk ERC — the difference between expenses and revenues in a severe
market event, exclusive of the elements captured by position risk ERC and
operational risk ERC.

The following table sets forth the Bank's risk profile, using ERC as the common risk denominator:

December 81, in CHF m 2004 2003
Interest rate, credit spread and FX ERC 1.881 1,801

Equity invesiment ERC I B 1619 - ?,434
Swiss and retail lending ERC 1799 1914
intemational tending ERC 9,161 2,240
Emerging markets ERC 1562 1,699
st acate and svuctued sl BRCT T e & oo taw
Simple sum across risk categories T B 056 1 289 107530
Diversification benefit ©9%6) (3243 (3042)

Total position risk ERC i 10,060 8,046 7,708

1-year, 99% position risk ERC, excluding foreign exchange transfation risk. For an assessment of the total risk profite, operational risk ERC and expense risk ERC need to be
considered as well, For a more detailed description of the Group's ERC model, please refer to Credit Suisse Group's Annual Report 2008, which is available on our website
www.credit-suisse.com. Note that prior periods data have been restated for methodclogy changes as described in Economic Risk Capital — Introduction in crder to maintain
consistency over time.

" This category comprises the Bani's commercial real estate exposures, residential real estate exposures, asset-backed securities exposures as well as the real estate
acquired at auction and real estate for own use in Switzerland.

Credit Sugsse Anmual Report 2005 11
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Overview

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates, equity prices, commodity prices and other relevant market
parameters, such as market volatilities. The Bank defines its market risk as potential
changes in fair values of financial instruments in response to market movemenis, A
typical fransaction may be exposed to a number of different market risks.

The Bank devotes considerable resources fo ensuring that market risk is
comprehensively captured, accurately modeled and reported, and effectively managed,
Trading and non-trading portfolios are managed at various organizational levels, from the
Bank down to specific business areas, The Bank uses market risk measurement and
management methods designed to meet or exceed industry standards. These include
both general tools capable of calculating comparable exposures across the Bank’s
many activites as well as focused tools that can specifically model unique
characteristics of certain business areas’ functions. The tools are used for intemat
market sk management, intemal market risk reporting and external disclosure
purposes. The principal measurement methodologies are Value-at-Risk (VaR)} and
scenario analysis. Additionally, the market risk exposures are also reflected in the
Bank's ERC calculations described above in the section entitled Economic Risk Capital.
The risk management techniques and policies are regulary reviewed to ensure that they
remain appropriate,

Valuve-at-Risk

VaR measures the potential loss in terms of fair value changes over a given time interval
under normal market conditions at a given confidence level. VaR as a concept is
applicable for all financial risk types with valid regular price histories. Positions are
aggregated by risk type rather than by product. For example, interest rate risk includes
risk arising from maoney market and swap transactions, bonds, and interest rate, foreign
exchange, equity and commodity options. The use of VaR allows the comparison of risk
in different businesses, such as fixed income and equities, and also provides a means
of aggregating and netting a varety of positions within a portfolio to reflect actual
correlations and offsets between different assets.

Historical financial market rates and prices serve as a basis for the statistical VaR model
underlying the potential loss estimation. The Bank uses a ten-day hoiding period and a
confidence level of 99% calculated using, in general, a rolling two-year history of
market data to mode! the risk in its trading portfolios. These assumptions are in
agreement with the “Amendment to the Capital Accord to Incorporate Market Risks”
published by the Basel Commities on Banking Supervision in 1996 and other related
intemational standards for market risk management. For some purposes, such as
backtesting, disclosure and benchmarking with competitors, the resulting VaR figures
are scaled down or calculated using one-day holding period values.

The Bank has appioval from the Swiss Federal Banking Commission, as well as from
certain other regulators of its subsidiaries, o use its VaR mode! in the calculation of
trading book market risk capital requirements. The Bank continues to receive regufatory
approval for angoing enhancements to the methodology, and the modet is subject to
regular reviews by requlators and auditors.

Assumptions

The Bank uses a historical simulation model for the majority of risk types and
businesses within its trading portfolios. Where insufficient data is available for such an
approach, an extreme move methodology is used. The model is based on the profit and
loss distribution resulting from the historical changes of market rates applied to evaluate
the portfclio using, in general, a roffing two-year history. This methodology also avoids
any explicit assumptions on comelation between risk factors. The VaR model uses
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assumptions and estimates that the Bank believe are reasonable, but different
assumptions or estimates could result in different estimates of VaR.

Limitations

VaR as a risk measure quantifies the potential loss on a portfolio under normal market
conditions only. It is not intended fo cover losses associated with unusually severe
market movements (these are intended to be covered by scenario analysis). VaR also
assumes that the price data from the recent past can be used to predict future events.
If future market conditions differ substantially from past market conditions, then the risk
predicted by VaR may be too conservative or too iiberal.

Scenario analysis

The Bank regularly performs scenario analysis for all of its business areas exposed to
market risk in order io estimate the potential economic loss that could arise from
extreme, but plausible, stress events. The scenario analysis calculations performed are
specifically tailored towards their respective risk profile. In order io identify areas of risk
concentration and potential vulnerability to stress events across the Bank, the Bank has
developed a set of scenarios, which are consistently applied across all business areas.
Key scenarios include significant movements in interest rates, equity prices and
exchange rates, as well as adverse changes in counterparty default rates. The scenario
analysis framework also considers the impact of various scenarios on key capital
adequacy measures such as regulatory capital and economic capital ratios. The Board
of Directors and senior management of the Bank and the segments are regularly
provided with scenario analysis estimates, scenario analysis trend information and
supporting explanations to create transparency on key risk exposures and to support
senior management in managing risk.

Assumptions

Scenario analysis estimates the impact that could arise from extreme, but plausible,
stress events by applying predefined scenarios to the relevant portfolios. Scenarios are
typically defined in light of past economic or financial market stress periods, but
statistical analysis is also used to define the less severe scenarios in the framework.

Limitations

Scenario analysis estimates the loss that could arise if specific events in the economy
or in financial markets were fo occur. Seldom do past events repeat themselves in
exactly the same way. Therefore, it is necessary to use business experience to choose
a set of meaningful scenarios and to assess the scenario results in light of current
economic and market conditions,

Trading portfolios

Risk measurement and management

For the purposes of this disclosure, VaR is used for the trading portfolio, which includes
those financial instruments treated as part of the “trading book” for Bank for
International Settlements regulatory capital purposes. This classification of asseis as
trading is done for purposes of analyzing our market risk exposure, not for financial
statement purposes.

The Bank is active in most of the principal trading markets of the world, using the
majority of the common trading and hedging products, including dervatives such as
swaps, futures, options and structured products (which are customized transactions
using combinations of derivatives and executed to meet specific client or proprietary
needs). As a result of its broad participation in products and markets, its trading
strategies are correspondingly diverse and variable, and exposures are generally spread
across a diversified range of risk factors and locations.

pevelepraent of trading portiolio risks
The table below shows the trading-related market risk exposure for the Bank on a
consolidated basis, as measured by scaled one-day, 99% VaR. Numbexs are shown in
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Swiss francs. As the Bank measures trading book VaR for interal risk management
purposes using the US dollar as the base currency, the VaR figures were translated into
Swiss francs using the respective daily currency translation rates. VaR estimates are
computed separately far each risk fype and for the whole portfdlio using the historical
simulation methodology. Diversification benefit reflects the net difference between the
sum of the 98th percentile loss for each indwidual risk type and for the total portfolio.

The Bank's one-day, 99% VaR at December 31, 2005, was CHF 88 million,
compared to CHF 63 milion at December 31, 2004.

The fotlowing table sets forth the trading-related market risk exposure for Credit Suisse on a consolidated basis, as measured
by scaled one-day, 99% VaR:

2005 2004
in CHF m Minimum Maximym Average 31.12.04
Interest rate & credit spread 85 739 548 468
Foreign exchange rate " w9 2086 157 194
Diversification benefit o -v - @) (438)
Total 41.8 91.3 66.2 62.9

Disclesure covers all rading books of the Bank. Numbers represent 10-day VaR scaled 1o a 1-day holding pericd.

" Ag the minimum and maximum occur on different days for different risk types, it is not meaningful to calculate a portfolio diversification benefit.

VaR results and distribution of trading revenues

The Bank uses backtesting as the primary method to assess the accuracy of the VaR
model used for its trading portfolios. Backtesting of the trading portfalia is performed at
various organizational levels, from the Bank overall down to more specific business
areas. The backtesting process compares daily backtesting profit and loss to VaR
calculated using a one-day holding period. Profit and loss used for backtesting
purpases is a subset of actual rading revenue and incudes only the profit and loss
effects due to financial market variables such as interest rates, equity prices, foreign
exchange rates and commeodity prices on the previous night's positions. It excludes
such items as fees, commissions, certain provisions and any trading subsequent to the
previous night's positions. 1t is appropriate to compare this measure with VaR for
backtesting purposes, since VaR assesses only the potential change in position value
due to overnight movements in financial market variables. On average, an accurate
one-day, 99% VaR model should have between zero and four backtesting exceptions
per year. A backtesting exception occurs when the daily loss exceeds the daily VaR
estimate.
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The Bank had zeso backtesting exceptions in 2008, as shown in the graph below. It is
not unusual to have zero backtesting exceptions during periods of low market volatility,
as in 2005. The graph below illustrates the relationship between daily backtesting profit
and loss, and the daily one-day, 99% VaR for the Bank in 2005.

Credit Suisse backtesting
inUSD m
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! Dafly adjusted frading revenue —= i-day VaR (99%)

The following histogram compares the trading revenues for 2005 with those for 2004,
The trading revenue shown in this graph is the actual dally trading revenue, which
includes not only backtesting profit and loss but also such items as fees, commissions,
certain provisions and the profit and loss effects associated with any trading subsequent
{0 the previous night's positions.
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Non-trading portfolios

Risk measurement and management

The market risks associzted with the non-trading portfolios are measured, monitored
and limited using several tools, including ERC, scenario analysis, sensitivity analysis and
VaR. For the purpose of this disclasure, the aggregated market risks associated with
the non-trading portfolios of the Bank are measured using senstivity analysis. The
sensitivity analysis for the non-trading activities measures the amount of potential
change in economic value. It is not a measure for the potential impact on reported
eamings, since the non-trading activities generally are not marked to market through
eamings.

Development of non-trading portiolio risks

Equity risk on non-trading positions is measured using sensitivity analysis that estimates
the potential change in value resulting from a 10% decline in the equity markets of
developed nations and a 20% decline in the equity markets of emerging market
nations. The estimated impact for the Bank would be a decrease of approximately CHF
331 million in the vakue of the non-trading portfofio at December 31, 2005 compared
to a decrease of approximately CHF 390 milfion in the value of the non-trading portfolio
at December 31, 2004. The main reason for the change was lower equity positions,
partially offset by increases in seed capital and private equity investments.

Interest rate risk on non-trading positions is measured using sensitivity analysis that
estimates the potential change in value resulting from a 50 basis point decfine in the
interest rates of developed nations and a 200 basis point decline in the interest rates of
emerging market nations. The estimated impact the Bank would be an increase of
approximately CHF 47 milion in the value of the non-trading portfolio at December 31,
20056 compared fo an increase of approximately CHF 21 million in the value of the
non-trading portfolio at December 31, 2004. The main reason for the change was
increased net interest rate exposure in the liquidity and funding portfolios,

Foreign exchange risk on non-trading positions is measured using sensitivity analysis
that estimates the potential change in value resulting from a 10% strengthening of the
CHF against developed nation currencies and a 20% strengthening of the CHF against
ermerging market nation cumencies. The estimated impact for the Bank would be an
increase of approximately CHF 57 million in the value of the non-trading portfolio at
December 31, 2005 compared to a decrease of approximately CHF 1 milion in the
value of the non-trading portfolio at December 31, 2004. The main reason for the
change was the transfer of certain positions to the nan-trading portfolio.

Commodity risk on non-frading positions is measured using sensitivity analysis that
estimates the potential change in value resulting from a 20% weakening in commodity
prices. The estimated impact for the Bank would be a decrease of approximately CHF
3 million in the value of the non-trading portfalio at December 31, 2005 compared to
an increase of approximately CHE 3 million in the value of the nen-trading portfolio at
December 31, 2004. The main reason for the change was an increase in energy
positions.
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Credit risk

Definition of credit risk

Credit risk is the possibility of loss incurred as a result of a borower or counterparty
failing to meet its financial obligations. In the event of a default, a bank generally incurs
a loss equal to the amount owed by the debtor, less any recoveries resufting from
foreclosure, liquidation of collateral or the restructuring of the debtor company.

Credit risk exists within lending products, commitments and letters of credit, and results
from counterparty exposure arising from derivative, foreign exchange and other
transactions.

Credit risk management approach

Effective credit risk management is a structured process fo assess, quantify, price,
monitor and manage risk on a consistent basis. This requires careful consideration of
proposed extensions of credit, the setting of specific limits, diligent ongoing monitcring
during the life of the exposure, active use of credit mitigation tools and a discipiined
approach to recognizing credit impairment.

This credit risk management framework is regularly refined and covers all banking
business areas that are exposed to credit risk. The framework is designed to cover
virtually all of the credit exposures in the banking business and compnises seven core
components:

~  An individual counterparly and country rating system;
— A transaction rating system;

— A counterparty credit limit system;

- Country and regional concentration limis;

- Arisk-based pricing methodology;

- Active credit portfolio management; and

— A credit risk provisioning methodology.

The Bank evaluates credit risk through a credit request and approvat process, ongoing
credit and counterparty monitoring and a credit quality review process. Experienced
credit officers prepare credit requests and assign intemnal ratings based on their analysis
and evaluation of the clients’ creditworthiness and the type of credit transaction. The
analysis emphasizes a forward looking approach, concentrating on economic trends and
financial fundamentals. In addition, analysts make use of peer analysis, industry
comparisons and other quantitative tools. The final rating also requires the consideration
of qualitative factors relating to the counterparty, its industry and management. The
Bank has established a counterparty credit risk classification system with which
counterparties are rated and classified on a regular basis. This system affords
consistency in () statistical and other credit risk analysis; (i) credit risk monitoring; (iii)
risk-adjusted performance measurement; and (v} economic risk capital
usage/allocation. It is also used for certain financial accounting purposes.

Each counterparty that generates a potential or actual credit risk exposure is assigned a
risk rating class. Based on the structure of each transaction, an estimate of expected
loss in the event of a counterparty defaull is also assigned. The counterparty credit
rating is used in combination with credit (or credit equivalent) exposure and the loss
given default assumption to estimate the potential credit loss. These inputs allow the
Bank to price transactions involving credit risk more accurately, based on risk/retum
estimates. Pricing and the terms of the credit extension are sensitive to many of the
credit risk factors described in this section, and are intended to refiect more accurately
the situation of the borrower as well as the Bank's interests and priorities in negotiating
the extension of credit.
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Senor credit managers make credit decisions on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
determined by tevels appropriate to the amount and complexity of the transactions, as
well as based on the overall exposures to counterparties and their related enfities.
These approval authority levels are set out within the governing principles of the legal
entities.

A system of individual credit limits is used to manage individual counterparty credit risk.
Other fimits are also established to address concentration issues in the portfolio,
including a comprehensive set of country and regional lirmits and limits for certain
products. Credit exposures to individual counterparties, industry segments or product
groupings and adherence to the related limits are monitored by credit officers, industry
analysts and other relevant specialists. In addition, credit risk is regularly supenvised by
credit and risk management committees taking current market conditions and trends
analysis info consideration. The Bank regularly analyzes its industry diversification and
concentration in selected areas.

A rigorous credit quality review process has been established to provide an early
identification of possible changes in the creditworthiness of clients and includes regular
asset and collateral quality reviews, business and financial statement analysis and
relevant economic and industry studies. Other key factors considered in the review
process include current and projected business and economic conditions, historical
experience, regulatory requirements and concentrations of credit volume by industry,
country, product and counterparty rating. Regularly updated watch-lists and review
meetings are used for the identification of counterparties where adverse changes in
creditworthiness could occur due to events such as announced mergers, eamings
weakness and lawsuits.

The review process culminates in a quarterly determination of the appropriateness of
allowances for credit losses. A systematic provisioning methodology is used to identify
potential credit risk-related losses. Impaired transactions are classified as potential
problem exposure, non-performing exposure or non-interest eaming exposure and the
exposures are generally managed within credit recavery units. The risk management
and credit committees of the Bank determine the adequacy of allowances, taking into
consideration whether the levels are sufficient for credit losses and whether allowances
can be released or if they should be increased.

on-performing loans

A loan is considered impaired when the Bank believes it will be unable to collect all
principal and/or interest in accordance with the contractuat terrns of the loan
agreement. A loan is automatically classified as non-performing when the contractual
payments of principaf and/or interest are in arrears for 90 days. A loan can also be
classified as non-performing if the contractual payments of principal and/or interest are
tess than G0 days past due, based on the judgment of the respective credit officer. The
Bank continues to accrue interest for collection purposes; however, a corresponding
provision against the accrual is booked through the income statement. In addtion, for
any accrued but unpaid interest at the date the loan is placed on non-performing status,
a comresponding provision i5 booked against the accrual through the income statement.
At the time a loan is placed on non-performing status and on a periodic basis going
forward, the remaining principal is evaluated for collectibilily and an allowance is
established for the shorifall between the net recoverable amount and the remaining
principal balance.

A loan can be further downgraded to non-interest eaming when the collection of
interest is in such a doubtful state that further accrual of interest is deemed
inappropriate. At that time and on a periodic basis going forward, any unreserved
rernaining prncipal balance is evaluated for collectibility and an additionat provision is
established as required. A write-off of a loan occurs when the Bank determines that
there is no possibility 10 recover the principal. Wiite-offs also occur due to sales,
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settlernents or restructurings of loans or when uncertainty as to the repayment of either
principal or accrued interest exists.

Generally, a loan may be restored to performing status when all delinquent principal and
interest payments become current in accordance with the terms of the loan agreement
and certain performance criteria are met. The Bank applies these policies worldwide.

Total impaired loans declined by CHF 1.2 billion for the Bank in 2005, as total non-
performing loans declined by CHF 809 million and total other impaired loans dechined
by CHF 373 million. This substantial reduction was a result of the continued favarable
credit environment as well as continued important setflements and recoveries.

Potential probliem loans

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Bank had potential problem loans amounting to
CHF 0.8 bilion and CHF 1.2 billion, respectively. These foans are considered potentiat
problem loans because, although interest payments are being made, there exists some
doubt in the credit officer's judgment as to the timing and/or certainty of the repayment
of contractual principal.

The following table sets forth the Bank's impaired loan portfolio:

December 31, in CHF m

Non-performing loans

Non-interest earning loans

Total non-performing loans

Restructured loans
_F_’otent%al preblem loans

Total other impaired loans

Total impaired loans

Valuation allowance as a % of
Total non-performing foans
Total impaired loans

Credit provisions

The Bank maintains valuation aflowances on loans that it considers adequate to absorb
losses arising from the existing credit portfolio. Valuation allowances are deducted from
total assets, while provisions are included in total liabilities, The Bank provides for credit
losses based on a regular and detailed analysis of every counterparty, taking cofiateral
value into consideration. If uncertainty exists as to the repayment of either principal or
interest, a valuation allowance is either created or adjusted accordingly. Credit provisions
are reviewed on a quarterly basis by senior management at the Bank level.

In determining the amount of the credit provisions, loans are assessed on a case-by-
case basis, and the following factors are considered:

—  The financial standing of a customer, including a realistic assessment — based on
financial and business information — of the likelihood of repayment of the loan within
an acceptable period of time considering the net present value of future cash flows;

—  The extent of the Bank’s other commitments to the same customer;

- The realizable fair value of any coliateral for the loans;

—  The recovery rate; and

~ The costs associated with obtaining repayment and realization of any such collateral.

Judgment is exercised in determining the extent of the valuation allowance and is based
on management's evaluation of the risk in the portfolio, current economic conditions,
recent loss experence, and credit and geographic concentration trends. Vulnerable
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sectors continue to be tracked and monitored closely, with active management leading
to the requirement of collateral, the purchase of credit protection facitities and/or the
tightening of credit terms or maturities where appropriate.

Loan valuation allowances and provisions for inherent credit losses
The inherent foss allowance is estimated for all loans not specifically identified as
impaired, which on a porffolio basis, are considered to contain probable inherent loss.
Inherent losses in the consumer portfolio are determined by applying a historical loss
experience, adiusted to reflect cumrent market conditions, to unimpaired homogenous
pools based on risk rating and product type. Commercial loans are segregated hy risk,
industry or country rating in order fo estimate the inherent losses. Inherent losses on
loans and lending-related commitments are estmated based on historical foss and
recovery experience and recorded in vaksation allowances and provisions. A provision for
inherent loss for off-balance sheet lending related exposure {contingent liabilities and
imevocable commitments) is also computed, using a methodology similar to that used
for the loan portfolio.

Summary of loan vaifuation allowance experience

Net reductions of the loan valuation allowance in 2005 were CHF 126 miflion,
compared to net additions of CHF 70 million in 2004. The Bank experienced net
reductions of the loan valuation allowance in 2005 compared to net additions in 2004
due to a significant reduction in new valuation aliowances as a result of the improved
credit ervironment as well as the release of valuation allowances no fonger required.

The following fable presents the Bank’s aflowance for loan losses:
in CHF m
Balance January 1

New provisions

Releases of provisions

Net additions to allowar;c;e for ioan ié-ss'es

Gross wiite-offs
Recoveries

Net write-offs o
Nmsa_mamd_ et e
Provisions for interest o
Féreign curfencj tmpact and other adjué{ﬁxenfs, net
Balance December 31

Expense risk

Expense risk is the risk that the Bank's non-position-related revenues could fall short of
ongoing expenses, which could occur in the event of a major market contraction.
Expense risk excludes the revenue and expense elements captured by the other risk
categories.

The ability to cover the expense base after an adverse event is cruciat for an orderly
continuation of the Bank's activities — possibly on a reduced level - in the event of a
financial crisis, While many economic capital models do not include this risk, the Bank
believes that it is prudent to consider this risk when assessing the Bank’s capital needs.

Expense risk is linked to the price and activity levels in the financial markets. The price
level in the financial markets is relevant for the fee and commission income derived
from the management of dlients' investment portiolios. The activity level in financial
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Liquidity and funding risk

markets is the key driver for brokerage commissions, underwiiting commissions and
advisory fees. Expense risk varies across the Bank's businesses, depending on the
cost/income ratio, the likely stability of the revenue stream and the ability to reduce
eXpenses in a crisis.

Liquidity and Asset and Liability Management

Crganizstion

The Bank has a comprehensive process for the management and oversight of its
liquidity, funding and Asset and Liability Management (ALM) activities which are
centrally managed by the Global Treasury department. In addition, CARMC has primary
oversight responsibility for these functional discipines. CARMC reviews and approves
ALM liquidity management policies and targets and reviews the liquidity position and
other key risk indicators.

Licuidity Management

The Bank manages liquidity so as o ensure that sufficient funds are either on-hand or
readily available on short notice in the event that it experiences any impairment in its
ability to borrow in the unsecured debt markets. In this way the Bank seeks to ensure
that, even in the event of a liquidity dislocation, it has sufficient funds to repay maturing
liabilities and other obligations so that it is able to camy out its business plans with as
little disruption as possible.

The Bank’s liquidity management structure operates at two levels, the “bank franchise”
and the “non-bank franchise”.

The “bank franchise”, comprises the Bank and its regulated subsidiaries and has access
to funds raised directly by the Bank from stable deposit-based core funds and the
interbank markets, as well as secured funding via the repurchase and securities lending
markets. Historically, the Bank’s deposit base has proven extremely stable and is
comprised of a diversified customer base, including retail and private bank deposits, and
wholesale and institutional deposits. In a stressed liquidity environment, the Bank's
broker-dealer subsidiaries would directly access the secured funding markets to replace
unsecured borrowings from the parent bank.

The majority of the Bank's assets are held in its bank franchise. A substantial portion of
these assets — principally trading inventories that support its Institutional Securities
business - are highly fiquid, consisting of securities inventories and collateralized
receivables, which fluctuate depending on the levels of proprietary trading and customer
business. Coliateralized receivables consist primarily of securities purchased under
agreements to resell and securities borrowed, both of which are primarily secured by
govemment and agency securities, and marketable corporate debt and equity
securities. In addition, the Bank has significant receivables from customers and broker-
deaters that turn over frequently. To meet client needs as a securities dealer, the Bank
may carry significant levels of trading inventories.

As part of its Swiss domestic business, the Bank provides residential and commercial
mortgages and secured and unsecured advances o a wide range of borrowers
including individuals, small- and medium-sized corporate entities and utilities in
Switzerland, Swiss public entities and local and regional governments. These assets are
generally in the form of fixed customer-based term foans and loans catlable on demand
after a confractual notice period. These assets, which are all held in the hank franchise,
are wel diversified by geography, customer type and instrument. Other assets financed
by the bank franchise include loans fo corporate and other institutiona! clients, money
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market holdings and foreign exchange positions that are held directly on the Bank's
own balance sheet.

For the “non-bank franchise”, where access to parent bank funding is limited, the Bank
aims to maintain sutficient fiquidity so that in the event that it is unable to access the
unsecured capital markets, it will have cash and liquid assets sufficient to repay
maturing tiabiities for a minimumn period of one year. When assessing the amount of
cash and liquid assets, consideration is given to any regulatory restrictions that limit the
amount of cash that could be distributed upstream by the Bank's principal broker-dealer
subsidiaries to their unregulated parent entities.

Assets held in the Bank's non-bank franchise include less-fiquid assets such as certain
mortgage whole loans, distressed securities, high-yield debt securities, asset-backed
secunties and private equity and other long-term investments. These assets may be
refatively iliquid at times, especially during periods of market stress. The non-bank
franchise also provides most of the regulatory capital (equity and subordinated debt) in
the Bank's broker-dealer and bank subsidiaries.

The principal measure used to monitor the liquidity position at each of the funding
franchises of the Bank is the “liguidity barometer”, which eslimates the time horizon
over which the adjusted market value of unencumbered assets (including cash) exceeds
the aggregate value of maturing unsecured liabilities plus a conservative forecast of
anticipated confingent commitments. The Bank's objective, as mandated by CARMC is
to ensure that the liquidity barometer for each of the funding franchises is maintained at
a sufficient level to ensure that, in the event that the Bank is unable to access
unsecured funding, it will have sufficient liquidity for an extended period.

For the non-bank franchise, the Bank’s objective is to ensure that the liquidity
barometer equals or exceeds a time horizon of one year. In the case of the bank
franchise, the objective is to ensure the liquidity barometer equals or exceeds 120 days.
The different fime horizons refiect the relative stability of the unsecured funding base of
each funding franchise. In the non-bank franchise, liabilities are measured at their
contractual maturities because histarically, investors in publicly issued debt securities
and commercial paper are highly sensitive fo liquidity events, such that the Bank
believes access o these markets would be quickly diminished. Conversely, the bank
franchise’s retafl and institutional deposit base is measured using contractual maturities
that have been adjusted to reflect behavioral stability. Histerically, this core deposit base
has proven extremely stable, even in siressed markets. The conservative parameters
the Bank uses in establishing the time horizons in the funding franchises assume that
assets will not be sold to generate cash, no new unsecured debt can be issued, and
funds that are assumed to be trapped because of regulatory restrictions are not
available to be distributed upstream in a stressed liquidity environment. Contingent
commitments include such things as commitments to invest in private equity funds,
letters of credit, credit rating-related coliateralization requirements, backup fiquidity lines
provided to asset-backed commercial paper conduits and committed credit facilities to
chents that are currently undrawn. The adjusted market value of unencumbered assets
includes a conservative reduction from market value, or “haircut,” reflecting the amount
that could be realized by pledging an asset as collateral to a third-party lender in a
secured funding transaction. The Bank regularly stress tests its liquidity resources using
scenarios designed to represent highly adverse conditions.

The bank franchise maintains two large secondary sources of liquidity. The first is via a
large portfolio of liquid fixed income securities, which is segregated and managed to
provide for emergency liquidity needs only. This liquidity portfolio is maintained at a leve!
well beyond regulatory requirements and could provide a significant source of liquidity
for an extended period in the event of stressed market conditions. In addition to these
assets held directly in the Bank, the bank franchise maintains another large source of
secondary #iquidity through the Bank’s principal broker-dealers and other regulated
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entities. The bank franchise has historically been able to access significant liquidity
through the secured funding markets (securities sold under agreements to repurchase,
securities loaned and other collateralized financing armangements), even in periods of
market stress. The Bank continually monitors its overall fiquidity by tracking the extent
to which unencumbered marketable assets and alternative unsecured funding sources
exceed both contractuat obligations and anticipated contingent commitments.

The Bank’s liquidity contingency plan focuses on the specific actions that would be
taken in the event of a crisis, including a detailed communication plan for creditors,
investors ard customers. The plan, which is regulary updated, sets out a three-stage
process of the specific actions that would be taken:

- Stage |~ Market disruption
—  Stage Il - Unsecured markets partially inaccessible
—  Stage lii - Unsecured markets fully inaccessible

In the event of a liquidity crisis, a meeting of the Liquidity Crisis Committee would be
convened by Treasury to activate the contingency plan. The: Liquidity Crisis Commitiee's
membership includes senior business line, funding and finance department
management. This committee would meet frequently throughout the crisis to ensure the
plan is executed.

The Bank, through various broker-dealer and bank subsidiaries, has negotiated secured
bilateral committed credit amangements with various third party banks. As of December
31, 9005, the Bank maintained 10 such credit facilities that collectively totaled USD
45 vilion. These faciliies require the Bank's various broker-dealer and bank
subsidiaries to pledge unencumbered marketable securities to secure any borrowings.
Borrawings under each facility would bear interest at short-term rates related fo either
the US Federal Funds rate, LIBOR or other money market indices and can be used for
general corporate purposes. The facilties contain customary covenants that the Bank
believes will not impair its ability to obtain funding. As of December 31, 2005, no
borrowings were outstanding under any of the facilities.

Asset and Liability Management

Global Treasury also oversees corporate policy with respect to non-trading book interest
rate and foreign exchange exposure, as well as a range of other important policy areas
including debt maturity profile, intemal and external capitalization and intercompany
funding.

Operational risk is the risk of loss resutting from inadequate or failed intemat processes,
people and systems or from extemal events. The Bank’s primary aim is the early
identification, recording, assessment, menitoring, prevention and mitigation of
operational risks, as well as timely and meaningful management reporting. Where
appropriate, the Bank transfers operational risks to third-party insurance companies.

Operational risk is inherent in most aspects of the Bank's activities and comprises a
large number of disparate risks. While market and credit risk are often chosen for the
prospect of gain, operational risk is normally accepted as a necessary consequence of
doing business. In comparison to market or credit risk, the sources of operational risk
are difficult to identify comprehensively and the amount of risk is also intrinsically difficult
to measure. The Bank therefore manages operational risk differently from market and
credit risk, The Bank believes that effective management of operational risks requires
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ownership by the management responsible for the refevant business process.
Operational risk is thus controlled through a network of controls, procedures, reports
and responsibilities. Within the Bank, each individual business area and management
level takes responsibility for its own operational risks and provides adequate resources
and procedures for the management of those risks.

Each segment takes responsibility for its own operational risks and has a dedicated
operational risk function. In addition, the Bank has established central teams that focus
on the coordination of consistent policy, tools and practices throughout the Bank for the
management, measurernent, monitoring and reporting of relevant operaticnal risks.
These teams are also respansible for the overall operational risk measurernent
methodology and capitat calfculations. Knowledge and experience are shared throughout
the Bank to maintain a coordinated approach.

in addition to the quarterly firm-level CARMC meetings on operational risk, regular
aperational risk committees meet at the segment level, with representation from senior
staff in all the relevant functions. The Bank utifizes a number of firm-wide tools for the
management, measurement, monitoring and reporting of cperational risk. These
include: risk and contral self-assessments; the coflection, reporting and analysis of
internal and external loss data; and key risk indicator reporting.

The Bank has employed the same methodology to calculate the economic risk capital
far operational risk since 2000, and plans to use a similar methodology for the
Advanced Measurement Approach under the Basel Il Accord. This methodology is
based upon the identification of a number of key risk scenarios that describe all of the
major operational risks that the Bank currently faces. Groups of senior staff review each
scenario and discuss how likely it is to occur and the likely severity of loss if it were to
happen. Intemal and extemal loss data, along with certain business environment and
internal contral factors (for example, contral self-assessment results, key risk indicators)
are used as significant inputs into these discussions. Based on the output from these
meetings, the Bank enters the scenario probabilities and severities into an event mode!
that generates a loss distribution. Insurance mitigation is included in the capital
assessment where appropriate, by considering the leve! of insurance coverage for each
scenario, incorporating haircuts as appropriate. Based on the loss distribution, the level
of capital required to cover operational risk can then be calculated.

The Bank faces significant legal risks in its segments and business areas. The financial
services industry is operating in a challenging legal and regulatory environment with
increased scrutiny from regulatars and dlients around the world. The volume and
amount of damages claimed in litigation, and the penalties and fines sought by
regulators, against financial services firms are increasing substantially.

Legal risks in the investment banking business include, among other things, disputes
over the terms of trades and other transactions in which the Bank acts as principal;
potential fiability under securities law or other law for materially false or misleading
statements made in connection with transactions in which the Bank acts as underwiiter,
placernent agent or financial adviser; potential kability for the “faimess opinions” and
ather advice the Bank provides to participants in comorate transactions; disputes over
the terms and conditions of complex trading arrangements; disputes cver sales and
trading practices; and disputes concerning the adequacy or enforceability of documents
refating to some of the Bank'’s transactions. The Bank faces the possibility that
counterparties in complex or risky trading transactions will claim that it impropery failed
to inform them of the risks or that they were not authorized or permitted 1o enter into
these transactions with the Bank and that their obligations to the Bank are not
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enforceable. The Bank is also subject to claims arising from disputes with employees
for, among other things, discrimination or harassment. These risks often may be difficult
to assess or quantify and their existence and magnitude often remain unknown for
substantial periods of time.

The Bank seeks to minimize legal risk through the adoption of compliance and other
policies and procedures, continuing to refine controls over business practices and
behavior, extensive employee training sessions, the use of appropriate legat
docummentation, and the involvement of the legal and compliance department and
outside legal counsel.

Changes in faws, rules or regulations affecting the Bank’s operations, or in the
interpretation or enforcement of such laws, rules and regulations, may adversely affect
its results. The Bank may be materially affected not only by regutations applicable to it
as a financial services company, but also by regulations of general application.

Reputational risk

The Bank's policy is to avoid any action or transaction that brings with it a patentially
unacceptable level of risk to the Bank's reputation.

Reputational risks may arise from a variety of sources, including the nature or purpose
of a proposed transaction, the identity or nature of a potential client, the regulatory or
palitical climate in which the business wili be transacted or significant public attention
surrounding the transaction itself. Where the presence of these or other factors gives
fise 1o potential reputational risk for the Bank, the relevant business proposal is required
to be submitted to the Reputational Risk Review Process. This involves a vetting of the
proposal by senior management, and its subsequent referral to one of the Repuiational
Risk Approvers, each of whom is independent of the business segments and who have
authority to approve, reject, or impose conditions on the Bank's participation.
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Consclidated fnancial statements

Consolidated statemenis of ncome

Refererce to notes . 2005" 2004

Year ended December 31, in CHF m 2003

Interest and dividend income 6 35361 25637 23419

interest expense ) 6 |(28822) (18363) (15897)
Net interest income 6 83 724 752
Commissions and fees "8 1373 12383 11999
Trading revenues N 7 5896 3405 2677

Realized gains/{losses) from investment securities, net 10 10 o3
Other revenues ' ' 8 i3 2638 1,105
Total noninterest revenues ) <92 59 7- 18,496 15,752

Net revenues B 29131 26770 23,974

Provision for credit losses i 70 560

Compensation and benefits R ) _ B 11,660 10,706

Other oxpenses 7679 7985
Restructuring charges @ 19

Tota! operating expenses B 19,327 18,704

Income from continuing operations before taxes, minority interests, '

extraordinary items and cumulative effect of accounting changes 6,373 4,020

Income tax expense o ] 1,106 1,087

Dividends on preferred securities for édnso_lidated entities o 9 5

Minoﬁtyinterééfé S O T i 1”3 i
Income from continuing operations before extracrdinary E

items and cumulative effect of accounting changes 3,563 4,154 2,827

Income from discontinued operations, retoftax 4 o4 B 0 19-
Exraordrary tems, netoffax D ¢ 5
Cumulative effect of 'é'céounting changes, net of tax PIEE | § ) hS) ) (78}
Net income "+ 3,515 4,138 2,773

The accompanying noles to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Consclidated Hnancie) steternenis

Consolidated balance shee

December 31, in CHF m Relerence lo noles 2004
Assats

Cash and due from banks 17,706
Interes-t beanng deposris wrth banks 3 540.
Central bank funds soid, securities purchased under

resale agreements and securities borrowing transactions 267,156
Securrhes receved as col!ateral . QO 033.
Tracing assets (of which CHF 151,786 m and CHF 110,041 m encumbered) 331,005
Investment securties (of which CHF 2,080 m and CHF 1,941 m encurrbered) 13407
Cher u;vestments 77777 . 9, 596
Loans net of allowance for Ioan Iosses of CHF 1 965 m and CHF 2,697 m 149 195
Prem|§es and equxpment b 4 1777
Goodwil - 9,118

|ntangeb|e assem T
Other assets {of which CHF 4, 860 m and CHF 4, 785 m encumbered)

Total assets 898,586
Liabilities and shareholder's equity

Deposits 287,341
Central bank funds purchased, securities sold under o
repurchase agreements and securilies lending transactions 239,787
d.t;ligatiidh fo rétum securities received as coliateral 20, 033
Trading labibes ”149 935
Short-term borrowings 15,660
Long-tenn debt 94 721
Other liabiliies 81 794
F’referred securities T 57
Mmorrty interests ) 7, 200
Total iabilfies o 876518,
Common shares ' 4 400
Additional paid-in capital 18,736
Retamed earnings 5372
T{easury shares at cos’t ”(3 13"1")
Accumuiated o‘lhermcgngrfhensrve mcome/(IOSS) B 309)
Total shareholder’s equity 22,068
Total liabilities and shareholder's equity 898,586

Commitments and confingencies refer to noles 22, 27 and 34.

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Corgolidated fnancia staternents

Statements of changes in shareholder’s equity

Accumulated

other

Additional Treasury  comprehen-

Corrrrion shares Carnmon paid-in Retained shares,  shve income/
in CHF m, except common shares outstanding outstanding shares capital eamings al cost {loss) Total
Balance Decembe_f___SI,QOOQ o 43996,652 - 4,400 20,587__ L 308 (2,981) - (1,719 20,682
Net inccme _ _ o o ) “Q,773 - ' 2,773
Other com.prehen_siye' iﬁéorﬁe/{loss]‘. net of tax . ) (750) (750)
Repurchase bf reary shares (A . S e L {419) . {419)
Sharebased Compen,s,aﬁoh........_ . e e e e (1_088) [ %6 S (119)
Other (65} ) (65)
Batance December 31, 2003 B 43,996,65?_ 4,400 19,499_ 1,745 (2,431) (2,462) 20,761
_Net income _ T - ] - 4,138 o _ 4,138
O{hercomprehenswe mcomemoss}' ne{.‘é_. — e s ot . - e e (847) . (847)
Repurchase of treasury shares o ’ . T(1,414) e
Share-based compensaion - T T T e T e
C dmdendspa|d S S, (510,) o e

Balarce December 31, 2004 18,736 5,372 {3,131) )

" The Bank's 1otal share capital consists of 43,996,652 registered shares with a nominal value of CHF 100.00 per share and is fully paid. Each share is entitied to one vote.
The Bank has no warrants or convertible rights on s own shares outstanding,  # Substantially refates 1o the deconsolidation of variable interest entiies under Financiat
Accounting Standards Board (FASE) Interpretation (FINY No. 46, as revised (FIN 46R}.

Comprehensive income

Year ended December 31, in CHF m
Net income

Other comprehensive income/{(loss)

Comprehensive income

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these staternents.
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Consolideted frencial stetemends

Consolidated siatements of cash flows

Year ended December 31, in CHF m

Operating activities of continuing operations
et income
Income/(loss) from dlsconhnued Operatlons nef oi tax

Adjustments to reconcile net income to netcash
provided by/(used in) operating activities of continuing operations

Impairment, depreciation and amortization

Provision for credit losses - ) 70
Deferred tax provision o . .’(297)
Restructunng charges h {Q)
(Gains)/losses from investment securies avalable-forsale (10)
Share of neti income from equr’(y me’rhod mvestment(s o (106)
Cumulatve eﬁect of accounlmg changes net of tax . 16
Tradlng assefs and ligbilities N ] ) .(48 789) |
(Increase)/decrease in accrued mterest Hees recewa an ”me;é'sset;jm o (27,804) )
Increase/(decrease) in ac__c_ryed expenses and athe ] T 20,668
Other,ne t B periass ae o 7}}4
Total adjustments {54,766)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities of continuing operations _(60,628)
ﬁwesﬁng activities of continuing opera‘ﬁon.'-‘“.— . a
(lncrease)/decrease in interest-bearing deposlts wnth banks - 906
{Increase)/decrease in centraf bank funds sold, securrtles purchased under

resale agreements and securities borrovwng transacbons (29,_672)
Purchase of investment securities (1 61336j
F'roceeds fmm saIe of mvestment s;ecuntles S _ B LQ?S'
Mab.mttes of investment securities. “ ) 90,481
Investraents in subsidiaries and cﬂher mves’tmants ) @, 04
Proceeds from sale of o!her mvestrnents . 1,637 o
(Increase)/decrease in loarss ' {9, 569)
F’roceeds from sales of Ioans 3 } 294
Capital expendﬂures for premises and eqmpment and other |ntang|b|e assets” . (806)
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment and other mtanglble assets B
Oiher. i ! I equUpTIetTL AT HUe TR S

Net cash pfmnded bw(used m} mveshng activities of conhnumg operations

The accompanying nates to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these staterments.
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Consclidaied nencis! statermenis

Consolidated statements of cash flows — continued

Year ended December 31, in CHF m

Financing activities of continuing operations
Increase/{decrease) in deposits

Increase/(decrease) in short term borrowrngs o

1ncrease/(decrease) in central bank funds purchased securmes ‘sold under repurchase T
agreements and securities Iendrng fransactions

21,204
39,520 22,037
(16308) (23317
a8 @9
613 (1389
e

Issuances of Iong ten‘n debt

Repayments of bong- term debt
Repurchase of reasury shares '
Dividends pard (including mrnonty m‘terests and trust preferred 5ecurrtres)
Other, net '

Net cash provided by/{used in) financing activities of continuing operations 47,7 70

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and due from banks (3,7553
Discontinued operations

Proceeds from sale of stock by subsidiaries 2,693
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and due from banks 470 _(_t')_()g’fm)
Cash and due from banks at beginning of year RE 20,203

Cash and due from banks at end of year 19,236

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Cash paid during the year for income taxes 624

Cash paid during the year for interest 16,124

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business acquisitions

Fair value of assets ar:qurred ________ B3

Fair value of lrabrlrtes mssomed T T sk 77

Assets and liabilities sold in business divestitures

Assels sald 16, 269

- 13 805 3

The accompanying notes to the conselidated financial stalements are an integral part of these staterments.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Summary of significant accounting policies

On May 13, 2005, the Swiss banks Credit Suisse First Boston and Credit Suisse were
merged, Credit Suisse First Boston was the surviving legal entity and #s name was
changed to Credit Suisse. Unless the context otherwise requires, references herein o
the “Bank,” refer to the merged bank together with its subsidiaries. The Bank is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Credit Suisse Group.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Bank for 2005 are
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (US GAAP) and are stated in Swiss francs (CHF). The financial year
for the Bark ends on December 31. Comparative amoumts presented in prior periods
represent the cambined results of operations of the former entities. Historically, the
Bank was not operated as a separate legal entity and accordingly stand-alone
combined financial statements were not prepared. Certain reclassifications have been
made to the prior year's combined financial statements to conform to the current year’s
presentation and had no impact on Net income or Toia! sharehclder’s equity.

The comparative amounts presented in prior periods do not purport o represent what
the Bank's results of operations actually would have been had the merger in fact
occurred on January 1, 2003, or to project the Bank's results of operations for any
future date or period.

In preparing the consclidated financial statements and the combined financial
statements for prior periods, management is required to make estmates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabifities and the disciosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consclidated balance sheets and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements and the combined financial statements for prior
periads, include the financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries. The Bank's
subsidianies are entiies in which it holds, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the
voting rights or where it exercises control. The Bank also consolidates variable interest
entities (VIEs} where the Bank is the primary beneficiary in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation (FIN) No. 46, as revised (FIN 46R).
The effects of intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

The Bank accounts for investments in which it has the ability to exercise significant
influence, which generally are investments in which the Bank holds 20% to 50% of the
voting rights, using the equity methed of accounting under Other investments. The
Bank's share of the profit or loss, as well as any impainnent losses on the investee, i
applicable, are included in Cther revenues.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in currencies other than the funciional currency of the related
entity are recorded by remeasuring them in the functional currency of the related entity
using the foreign exchange rate on the date of the transaction. At the balance sheet
date, monetary assets and liabilities, such as receivables and payables, are reported
using the year-end spot foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange rate differences are
recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

For the purpose of consalidation, the assets and liabilities of the Bank's companies with
functional currencies other than CHF are translated into CHF equivalents using year-
end spot foreign exchange rates, whereas revenues and expenses are translated using
the weighted average foreign exchange rate for the year. Transtation adjustments arising
from consolidation are included in Accumulfated other comprehensive income/{loss)
(AOCH) within Total shareholder’s equity.
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid instruments with original
maturities of three months or less, which are held for cash management purposes.

Reverse repurchase and repurchase agreements

Purchases of securities under resale agreements (reverse repurchase agreements) and
securities sold under agreements to repurchase substantially identical securifies
(repurchase agreements) normally do not constitute economic sales and are therefore
treated as collateralized financing transactions and are carried at the amount of cash
disbursed or received, respectively. Reverse repurchase agreements are recorded as
collateralized assets while repurchase agreements are recorded as liabilities, with the
underlying securities sold continuing to be recognized in frading assets or Investment
securities. Assets and liabilities recorded under these agreements are accounted for on
an accrual basis, with interest eamed on reverse repurchase agreements and interest
incurred on repurchase agreements reported in interest and dividend income and
Interest expense, respectively. Reverse repurchase and repurchase agreements are
netted if they are with the same counterparty, have the same maturty date, seftle
through the same clearing institution and are subject to the same master netting
agreement.

Securities lending and borrowing (SLB) transactions

Securities borrowed and securities loaned that are cash-collateralized are included in the
consolidated balance sheet at amounts equal to the cash advanced or received. If
securities received in an SLB transaction as collateral may be soid or re-pledged, they
are recorded as securtties received as collateral and a commesponding liability to retum
the security is recorded. Fees and interest received or paid are recorded in Interest and
dividend income and Inferest expense, respeciively, on an accrual basis.

Trading assets and fiabilities

Trading assets and liabilities include debt and equity securities, derivative instruments,
loans and precious metals. Items included in the trading porticlio are canied at fair value
and classified as held for trading purposes based on management’s intent for the
individual item. Regular-way security transactions are recorded on a trade-date basis,

Eair value is defined as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liabllity
settled between knowledgeable, wiling parties in an arms’ length transaction other than
an involurtary liquidation or distressed safe. Quoted market prices are used, when
available, to measure fair value, In cases where quoted market prices are not avaitable,
fair value is estimated using valuation models that consider prices for similar assets or
similar liabilities and other valuation techniques.

Unrealized and realized gains and losses on trading positions, ncluding amortization of
the premium/discount arising at acquisition of debt securities, are recorded in Trading
revenues.

Derivatives

Freestanding desivative contracts are carried at fair value in the consolidated balance
sheet regardless of whether these instuments are held for trading or risk management
purposes. Commitments to originate mortgage loans that will be held for sale are
considered derivatives for accounting purposes. When derivative features embedded in
certain contracts that meet the definition of a derivative are not considered clearly and
closely related to the host instrument, the embedded feature is accounted for
separately at fair value, with changes in fair value recorded in the consolidated
statement of income. Once separated, the dervative is recorded in the same line item
in the consolidated balance sheet as the host instrument.

Derivatives classified as trading assets and liabilities include those held for trading
purposes and those used for risk management purposes that do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Derivatives held for trading purposes arise from proprietary trading activity
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and from customer-based activity. Changes in realized and unvealized gains and losses
and interest flows are included in Trading revenues. Derivative contracts designated and
qualifying as fair value hedges, cash fiow hedges or net investment hedges are
reported as Other assets or Other fiabilities and hedge accounting is applied.

The fair value of a derivative is the amaunt for which that derivative could be exchanged
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arms' length transaction. Fair values
recorded for derivative instruments do not indicate future gains or losses, but rather the
unrealized gains and losses from valuing all derivatives at a particular point in time. The
fair value of exchange-traded derivatives is typically derived fram observable market
prices and/or observable market parameters. Fair values for over-the-counter (OTC)
derivatives are determined on the basis of intemally developed proprietary models using
various input parameters, Where the input parameters cannot be validated using
observable markel data, reserves are established for unrealized gains and josses
evident at the inception of the contracts so that no gain or loss is recorded at inception.
Such reserves are amoriized to income over the life of the instrumentt or released into
income when observable market data becomes available. Derivative contracts are
recorded on a net basis per counterparty, where an enforceable master netting
agreement exists. Where no such agreement exists, replacement values are recorded
on a gross basis.

Where hedge accounting is applied, the Bank formally documents all refationships
between hedging instruments and hedged items, including the risk management
objectives and strategy for undertaking hedge transactions. At inception of a hedge and
on an angoing basis, the hedge relationship is formally assessed to determine whether
the derivatives that are used in hedging fransactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items attrbutable to the hedged risk.
The Bank discontinues hedge accounting prospectively in the following circumstances:

(1) lt is determined that the derivative is no longer effective in offsetting changes in the
fair value or cash flaws of a hedged item {including forecasted transactions);

(2} The derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised;

{3) The derivative is no longer designated as a hedging instrument because it is unlikely
that the forecasted transaction will occur; or

(4) The Bank otherwise determines that designation of the derivative as a hedging
instrument is no longer appropriate.

For dervatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges, the camrying value
of the underlying hedged items is adjusted to fair vaiue for the risk being hedged.
Changes in the fair value of these derivatives are recorded in the same line item of the
consolidated statement of income as the change in fair value of the risk being hedged
for the hedged assets or liabilities to the extent the hedge is effective. The change in
fair value representing hedge ineffectiveness is recorded separately in Trading revenues.

When the Bank discontinues fair value hedge accounting the derivative will continue to
be carried on the consolidated balance sheet at its fair value, and the hedged asset or
liability will no fonger be adjusted for changes in fair value attributable to the hedged
risk. Interest-related fair value adjustments made to the underlying hedged items will be
amortized to the consolidated statement of income over the remaining life of the
hedged item. Any unamcrtized interest-related fair value adjustrment is recorded in the
consolidated staternent of income upon sale or extinguishment of the hedged asset or
liability, respectively. Any other fair value hedge adjustments remain part of the canying
amount of the hedged asset or liability ard are recognized in the consofidated statement
of income upon disposition of the hedged item as part of the gain or loss on disposition,

For hedges of the variability of cash flows from forecasted transactions and fluating rate
assets or fiabilities, the effective portion of the change in the fair value of a designated
derivative is recorded in AOC!. These amounts are reclassified into the consofidated
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statement of income when the variable cash flow from the hedged item impacts
eamings (e.g. when periodic setflements on a variable rate asset or fiability are recorded
in the consolidated statement of income or when the hedged item is disposed of). The
change in fair value representing hedge ineffectiveness is recorded separately in Trading
revenues.

When hedge accounting is discontinued on a cash flow hedge, the net gain or loss will
remain in AOC! and be reclassified into the consolidated statement of income in the
same period or periods during which the formerly hedged transaction is reported in the
consolidated statement of income. When the Bank discontinues hedge accounting
because it is probable that a forecasted transaction will not occur within the specified
date or period plus two months, the derivative will continue to be camied on the
consolidated balance sheet at its fair value, and gains and losses that were previously
recorded in AQC! will be recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of
income.

For hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, the change in the fair value of
the hedging derivative is recorded in AOC!, to the extent the hedge is effective. The
change in fair value representing hedge ineffectiveness is recorded in Trading revenues.
The Bank uses the forward method of determining effectiveness for net investment
hedges, which results in the time value portion of a foreign currency forward being
reported in ACC), fo the extent the hedge is effective.

Investment securities

Investment securities include debt securities classified as held-to-maturity and debt and
marketable equity securities classified as available-for-sale. Regular-way security
transactions are recorded on a trade date basis.

Debt securities where the Bank has the positive intent and ability o hold such securities
to maturity are classified as such and are caried at amortized cost, net of any
unarortized premium or discount.

Debt and equity securities classified as available-for-sale are carried at fair value.
Unrealized gains and losses, which represent the difference between fair value and
amortized cost, are recorded in ACC! within Total shareholder’s equity. Amounts
reported in AOCT are net of income taxes, Amortization of premiums or discounts is
recorded in Interest and dividend income using the effective yield method through the
maturity date of the security. Gains or losses on the sales of securities classified as
avaitable-Tor-sale are recorded in Realized gains/(losses) from investment securlies, net
at the time of sale on the basis of specific identification.

Recogniticn of an impairment loss on debt securities is recorded in the conschidated
statement of income if a decline in fair value below amortized cost is considered other-
than-temporary, that is, amounts due according to the contractual terms of the security
are not considered collectible, typically due to a deterioration in the creditworthiness of
the issuer. No impairment is recorded in connection with declines resulting from
changes in market interest rates to the extent the Bank has the intent and abifity to
hold the debt security for a reasonable period of time sufficient for a forecasted
recovery of the decline in market value below cost,

Recognition of an impairment loss on equity secunities is recorded in the consolidated
statement of income if a decline in fair value below the cost basis of an investment is
considered other-than-temporary. The Bank generally considers unrealized losses on

equity securities to be other-than-temporary if the fair value has been below cost for

more than six months or by more than 20%.

Recognition of an impairment loss for debt or equity securites establishes a new cost
basis, which is not adjusted for subsequent recoveries.

Credit Suisse Annual Report 2005 35




Folos o the congolidated financia! stetements

Unrealized losses are recegnized in the consolidated statement of income when a
decision has been taken to sell a security.

Other investments

Other investments include equity method investments and non-marketable equity
securities of the banking business such as private equity and restricted stock
investments, certain investments in non-marketable mutual funds for which the Bank
has neither significant influence nor cantrol over the investee, and reat estate held for
investrment.

The valuation for non-marketable equity securities depends on the type of entity in
which the securities are held. Non-marketable equity securities held by the Bank’s
subsidiaries that are considered investment companies or broker/dealer entities are
carried at their estimated fair value, with changes in fair value recorded in the
consolidated statement of income, The Bank’s other non-marketable equity securities
are carried at cost less other-than-temporary impaimet.

Real estate held for investment is camied at cost less accumulated depreciation and is
depreciated over its estimated useful life, generally 40 to 67 years. Land is carried at
historical cost and is not depreciated.

Loans

Loans held-to-maturity

Loans which are held unti} maturity or for the foreseeable future are carried at
outstanding principal balances and past due interest, net of unamortized premiums, and
discounts on purchased loans, deferred loan origination fees and direct loan origination
costs on criginated loans. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance
and net deferred premiums/discounts and fees/costs are generally amortized as an
adjustment to the loan yield aver the term of the related loans.

AHowance for loan losses on loans held-to-maturity

The allowance for toan losses is comprised of two compenents: probable credit losses
inherent in the portlolio and those losses specifically identified. Changes in the
allowance for loan losses are recorded in the consolidated statement of income in
Frovision for credit losses and in interest income (for provisions on past due interest).

Many factors can affect the Bank's estimate of the allowance for loan losses, including
volatility of default probabifities, rating migrations and estimated loss severity. The
component of the allowance representing probable losses inherent in the portfolio is for
loans not specificalty identified as impaired which, on a portfolio basis, are considered to
contain probable inherent loss. The estimation of this component of the allowance for
the consumer portfolio involves applying historical loss experience, adjusted to reflect
current market conditions, to homogenous loans based an risk rating and product type.
To estimate this companent of the allowance for commercial loans, the Bank
segregates loans by risk, industry or country rating, Excluded from this estimation
process are consumer and commercial loans that have been specifically identified as
impaired. For lending-related commitments, a provision for losses is estimated based on
histarical loss and recovery experience, which is recorded in Other fiabilities. Changes in
the estimated calcutation of losses for lending-related commitments are recorded in the
consolidated statement of income in Provision for credit losses.

The estimate of the component of the allowance far specifically identified credit losses
on impaired Joans is based on a regutar and detailed analysis of each loan in the
portiofio considering collateral and counterparty risk. The Bank considers a loan
impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Bank
wilt be unable to collect the amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan
agreement. For certain non-coflateral dependent impaired loans, impairment charges
are measured using the present vafue of estimated future cash flows. For collateral
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dependent impaired loans, impairment charges are measured using the value of the
collateral. :

A loan is classified as non-performing no later than when the contractual payments of
principal and/or interest are more than 90 days past due. However, management may
determine that a loan should be classified as non-performing notwithstanding that
contractual payments of principal and/or interest are less than 90 days past due. For
non-performing loans, for any accrued but unpaid interest at the date the loan is
classified as non-performing, a provision is recorded in the amount of the accrual,
resulting in a charge to the consolidated statement of income. In addition, the Bank
continues io add accrued interest receivable to the loans balance for collection
purposes; however, a provision is recorded resulting in no interest income recognition.
On a regular basis thereafter, the outstanding principal balance is evaluated for
collectibility and a provision is established as necessary.

A loan can be further downgraded to noninterest eaming when the collection of interest
is considered so doubtful that further accrual of interest is deemed inappropriate. At
that time and on a regular basis thereafter, the outstanding principal balance, net of
provisions previously recorded, is evaluated for collectibility and additional provisions are
established as required. Charge-off of a loan occurs when it is considered certain that
there is no possibility of recovering the outstanding principal. Recoveries of loans
previously charged off are recorded based on the cash or estimated fair market value of
other amounts received.

The amortization of net Joan fees or costs on impaired loans is generally discontinued
during the periods in which matured and unpaid interest or principal is outstanding. On
setflement of a loan, if the loan balance is not collected in full, an altowance is
established for the uncollected amount if necessary, and the loan is then charged off,
net of any deferred loan fees and costs.

Interest collected on non-performing loans and non-interest earning loans is accounted
for using the cash basis or the cost recovery method or a combination of bath, as
appropriate.

Generally, a non-performing loan may be restored to performing status only when
delinquent principal and interest are brought up to date in accordance with the terms of
the loan agreement and when certain performance criteria are met.

Lease financing transactions where the Bank is the lessor are classified as Loans.
Unearned income is amortized to inferest and dividend income over the lease term
using the effective interest method.

Loans held-for-sale

Loans, which the Bank has the intent and ability to sell in the foreseeable future, are
considered held-for-sale and are cammied at the lower of amortized cost or market value
determined on either an individual method basis, or in the aggregate for pools of similar
loans if sold or securitized as a pool. Loans held-for-sale are included in Other assets.

Purchased impalred loans

Purchased loans for which it is probable at acquisition that all contractually required
payments will not be received are recorded at their net purchase price and no
allowances are carried over. The excess of the estimated cash flows to be collected
over the amount paid is accreted into interest income over the estimated recovery
period when reasonable estimates can be made about the timing and amount of
recovery. The Bank does not consider such loans 1o be impaired at the time of
acquisition. Such loans are deemed impaired only after acquisition if the Bank's
estimate of cash to be received decreases below the estimate that existed at the time
of acquisition. Subsequent increases in the estimated expected recovery is recorded as
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a reversal of altowances (if any) and then recognized as an adjustment of the effective
yield of the loan,

Premises and equipment

Premises are carried at cost less accumuiated depreciation and are depreciated over
their estimated useful fives, generally 40 to 67 years. Land is carried at historical cost
and is not depreciated. Alterations and improvements to rented premises are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful lives. Other tangible
fixed assets such as computers, machinery, furnishings, vehicles and other equipment
are depreciated using the: straight-line method over their estimated useful lives,
generally three to five years.

The Bank capitalizes costs relating to the acquisition, installation and development of
software with a measurable economic benefit, but only if such costs are identifiable and
can be reliably measured. The Bank depreciates capitalized software costs on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the software, generally not exceeding
three years, taking into consideration the effects of obsolescence, technology,
competition and other economic factors.

The Bank reflects finance leasing activities for which it is the lessee by recording an
asset in Premises and equipment, and a corresponding liability in Other liabilities at an
amount equal to the smaller of the present value of the minimum lease payments or fair
value, and the leased asset is generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's
estimated useful life or the lease tem,

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwilf represents the excess of the purchase price of an acquired entity over the
estimated fair value of its net assets acquired at the acquisition date. Goodwil is tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently i events or changes in circumstances
indicate that goodwill may be impaired. Goodwill is allocated to the Bank's reporting
units for the purposes of the impairment fest.

Other intangible assets may be acquired individually or as part of a group of assets
assumed in a business combination. Other intangible assets include but are not limited
to: patents, licenses, copyrights, trademarks, branch netwarks, customer base and
deposit relationships. Acquired intangible assets are initially measured based on the
amount of cash disbursed or the fair value of other assets distributed. Other intangible
assets that have a finite useful life are amortized aver that peried. Other intangible
assets acquired after January 1, 2002, that are determined to have an indefinite useful
life, are not amortized.

Recognition of impairment losses on tangible fixed assets and other
intangible assets

The Bank evaluates Premises and equipment and Ofher intangible assets for
impairment losses at least annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, if the asset is considered not
to be recoverable, an impairment loss is recorded to the extent the fair value of the
asset is less than its carmying amount, Recognition of an impairment loss on such
assets establishes a new cost base, which is not adjusted for subsequent recoveries in
value.

Income taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the expected future tax
consequences of temporary differences between the canrying amounts of assets and
liabifities at the balance sheet date and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are computed using curently enacted tax rates and are recorded in Other
assels and Ciher fiabilities, respectively. Income tax expense or benefit is recorded in
Incorne tax expenser/(benefil), except to the extent the change refates to transactions
recorded directly in Total shareholder's equity, Deferred tax assets are reduced by a
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valuation allowance, if necessary, to the amount that management helieves will more
likely than not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effect
of changes in tax laws and rates in the period in which changes are approved by the
relevant authority. Deferred tax assets and liabiliies are presented on a net basis for the
same tax-paying component within the same tax jurisdiction.

Other assets

Prerivative instruments used for hedging

Dervative instruments are carried at fair value. The fair values of derivative instruments
held for hedging are included as Other assets or Other ifabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet. The accounting treatment used for changes in fair value of hedging
derivatives depends on the designation of the derivative as either a fair value hedge,
cash flow hedge or hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation. Changes in fair
value representing hedge ineffectiveness are reported in Jrading revenues.

Other liabilities

Giugraniees

In cases where the Bank acts as a guarantor, the Bank recognizes in Other liabilities, at
the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligations undertaken in
issuing such guarantee, including its ongeing obligation to perform over the term of the
guarantee in the event that certain events or conditions occur,

Pansions and other post-retirvement benefits

The Bank uses the projected unit credit actuarial method to determine the present value
of its projected benefit abligations and the current and past service costs related to its
defined benefit and other post retirement benefit plans. The measurement date used by
the Bank to perform the actuarial revaluations is September 30.

Credit Suisse Group sponsars a muiti-employer defined benefit pension plan in
Switzeriand that covers eligible employees of the Bank domiciled in Switzerland. The
Barik also has single-employer defined benefit pension plans and defined contribution
pension plans in Switzeriand and other countries around the world.

For single-employer defined benefit plans, the Bank uses the projected unit credit
actuarial method to determine the present value of its projected benefit obligations and
the current and past service costs related to its defined benefit and other post-
retirement benefit plans. The measurement date used by the Bank to perform the
actuarial revaluations is September 30.

Certain key assumptions are used in performing the actuarial valuations that require
significant judgment and estimate by Bank management. The expected long-term rate
of return on plan assets is determined on a plan-by-plan basis, taking into account
asset allocation, historical rate of retumn, benchmark indices for similar type pension plan
assets, long-temn expectations of future returns and investment strategy. The discount
rate is determined based on published higi-quality long-term corporate bond indices
which most accurately reflect the amount and timing of benefits expected to be paid to
plan participants. In countries where there is no deep market in high-quality long-term
corporate bonds, government bonds (adjusted by a risk premium to reflect the
additional risk for corporate bonds) are used as a proxy. Health care cost frend rates
are determined by reviewing extemal data and the Bank’s own historical trends for
health care costs.

For single-emplayer defined benefit pension plans, unrecognized actuarial gains and
lasses in excess of 10% of the greater of the projected benefit obligation or the
market-related value of plan assets as well as unrecognized prior service costs and
transition obligations and assets are amortized to net periodic pension and other post-
retirement cost on a straight-ine basis over the average remaining service life of active
employees expected to receive benefits.
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The Bank recognizes an additional minimum liability at each measurement date for the
excess of the accumulated benedit obligation over the fair value of plan assets as an
intangible asset to the extent there are unrecognized prior service costs with any
remaining difference, net of tax, being reflected in AOCH

Share-based compensation

Through December 31, 2002, the Bank accounted for its employee share-based
compensation program under the intrinsic value method in accordance with Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, *Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (APB
25). Under APB 25, for shares granted as compensation in relation to the annual
bonus that vested immediately wpon grant, compensation expense was recognized in
the applicable performance year in which the award was eamed. For shares granted as
retention incentive awards, compensation expense was recognized over the required
service period on a straight-line basis. For share awards granted, compensation
expense was measured based on the number of shares granted and the current market
value of the share at the date of grant. No compensation expense was generally
recognized for share options because they were granted with an exercise price greater
than or equal to the market price at the date of grant.

Through December 31, 2004, the Bank accounted for all equity-based compensation
awards granted to employees and existing awards modified on or after January 1,
2003, at fair value in accordance with the fair value recognition provisions of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123, *Accounting for Stock-based
Compensation (SFAS 123) as amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-
based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure — An Amendment of FASB Statement
No. 123" (SFAS 148). Compensation expense was measured at the grant or
modification date based on the fair value of the award and recognized in the
consolidated statement of income over the required service period on a straight-line
basis. Share options outstanding as of December 31, 2002, if rot subsequently
modified, continued to be accounted for under APB 25.

Effective January T, 2008 the Bank early adopted, using the modified prospective
method, SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), *Accounting for Stock-based Compensation”
{SFAS 123R). Under the modified prospective methad for all share-based equity
awards granted to employees and existing equity awards modified on or after January
1, 2008, compensation expense is measured at grant date or modification date based
on the fair value of the number of awards for which the requisite service is expected to
be rendered and is recognized in the consolidated statemert of income over the
required service period on a straight-line basis. For all outstanding unvested equity
awards as of January 1, 2005 that were previously accounted for under APB 25,
compensation expense is measured based on the original grant date fair value of the
award and is recognized over the remaining requisite service period of each award on a
shraight-ine basis.

Compensation costs for share-based equity awards with only a service condition that
are subject to graded vesting are recognized on a straight-line basis over the service
period for the entire award. Further, upon adoption of SFAS 123R, recognition of
compensation costs is accelerated to the date an employee becomes eligible for
retirement,

The Banki has certain option plans outstanding, primarily related to the years 1999 and
prior, which include a cash settlement feature. For those plans, liability award
accounting will continue to be appiled until setflement of the awards.

Own shares and own bonds

The Bank may buy and seli Credit Suisse Group shares, own bonds and derivatives on
Credit Suisse Group shares within its normal trading and market-making activities. In
addition, the Bank may hold Credit Suisse Group shares to physically hedge
commitments arising from employee share-based compensation awards. Credit Suisse
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Group shares are reported as Trading assets, unfess those shares are held o
economically hedge share award obligations. Hedging shares are reported as Treasury
shares, resulting in a reduction to Total shareholder’s equity. Derivatives on Credit
Suisse Group shares are recorded as assets or liabilities and carried at fair value,
Dividends received on Credit Suisse Group shares and unrealized and realized gains
and iosses on Credit Suisse Group shares are recorded according to the classification
of the shares as Trading assets or Total shareholder's equity. Purchases of bonds
originally issued by the Bank are recorded as an extinguishment of debt.

Net interest income

Interest income and interest expense arising from interest-bearing assets and liabilities
are accrued and any related net deferred premiums, discounts, origination fees or costs
are amortized as an adjustment to the yield over the life of the related asset and liability.
Inferest from debt securities and dividends on equity securities carried as trading assets
and trading liabilities are recorded in Inferest and dividend income. Refer to the “Loans”
section above for detailed information on interest on loans.

Commissions and fees

Fee revenue is recognized when ali of the following criteria have been met: persuasive
evidence of an agreement exists, services have been rendered, the price is fixed or
determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. Commissions and fees eamed for
investment and portfolio management, customer trading and custody services are
recognized at the time or over the period, respectively, that the related sewice is
provided. Performance-related fees are recognized at the end of the measurement
pericd when the contractually agreed thresholds are met.

Revenues from underwriting and fees from mergers and acquisitions and other
corporate finance advisory services are recorded at the time the underlying transactions
are substantially completed and there are no other contingencies assaciated with the
fees. Transaction-related expenses are deferred until the related revenue is recognized.

2 Recently issued accounting standards

Recently adopted accounting standards

Consolidation

In June 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) ratified Emerging
issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 04-5, “Determining Whether a Gerneral Partner, or
the General Pariners as a Group, Controls a Limited Partnership or Similar Entity When
the Limited Partners Have Certain Rights” (EITF 04-5), EITF 04-5 provides a
framework for evaluating whether a general partner or a group of general partners
controls a limited parinesship and therefore should consolidate it. EITF 04-5 states that
the presumption of general partner control would be overcome only when the limited
partners have substantive ‘kick-out rights” or “participating rights.” These rights would
allow a simpte majority of the limited partners to dissolve or liquidate the partnership or
otherwise remove the general partner “without cause” or effectively participate in
significant decisions made in the ordinary course of the partnership business. EITF 04-
B was effective upon ratification for all newly formed limited partnerships and for
existing limited partnership agreements that are modified. The guidance is effective for
existing unmodified partnerships no fater than the beginning of the first reporting period
in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. The provisions of ETF 04-5 in
effect during 2005 did not have a material impact on the Bank's financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

As a result of the ratification of EITF 04-5, EITF Issue No. 96-18, “Investor's
Accounting for an Investee When the Investor Has a Majority of the Voting Interest but
the Minority Shareholder or Shareholders Have Certain Approvat or Veto Rights” (EITF
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96-16) was updated and FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. SOP 78-9-1, “Interaction of
AICPA Staternent of Position 78-9 and EITF Issue No. 04-5" (FSP SOP 78-9-1) was
issued. The amendments to EITF 96-16 were effective on a prospective basis upon
issuance, whereas, similar to EITF 04-5, FSP SOP 78-9-1 was effective upon
issuance for all new parinerships formed and for existing parinership agreements
modified after June 29, 2005, and is effective for existing unmodified parinerships no
fater than the beginning of the first reporting period in fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2005. The changes to EITF 96-16 and the provisions of FSP SOP 78-
9-1 in effect during 2005 did not have a material impact on the Bank’s financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

At January 1, 2006, the Bank expects an increase of approximately CHF 8.8 biliien o
its assets and fiabilities, primarily due to the consclidation of certain unmodified private
equity partnerships which existed prior to June 2005 as a result of adopting EITF 04-5
and FSP SOP 78-9-1.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities - An Interpretation of ARB No. 51" (FIN 46}, which requires
the Bank to consolidate all VIEs for which it is the primary benefictary, defined as the
entity that will absorb a majority of expected losses, receive a majority of the expected
residual returns, or both. In December 2003, the FASB modified FIN 46, through the
issuance of FIN 46R, to provide companies with the option of deferring the adoption of
FIN 46 to periods ending after March 15, 2004, for certain VIES. As of December 31,
2003, with the exception of certain private equity investment companies, martual funds
and VIE counterparties to certain derivatives transactions that were subject to deferraf,
the Bank consolidated all VIEs under FIN 46 for which it is the primary beneficiary. The
cumulative effect of the Bank’s adoption of FIN 46 was an after-tax loss of CHF 57
million reported separately in the consolidated statement of income as the Curmnulative
effect of accounting changes, net of tax. The cumulative effect was determined by
recording the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests in the VIEs at their camying
amounts as of the date of consolidation. The difference between the net amount added
to the consolidated statement of financial condition and the amount of previously
recognized interest represents the cumulative effect. As a result of the adoption of FIN
46R as of March 31, 2004, the Bank consclidated certain private equity funds with
third party and employee investors, resulting in an increase in assets and liabilities of
CHF 1.5 billion. The effect of initially adopting FIN 46R was reported as a cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle in the 2004 results of operations as an after
tax logs of CHF 16 milion. In addition, the Bank deconsolidated certain entities that
issue redeemable preferred securities as of March 31, 2004, See note 29 for
additional information regarding VIEs.

Bhare-based compensalion

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
{SFAS} No. 123 (Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS 123R). SFAS 123R
is effective for annual reporting pericds beginning after June 15, 2005. The Bank had
previously adopted the recognition provisions of SFAS 123, as discussed in Note 1.
The Bank early adopted SFAS 123R as of January T, 2005, applying the modified
prospective method. The most significant accounting implications of the adoption of
SFAS 123R for the Bank were as follows: (i) inclusion of forfeitures in the estimate of
compensation expense determined at the grant date rather than as they occur. The
Bank recorded a cumulative adjustment of approxireately CHE 12 miillion during the first
quarter of 2005 fo reverse the expense previously recognized on all cutstanding
unvested awards expected to be forfeited. For new grants after January 1, 2005,
forfeitures are included in the initial estimation of the compensation expense at the
grant date; (i) recognition of compensation cost for all outstanding unvested awards as
of January 1, 2005, that were previously accounted for under APB 25 and for which
na expense was previously recognized, based on the original grant-date fair value of
each award over the remaining requisite service period of the respective award. The
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recognition of this expense was not materiai; and (ii) adoption of changes to the
presentation of the statement of cash flows in accordance with the revised standard.

In a December 2006 speech, the SEC staff provided further guidance on SFAS 123R,
relating to accounting for share-based compensation awards subject to a non-
competition provision that have scheduled vesting beyond an employee’s eligibility for
early retirement. The SEC staff noted that such share-based awards should generally
be expensed over the period from grant date to the date an employee becomes eligible
for early retirement, rather than over the entire vesting, or stated service, period, unless
the non-competition provision and other factors establish an in-substance requisite
sewvice period that extends beyond the early retirement date. Based on a review of
relevant share-based awards granted during 2005, the Bank had previously concluded
that the most appropriate service period to be used for expensing those awards is the
vesting period. As a result of the December 2005 guidance and based on subsequent
discussions with the SEC staff, the Bank recorded in the fourth quarter of 2005 an
incrementat expense to reflect the full-year cost of its 2005 share-based awards. This
incremental expense reflects the attribution of the total cost of these awards over the
period from the grant date to the date the employee becomes efigible for early
retirement rather than over the vesting period that ranged from three to five years.

The impact of the Bank's change in accounting was o increase fourth-quarter and full-
year 2005 banking compensation and benefits by CHF 650 million, and to decrease
fourth-quarter and full-year 2006 net income by CHF 440 million. This non-cash
charge, recorded as an adjustment to the consolidated results, represented the
recognition of compensation expense for share-based awards granted in 2005,
principaily to employees in the: Institutional Securities and Wealth & Asset Management
segments, that otherwise would have been recorded generally over vesting periods of
three to five years.

The share-based awards granted in March 2006 provide for early retirement eligibility
no earfier than two years after the award grant date, These awards will be recorded as
compensation expenses over the period from grant date to the date an employee
becomes eligible for early refirement if earlier than the three to five year vesting period.

Loans

In Decermber 2003, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)
issued Statement of Position (SOF) 03-3, “Accounting for Certain Loans ar Debt
Securities Acquired in a Transfes” (SOP 03-3). SOP 03-3 provides guidance on the
accounting for differences between cantractual and expected cash flows from the
purchaser's initial investment in loans of debt securities acquired in a transfer, if those
differences are attributable, at least in part, to credit quality. Among other things, SOP
03-3: (i) prohibits the recognition of the excess of contractual cash flows over cash
flows expected to be collected through an adjustment of yield, loss accrual or valuation
allowance at the time of purchase; () requires that subsequent increases in expected
cash flows be recognized prospectively through an adiustment of yield; and (iil} requires
that subsequent decreases in expected cash flows be recogrized as an impairment. In
addition, SOP 03-3 prohibits the creation or cammying over of a valuation allowance in
the initial accounting of all loans and debt securifies within its scope that are acquired in
a transfer. SOP 03-3 became effective for loans or debt securities acquired in fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2004. The adoption of SOP 03-3 did not have a
material impact on the Bank's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Investment securities

In Movember 2003, the EITF reached a consensus on certain additional quantitative
and qualitative disclosure requirements in connection with its deliberations of tssue 03-
1, “The Meaning of Other-than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain
Investments” (EITF 03-1), which also discussed the impairment model for available-for-
sale and held-to-maturity securities under SFAS No. 115 *Accounting jor Certain
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Investments in Debt and Equity Securities”. The impairment recognition guidance of
EITF 03-1 was subsequently amended through the publication of FSP No. FAS 115-1
“The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impaifment and lts Application to Ceitain
Investrnents” (FSF FAS 115-1), but the disclosure requirements promulgated under
EITF 03-1 were retained in FSP FAS 115-1. The Bank has adopted the disclosure
requirements of EITF 03-1. See note 10 for additional information.

Derivatives

In April 2003, the FASE issued SFAS No. 143, *Amendment of Staternent 133 on
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (SFAS 143), which amended and
clarified the accounting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative
instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities under SFAS No.
133, “Accounting for Derivatives and Hedging Activities” (SFAS 133). Specifically,
SFAS 149 darified the circumstances under which a contract with an initial net
investment meets the characteristics of a derivative and when a derivative contains a
financing component that warrants special reporting in the consolidated statement of
cash flows. Cerlain derivative instruments entered into of modified after June 30, 2003
which the Bank determined contained a financing element at inception and where the
Bank was deemed the borrower, have been included as a separate component within
Cash flows from financing activities. Prior fo July 1, 2003, these dedvative instruments
were included within Cash flows from operating activities. The adoption of SFAS 149
did not have a material impact on the Bank's financiai position, results of operations or
cash flows,

Pensicns

In December 2003, the FASB revised SFAS No. 132, *Employers’ Disclosures about
Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits” (SFAS 132R). SFAS 132R retained the
disclosure requirements from the original statement and requires additional disclosures,
SFAS 132R was effective for financial statements with fiscal years ending after
December 19, 2003, and the interim disclosures have been raquired for periods
beginning after December 15, 2003. The Bank has adopted the new disclosure
requirements of SFAS 132R. See note 23 for additional information.

Classification of Habilities and equily

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial
Instrurnents with Characteristics of both Liabilites and Equity” (SFAS 150). SFAS 160
establishes standards for an issuer's classification of certain financial instruments that
have both liability and equity characteristics and imposes additional disclosure
requirements. Effective September 30, 2003, the Bank adopted SFAS 150 for
financial instruments entered inte or modified after May 31, 2003. The adoption of
SFAS 150 did not have a material impact on the Bank s financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

Asset Retirement Obligations

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, *Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations” (SFAS 143}, which addresses financial accounting and reporting for
obligations associated with the: refirement of tangible long-lived assets and the
associated asset retirement costs. SFAS 143 requires that the fair value of a liablity for
an asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period in which it is incurred and that
the assaciated asset retirement costs be capitalized as part of the canying amount of
the long-lived asset. SFAS 143 became effective for fiscal years beginning after June
15, 2002, The effect of initially adopting SFAS 143 was reported as a cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle in the 2003 results of operations as an after-
tax loss of CHF 21 million.

Standards o be gdopted in future periods
In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Eiror
Corrections, a Replacement of APB Opinion No. 20, 'Accounting Changes’ (APB 20)
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and FASB Statement No. 3, ‘Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial
Statements (an Amendment of APB Opinion No. 28, ‘Interim Financial Reporting')"”
(SFAS 154). SFAS 154 requires retrospective application, unless impracticable, to
prior-period financial statements for voluntary changes in accounting principles and
changes required by an accounting pronouncement in the unusual circumstances in
which the pronouncement does not include specific transition provisions. The statement
also requires that a change in depreciation, amortization, or depletion method for long-
lived, non-financial assets should be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate
effected by a change in accounting principle (e, as a retrospective application), The
quidance for reporting the comrection of an eror in previously issued financial
statements and the change of an accounting estimate will not change from APB 20.
SFAS 154 is effective for accounting changes and comections of errors made in fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2005. The Bank expects no immediate impact on
its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption of SFAS 154.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 185, *Accounting for Certain Hybrid
Financial Instruments” (SFAS 158), which amends SFAS 133 and SFAS No. 140,
“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of
Liabitities” (SFAS 140}, Under SFAS 155, hybrid financial instruments that contain
embedded derivatives that would otherwise require bifurcation may be accounted for at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in the income statement. The fair value
designation may be applied on an instrument-by-instrument basis; however, the election
to apply fair vaiue accounting is imevocable. SFAS 155 will be effective for those
instruments acquired or issued on or after an entity's fiscal year beginning after
September 15, 2006, but early adoption is permitted as of the beginning of a fiscal
year for which an entity has not previously issued interim financial statements. SFAS
155 will allow limited retrospective application for existing bifurcated hybrid financial
instruments. The Bank is currently evaluating the potential impact from adoption of
SFAS 155.

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, “Accounting for Servicing of Financial
Assets” (SFAS 156), which amends SFAS 140. SFAS 156 will require that all
separately recognized servicing rights after the effective date be initially measured at fair
value, and will permit separately recognized servicing rights to be accounted for at fair
vaue in subsequent periods, with changes in fair value recognized in the income
statement. SFAS 156 will permit an irrevocable election to apply fair value accounting
for dlasses of senvicing rights based on the different valuation and risk characteristics of
the underlying assets and the way the economic risks are managed. SFAS 156 will be
effective on a prospective basis for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2008,
however early adoption is permitted as of the beginning of a fiscal year for which an
entity has not previously issued interim financial statements. SFAS 156 will also allow
limited retrospective application for existing separately recognized servicing rights. The
Bank is currently evaluating the potential impact from adoption of SFAS 156.

3 Business developments and subsequent evenis

The Bank had no significant divestitures in 2005 and 2004. The Bank had one
significant divestiture for the year ended December 31, 2003, which is discussed
below.

Divestitures

Effective May 1, 2003, the Bank sold its clearing and execution platform, Pershing
LLC, to The Bank of New York Company, Inc. for CHF 2.7 billion in cash, the
repayment of a CHF 653 milion subordinated loan and a contingent payment of up to
CHF 68 million based on future performance. In connection with this transaction, the
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Bank recognized a pre-tax loss of CHF 275 million, of which CHF 246 million was
recorded in 2002 and CHF 29 million was recorded in 2003.

Subsequent events
There were no material events subsequent to December 31, 2005 that would require
disclosure or adjustment fo the consolidated financial staterments.

4  Discontinued operations

The results of operations of enities dispased of or classified as held-for-sale were
reported as Jncome/{loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax in the consolidated
statements of income for all years presented. There were no discontinued operations in
2000 and 2004,

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, no assets or hiabilities classified as held-for-sale
were related to discontinued operations.

The following table summarizes the results of discontinued operations, including gains and losses on sales:

Year ended December 31, in CHF m

2003
Total revenues 336
Totalexpenses o o)
Income before taxes from discontinued operations ' )
Gain/(Joss) on disposal of stock [02)]
Income tax experse/berefi) ®
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax 19

5 Segment information
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Overview

The Bank is a global financial services company domiciled in Switzerland. In 2005, the
Bank's activities were operated and managed in four segments. The segment
information reflects this operational and management structure.

Private Banking provides wealth management products and services to high-net-worth
individuals in Switzerland and around the world.

Corporate & Retail Banking offers banking products and semvices to corporate and retail
clients in Switzeriand.

Institutional Securities provides securities and investrnent banking sevices to
institutional, corporate and govemment clients worldwide.

Wealth & Assel Management offers international asset management services —
including a broad range of investment funds — to institutional and private investors. §
also provides financial advisory services to wealthy indviduals and cormporate cfients.

Inter-segment revenue sharing and cost allocation

Respansibility for each product is allocated to a segment, which records all related
reverues and expenses, Revenue-sharing agreements govern the compensation
received by one segment for generating revenue on behalf of anather. These
agreements are negotiated periodically by the relevant segments on a product-by-
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product basis. Allocated revenues are added to, or deducted from, the revenue line item
of the respective segments.

Certain administrative, processing and information technology services may be based in
one segment but shared by other segments. The segment supplying the service
receives compensation from the recipient segment on the basis of service level
agreements and transfer payments. Service level agreements are negotiated periodically
by the relevant segments with regard to each individual product or service. The costs of
shared services and their related allocations are added to, or deducted from, Other
expenses for the respective segments.

The aim of the revenue-sharing and cost allocation agreements is fo reflect the pricing
structure of unrelated third-party transactions. Where this is not possible, the
agreements are negotiated by the affected segments.

Adjustments represent certain consolidating entries and balances induding those
relating to items that are managed but not legally owned by the Bank and vice-versa
and certain expenses that have not been allocated to the segments. See note 2 for
more information.

Taxes

Taxes are calculated individually for each segment on the basis of average tax rates
across its various geographic markets, as if the segment operated on a stand-afone
basis.

The following table presents selected line items relating to the Bank’s operating segments:

Comparate & Wealih &

Private Retal  institutional Asset Credit
in CHF m Banking Banking Securiies Management  Adjustmenls " Suisse
2003
Net revenues 6,499 3,293 12,190 2,990 (1698 23274
Income from continuing operations before taxes, minority interests,
extraordinary items and cumulative effect of accounting changes 2,482 750 1,544 243 (999) 4,020
Net income 1,936 A___asm 892 233 {874) 2,773
2004
Net revenues 7,170 3,348 13,1202  4202=* (2,070) 25770
Income from continuing operations before taxes, minority interests,
extraordinary ftems and cumulative effect of accouniing changes 3,033 1175 1,780 = 1,663 (1,278) 6,373
Net income 2473 901 1,313 530 (1,079 4,138
Total assets, December 31 188,697 99460 707318 12,664 (110,162) 898,586

" Adjustments represent certain consolidating entries and balances including those relating to items that are managed but are not legalty owned by the Bank and vice-versa
and certain expenses that were not alfocated to the segments. Including CHF 379 million and CHF 128 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively, in minorily interest
revenues relating primanty to the FIN 46R consolidation.  ® Including CHF 1,695 million and CHF 960 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively, in mincrity interest revenues
relating primarily to the FIN 46R consclidation.  * Including CHF 371 mitlion and CHF 123 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively, in minority interest revenues/expenses
relating primarily to the FIN 46R consolidation. ™ Including CHF 1,671 million and CHF 949 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively, in minority interest revenues/expenses
relating primarily to the FIN 46R consolidation.

Credit Suisse Annual Report 2005 47




MNoisy o the

sudaied Hnancial slatements

Segment reporting by geographic location
The following table sets forth the consolidated results by geographic location, based on the lacation of the office recording the
transactions. This presentation does not reflect the way the Bank is managed.

Europe Asia/

(excluding Pacific/
Year ended December 31, in CHF m Switzeand  Switzedand) Americas Alfrica Total
2003
Net revenues N B - 7,026 8,135 8471 1,642 23,274
Tdtaleﬁbéﬁées g . et o e e (5'798) - (4‘7,90,) wo15 (1451) (19254)
Income/(loss) from continuing operations before taxes, mincrity interests,
extraordinary lems and curnulative effect of accounting changes 1,998 3,345 (744) 191 4,020
2004
Netreverwes . 7281 632 10188 1963 25770
Total expenses B4 (54 7047 (1560) (19,397

Income from continuing operations before taxes, minority interests,

extraordinary tems and cumutative effect of ace ch 1,612 1,211 3,141 409

6,373

¥ Includes provision for credit losses and total operating expenses.

The foilowing table sets forth details of assets by gecgraphical location. The analysis of premises and equipment is based on the
location of the reporting entities, whereas the analysis of total assets reflects the customors' domicile.

Europe Asia/
(excluding Pacific/
December 31, in CHF m Switzerland  Swatzerland) Americas Alfrica Total
2004
Premises and equipment - _ 2,842 1,085 716 134 4777
Toga| asse's o : . et st e e . _— 1734 505 Qﬁé;é{gs ............ . S
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6  Interest and dividend income and interest expense

The following table sets forth the details of interest and dividend income and interest expense:

Year ended December 31, in CHF m 2004 2003

Interest income on loans 4,751 5,353

Interest income on mvestment secunhes 374 1Y
Dmdend income from mvestment securrtles _______ i BT

Interest and dwldend income on trading assets 12,331 10784
Central bank funds sold securmes purchased under resale agreements and secuniles borrowmg transactlons 6,729 5,248

Cther 1 451 1,299

Total interest and dividend income 3 25,637 23,419

Interest expense on deposits B (3 956) ___(5-5-82}
Interest expense on short- {erm bomowings @86 (337
Interest expense on tradlng liabilities (5955) (4,899)
C;n_tr; bank funds purchased securrhes sold under repurchase agreements and secuntues Iendlng transactjons ' '(5'.889) (4.655)
Interest expense on long-term debt o : ' (9,410) . .{9;308)
Total interest expense (18,363)  (15,897)
Net interest income 7,274 7529

7 Trading activities

The following table sels forth the details of trading-related revenues:

Year ended December 31, in CHF m 2004 2003

Inferest rate products 455 420

Equrty/ mdex-related products “1 820 1,5298

Foreign exchange_products _ 1,327 851

e ki - o o
Trading revenues h 3,495 2, 677

Interest and drwdend income on tradmg assels _Ti 3§T h 10 784

Interest expense on tradlng liabilties B (5 255) 4829 829)
Trading interest income, net 7.076 5,955

Total trading-related revenues 10,5671 8,632

The following table summarizes the details of trading assets and liabilities:

December 31, in CHF m 2004
Trading assets

Debt securites 173,262
Equlty securities ' 87.958
Derivative instruments 51,667
ot ——_— 18,118
Total trading assets 331,005
Trading liabilities

Short positions 92,370
Dervative comente T 5'7 566
Total trading liabilities 149,635

" Including convertible bonds.
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8 Norinterest revenues and expenses

The following table sets forth the defails of commissions and fees:

Year ended December 31, in CHF m 2004 2003
Commissions from lending business B - 1,019 865
Investrent and portfolio management fees - - T 3874 3401
____Qémrﬁi%i?ns for other secuﬁbes buéin_eﬂfss N B 165 o .1.947
_Clc‘)'rhﬁii'sisigr]s;r')aﬂfgg_s_‘ from fiduciary activities o B 4,039“ 3,505
Underwriting fees ' 2426 2503
Brokerage fees 8123 2842
Commissions, brokerage, securities undemwriting and other securities activities B 5,549 5,345
Fees for other customer services 1,746 2,144
Commissions and fees 12,353 11,939
The foflowing table sets forth the details of other revenues:
Year ended December 31, in CHF m 2004 2003
Gains/(losses) from loans held-for-sale L0 (09

Gains/(losses) from Iongfli\':ed assets hekd for-sale 23

!r;come}’{bss) from-equity method investments . 18
Gains/(osses) from other investments a 430
o e e
Other revenues 2,638 1,106

The following table sets forth the details of compensation and benefits:

Year ended December 31, in CHF m 2003

Salaries and bonuses 9,363

Social security &6

G e e s

Compensation and benefits 11,650 10,706

The fcllowing table sets forth the details of other expenses:

Year ended December 31, in CHF m 2004 2003

Occupancy expenses 809 816

IT, machinery, ete. oo 475 456

_Deﬁreciaﬁp_n eXpenses ] 919 1,9-1.;}

Amortization and impairrment of other intaﬁgible assets 55 350

Provisiohs .and losses ¥ o ' S . 275 321
Commission expenses 1,659 ' '17,873

Travel and enter-tainr.'neni 449 o 3867
Professional services C15TT 1526
Other ' 1481 1541
Other expenses 7879 7,986

" Includes provisions for lfigation.
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g  Securities borrowed, lent and subject to repurchase agreements

The following table summarizes the securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell, at their respective carrying
values:

December 31, in CHF m 2004
Central bank funds sold and securities purchased under resale agrgeents 140,459
Deposits paid for securities borrowed o 126,697
Total central bank funds sold, securities purchased under resale agreements,

and securities borrowing transactions 267,156

The following summarizes the securities lent or sold under agreements to repurchase, at their respective carrying values:

Decernber 31, in CHF m
Central bank funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase

Deposits received for securities lent

Total central bank funds purchased, securities sold under repurchase agreements,
and securities lending transactions

239,787

The maximum menth-end amount of securities purchased under agreements 1o resell
was CHF 415,176 million and CHF 348,875 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively.
The average amount of securities purchased under agreements to resell during the year
was CHF 344,964 million and CHF 297,771 milion in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements represent coliateralized financing
transactions used to eam net interest income, increase liquidity or facilitate trading
activity, These instruments are collateralized principally by government securities and
money market instruments and have terms ranging from ovemight to a longer or
unspecified period of time. The Bank monitors the fair value of securities received or
detivered on a daily basis. For reverse repurchase agreements, the Bank requests
additional securities or the retum of a portion of the cash disbursed when appropriate in
response to a decline in the market value of the securities received. Similarly, the retumn
of excess securities or additional cash is requested when appropriate in response to an
increase in the market value of securities sold under repurchase agreements.

Securities borrowing and securities lending transactions are principally collateralized by
cash or marketable securities. Securities borrowed and securifies fent that are
collateralized by cash are recorded at the amount of cash advanced and received.
Securities lending transactions against non-cash collateral in which the Bank has the
right to resell or repledge the collateral received are recorded at the fair value of the
collateral initially received. For securities lending transactions, the Bank receives cash or
securities collateral in an amount generally in excess of the market value of securiies
lent. The Bank monitors the market value of securities borrowed and securities lent on
a daily basis and additional collaterai is obtained as necessary.

In the event of counterparty default, the repurchase agreement or securities lending
agreement provides the Bank with the right to liquidate the collateral held. In the Bank's
narmal course of business, substantially all of the collateral received that may be sold or
repledged has been sold or repledged as of December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

Credit Buisse Annual Report 2005 51




Notes to the consalidated financial staternerds

10 Investment securities

The following tables summarize the detaits of debt and equity investment securities:

December 31, in CHF m 2004
Debt securities held-to-maturity 5,209
Securities avadable-for-sale 8218
Total investment securities 13,427

December 31, 2005, in CHF m

Debt securities issued by foreign govemments

Debt securities held-to-maturity

Debt securifies issued by the Swiss federal, cantonal or local governmental entities
Debt securities issued by foreign govemments ‘ o

Corporate debt securities

Other '

Debt securities available-for-sale
Equity securities available-for-sale

Securities available-for-sale
Gross Gross
Amgrized unveglized unrealized
Decernber 31, 2004, in CHF m cos! gains losses Fair value
Debt securities issued by foreign govermments 5203 3 0
Debt securities held-to-maturity ~ sa08 3 o
Debt securities issued by the Swiss federal, cantona or local govemmental entities - ) 295 4 I 228
f)ierljsecﬁﬁ{jes issusd E)y foreign' Qoverhments . I 7,046 74 30 7.090
Corporate debt securities T . ' 560 5 0 565
ther o e et e e+ e Como g o e
Debt securities available-for-sale ] . sm 9 31 8,171
Equity securities available-for-sale T3 4 o T ar
Securities available-for-sale 8,144 105 31 8,218

The fellowing table sets forth gross unrealized losses on investment securities and the related fair value, segregated by
investment category and length of time such investments have been in a continuaus unrealized loss position:

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total

December 31, 2005, in CHF m

Debt securities issued by foreign governments
Debt securities heid-to—lp_aturi-ty i

Debt securifies issued by foreign govemments

Debt securities available-for-sale

Securities available-for-sale
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Less than 12 months 12 manths ar more Total
Gross Gross

ynrealized uniealized
December 31, 2004, in CHF m Fair value losses Fair value losses Fair vaie
Debt securities issued by foreign governments 888 o 863
Debt securities Vheld-to—maturity ) 83 6 )
Debt set_:uri’a'es issued by the Swiss federal, cantonat or local gqvemm_e_r_\}g! enfities 10 o Vﬁ- 0
Debt secun’ues |ssued by foreign govemments o “ . 10‘28# _ s 04 '3,3_1.21 - 30
E)ebt securities available-for-sale 1,0;8 T ) ﬁ_ZTl o 3:323 o 31
Equity securities available-for-sale 15 0 15 0
Securities available-for-sale 1,053 24 3,338 31

Management determined that the unrealized losses on debt securities are primarily
attributable 1o general market interest, credit spread or exchange rate movements. No
impaiment has been recorded as the Bank has the intent and ability to hald the debt
securities for a reasonable period of time sufficient for a forecasted recovery of the
decline in market value below cost.

The following table sets forth the proceeds from sales and realized gains and losses from available-for-sale securities:

Debt securities Equily securities
Year ended December 31, in CHF m 2004 2003
Proceeds from sales 589 506
e géins B e et . 41 o
Eéalized losses (56) - ' ,@0)

The Bank recogsized other-than-temporary impairments on available-for-sale and held-
to-maturity securities of CHF 28 million, CHF 53 million and CHF 30 million in 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively.

The following table presents the amortized cost, fair value and average yield of debt securities classified as available-for-sale and
held-to-maturity:

Debt securities held-to-maturity Debt securities available-{or-sale

Amartized Average Amortized Average
December 31, 2003, n CHF m cosl Fair value yield cost Fair value yield
Due within 7 year 1,304 1,305 3.17% 3,276 3,973 2.02%
buffom 1 tobyeas T s TUwa aoaw 7624 1606 280%
Due from 5 to 10 years ) R T I 2 10987 11,058 33T%
Due a,ﬂ,er o yéarg i P . e i . 0 - . ..O.. e n/a 7 - ,8 460%
Total debt securities 2,040 2,042 2.72% 21,894 21,945 2.88%

Unrealized gains and losses, which represent the difference between fair value and
amortized cost, are recorded in AOC! within Tolal shareholder’s equity, net of income
taxes.
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11 Other investments

The following table summarizes details of other investments:

December 31, in CHF m 2004
Equity method investments 949
Non-mmarketable equrty séc_lfrifie;s._‘f o - YTy
Rea! és‘tate héld for investment S 429 .
Total othet investments 5%

" Includes private equity and restricted stock investrments, as well as certain investments in non-marketable mutual funds for which the Bank has neither significant influence

nor control over the investee.

12 Loans

Gross unrealized losses on non-marketable equity sectrities, which have been in a
continuous unrealized loss position for less than 12 months, amounted to CHF 2
million. At December 31, 2005, these securities had a fair value of CHF 10 million.
There are no non-marketable equity securities that have been in a continuous
unrealized loss position for more than 12 months,

Accumulated depreciation related to Real estate held for investment amounted to CHF
380 million and CHF 416 million for 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The following table sets forth details of the domestic (Switzertand) and foreign loan portfolio:

December 31, in CHF m

Banks
Cammércial
éoﬁéuﬁer -
Public authorties
Lease financings

Switzerlanﬂ_'_

Banks

Commercial
Consumer

Public authorities
I;ease -fihanciﬁgs -

Foreign
Loans, gross

Deferred expenses, net
Allowance for loan losses

Total loans, net
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The following table sets forth the movements in the allowance for loan losses:

in CHF m 2004 2003
Balance January 1 B 4154 G 882
New provisions _ 755 R 604
Releases of prov'|'5|ons S - (685} 1 037)
Net addltlons/(releases) charged to income statement ) B - 70 57
Gross write-offs 1612 (3229
e R S
Net wite-offs (558 __@176)
Allowances acqmred /(deconsohdated) ) ) (?4_)_ ‘2_7
Provisions for interest 8 148
Formgn currency franslation impact and other adjustmems net ' (34 (Qg}i)
Balance December 31 2,697 4,154

The following table sets forth details of impaired loans, with or without a specific allowance. A loan is considered impaired when
it is considered probable that the Bank will not collect ali amounts due under the loan terms.

December 3t, in CHF m

With a specific allowance
Without a specrhc aJIowance_m '
Total impaired loans, gross
Specific allowance for impaired loans °

1 Included in the allowances for loan losses.

As descrived in note 1, the allowance for loan losses is estimated considering a variety
of sources of information including, as appropriate, discounted cash flow analyses, fair
value of collateral held less disposal costs and historical loss experience.

The following table sets forth additional loan infarmation:

Year ended December 31, in CHF m 2003
Average balance of impaired loans 8,170
Interest income which was recogmz ed B B 46
Interesi income: recogmzed ona cash ba5|s e ‘ 107
Net gams/(losses) on the sale of loans 59
Tota] non- per‘ermlng loans ) 4,234

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Bank did not have any material commitments to
lend additional funds to debtors whose loan terms have been modified in troubled debt
restructurings.
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13 Premises and equipment

The following table sets forth the details of premises and equipment:

Decernber 31, in CHF m

Buildings and improvements
Leasehcld improvem;_ents
Software

Equipment

Premises and equipment

Accumulated depreciation

(5,5652)

Total premises and equipment, net

4,777

14 Goodwill

The carrying values of the Bank’s premises and equipment is tested for impairment on
a regular basis, This revaluation process in 2004 identified certain premises and
equipment which had to be written down to their fair values, establishing new cost
bases. As a consequence, impairment charges of CHF 34 million were recarded in
2004. In 2005 and 2003, no such impairments were recorded.

The following table sets {orth the maovements of goadwill by segment:

Corporate & Weallth &

Private Retail Institutional Asset Credit
in CHE m Banking Banking Securlies  Management Suisse
Balance December 31,2003 o 271 35 6,989 2,567 9,862
Goodwil acquired durng year o 2 0 0 P)
Other ¥ (13) 0 (544) (189) (746)
Balance December 31, 2004 ) 258 37 6445 2378 9118
OiRag el i

Balance December 31,2008

" Primarity due to foreign currency translation impact on non-CHF-deneminated goodwill.
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15 Other intangible assets

The following table sets forth the details of other intangible assets:

December 31, in CHF m

Net carrying
amount lizaticn amount

Amortized other intangible assets (finite life}
Tradenames/trademarks

_C_I_i_gnt relaﬁopshiprsr

Other

Total amortized other intangible assets

Unarnortized other infangible assets (indefinite life)

Total other intangible assets

o L @ 24
R _s12 ey 352
0 18

633 (239) 304

84 - 84

717 239) 478

The increase in the Bank's amortized and unamortized other intangible assets in 2005
is primarily related to foreign exchange fluctuations in other intangible assets
denominated in US dallars.

As a result of its annual valuation analysis performed on other intangible assets, the
Bank determined that the camying value of a trademark, used in Wealth & Asset
Management's private equity business, exceeded the expected future cash flows from
management fees. As such, the Bank recorded an impaimment loss of CHF 13 million
for the year ended December 31, 2005.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, management decided to transfer the High
Net Worth (HNW) asset management business from the Institutional Securities
segment to the Wealth & Asset Management segment. A valuation analysis was
performed in 2003, and the Bank determined that the carrying value of its intangible
assets relating to the management contracts and frade names associated with the
HNW business exceeded their expected future cash flows. As a result, the Bank
recorded an impairment loss of CHF 270 milion for the year ended December 31,
2003.

The aggregate amortization expenses for 2005, 2004 and 2003 were CHF 96 million,
CHF 49 million and CHF 80 million, respectively.

The following table sets forth the estimated amortization expenses for other intangible assets far the next five years:

Year ending December 31, in CHF m

2006
2007
2010

L5
50

44
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16 (Other assets

The following table sets forth the details of cther assets:

December 31, in CHF m 2004
Cash coltateral on derivalive instruments 14,344
Derrvat:ve mstmmenf.sused fcr hedglng _____ 3852
Brokerage receivables B - ' 30,734
Assets held-for-sale ] 10,643

ofwhichleans 10477

ofwhihrealeste 166
Imerestand fees receable 484
Defered taxassets 4151
Prepaid expenses ' - - o 1)
Other 3,459
Total other assets 72,555

17 Deposits

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Bank held CHF 20.8 billion and CHF 10.5
billion, respectively, of loans held-for-sale. The increase of CHF 10.3 billon in 2005 is
primarily related to mortgage loans acquired for subsequent securitization. The majority
of the portfolio is comprised of floating rate commercial mortgages, which are
purchased or originated with the intent of securitizations. Loans held-for-sale are valued
at the lowes of cost or market,

The Bank acquired certain ivans during 2005 for which there was, at acquisition,
evidence of detericration of credit quality since crigination and for which it was probable
at acquisition that all contractually required payments would net be collected. Those
loans are held-for-sale and accounted for at the lower of cost or market vaiue,
consistent with other loans held-for-sale. No vield adjustment is recorded for the
anticipated receipt of excess cash flows over the acquisition amount as the Bank
cannot reasonably estimate the cash flows which ultimately may be collected. The
cammying amounts and rernaining contractually required payments for those loans at their
respective acquisition dates totaled CHF 1.1 billion and CHF 1.5 billian, respectively,
and the carrying amounts as of December 31, 2005 totaled CHF 270 million.

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Bank had a portfolio of CHF 63 million and
CHF 166 miltion, respectively, of real estate held-for-sale. These assets are valued at
the lower of the camying amount or fair value less cost to sell.

The following table sets forth the detaiis of Swiss and foreign deposifs. The designation of Swiss versus foreign deposils is
based upon the location of the office where the deposit is recorded.

2005 2004
U Bwitzer Y Swier
December 31, in CHF m Lo g fand Foreign Tola!
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits E 5.343 5,035 70 5,_755
Interest—bearing' demand depdsits - 48,764 43,90'? ' 9550 53,457
Savings deposits 37613 oY i 37,015 15 37,030
Time deposits 47,3267 195283 242609 38036 153063 101,009
Total deposits 137,046 210:293 347,330 123993 183,348 287,341
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As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, CHF 258 million and CHF 1,753 million,
respectively, of overdrawn deposits were reclassified as loans. As of December 31,
20085, the Bank had CHF 241 billion of time deposits in denominations of CHF
130,000 or more.
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Long-term debt

The following table sets forth the amount of senior and subordinated long-term debt:

December 31, in CHF m 2004
Seriordebt e | B0.047
Subordinated debt 14,674

Total long-term debt

125,860 947N

The Bank issues both CHF- and non-CHF-denominated fixed and variable rate bonds.
The weighted-average coupon is based on the contractual terms, although for zero
coupon bonds the yield to maturity is applied. The Bank uses derivative contracts,
primarily interest rate and currency swaps, as hedges for some of its debt issues. The
effects of these derivatives are not included in the interest rate range on the associated
debt. Included are various equity-tinked and other indexed instruments. The interest on
such instruments reflects the effective interest rate affer bifurcation of the embedded
derivative instrument.

The increase of CHF 32 billion in senior debt during 2005 is mainly related to the
issuance of structured products and the strengthening of the US dollar against the
Swiss franc.

The following table sets forth maturities and interest rates for senior and subordinated debt:

December 31, in CHF m

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter

Senior debt
Fixed rate

580 8372 12513 8933 5721 218

Veriable rate

 Intorest rates (fange in %) _
Subordinated debt
Fixed rate

Varablerale
Interest rates (range in %)

5906 4504 11,087 4024 10460 12,949

60-150 00900 00120 00220 00-150 00100

1803 204 1084 2003 1529 4,009
185 447 169 0 0 676

60207 0078 0065 0083 0083 00-103

Total long-term debt

12,835 15,467 25,013 14,960 17,710 39,875

The Bank, through various broker-dealer and bank subsidiaries, has negotiated secured
bilateral committed credit arrangements with various third party banks. As of December
31, 2005, the Bank maintained ten such credit faciliies that collectively totaled USD
4.5 bilion. These facilities require various broker-dealer and bank subsidiaries to pledge
unencumbered marketable securities to secure any borowings. Borrowings under each
facility would bear interest at short-tem rates related fo either the US Federal Funds
rate, LIBOR or other money market indices and can be used for general corporate
purposes. The faciliies contain customary covenants that the Bank believes will not
impair its ability to obtain funding.
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16 Other liabilities

The following table sets forth the details of other liabilities:
December 31, in CHF m

Cash: collateral on derivative instruments

Derwatlve mstruments used for hedgmg

Sk pagaties

Provisions » -

Restucturing labiifies
Interest and fees payab!e )
Comert tax labliles
Deferred tax liabiliies
Other 7 7
Total ather liabilities

" Includes provisions for off-balance sheet risks of CHF 127 m and CHF 124 m as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

20 Restructuring liabilities

The following table sets forth the movements of restructuring liabilities:

2005 2004 2003
inCHE m far. ] : Persannel Other Tatal Personnei Other Tatal
Balance January 1 1 10 20 42 34 76
Net ad.dtttons/(réléaé‘;es} d‘\arged o T T e T
to income statement 0 @ @ 7 (9 (16)
Wiite- oﬁs/recovenes net w ) (é). . (2) (10) (30) ’ (16} (46}
Transfers, foragn exchange ) 0 00 5 i 6
Balance December 31 0 5 8 10 10 20

" Includes cash paid or otherwise settled.

21 Accumulated other comprehensive income

The following table sets forth the movements of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Gains/ Unrealized Minimum  Accumulated

(losses)on Cumulative gains/ pension  other com-

cash flow {ranstation (losses) fiabfity  prehensive

in CHF m hedges  adjustment  on secuities  adjustment income/floss)
Batance December 31, 2002 © (1,453) 133 (386) (1,712)
Increase/(decrease) g o er 88 (7329)
Reclassification adjusfments mcluded in net profrt . o o gy 0o (18
B e | Dgcemberls_l)g_OO o ) o 91 (Q 497) 262 8 (Q 462)
Increase/(decrease) _ _ L A L
Reclassification ad;ustrnents in¢luded in net profit - N ] B1) 6 {120) 0 (195)

Balance December 31 2004
lfv:rease/{decrease) '
Balance Decembar 31 2005

28 (3,143) 126 (3200 (3,309)
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22  Income laxes

The following table sets forth the details of income from continuing operations before taxes in Switzerland and fereign countries:

Year ended Decernber 31, in CHF m X 2003
Switzerland 2 1,928
Foreign 2792
Income from continuing operations before taxes, minority interests ) o
extraordinary items and cumulative effect of accounting changes 3373 fQQQ
The following fable sets forth the details of current and deferred taxes:
Year ended December 21, in CHF m 2004 2003
Switzerland  b47 377
Foreign . e 827
Current income tax expense 1,403 ____1_.2“0i
Sweland o 86
Foreign ' B (340)  (129)
Deferred income tax expense/(benefit) (297) (17
Income tax expense 1,106 1,087
Income tax expense/(benefit) on discontinued operations o] @
Income tax expense/(berefit) on cumulative effect of accounting changes ‘ 0 T4
Income tax expense/| (benef'rt)mr-;i:;c“);‘t.éd in shareﬁéidé..r;.é equlty relatéd to o e o
Cumulative transtation adustment B (89} 0
Unrez;iéed géj%s/(los;é-s) on securities {4 @
* Minimum pension liabiity adjustment o 20 h (7)
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges . i o )
Share based compensation and treasury shares B ) (1 66) o 58
The following table is a reconciliation of taxes computed at the Swiss statutory rate:
Year ended December 31, in CHE m 2004 2003
Income tax expense/(benefit) computed at the statutory tax rate of 22% (25%: 2004 and 2003) " 1__,593 1,006
Increase/(decrease) in income taxes resulting frorﬁ: ' . e T
Foreign tax rate differential 77 (105}
Nonfdedu&ibilé:amortiz_gﬁqn of mtanglble .e_l_gs_ets and goodwnll_lmpawmeni 1 o 10
" Other non-deductble expenses ) S 195 345
' Additional taxable income _ 195 ] 228
" Lower taxed income _ (589) @40)
" Income {axable o mirorty interests? . (268) [}
; Changes e A e el i
. Changes in defered tax valuation allowance ? 087 (18)
" Oher oERE ez bl . (17;1.} 5
Income tax expense 1,106 1,087
[ 2005, following changes in the Zurich cantonal tax law, the statutory 1ax rate applicable to the Bank decreased to 2%, * Representing the tax benefit from non-
taxable income arising from investments that are required to be conselidated under FIN 46R.  * In 2005, there was a tax benefit of CHF 325 million resulting from the

release of valualion allowances on deferred tax assets on net operating loss carry-forwards, offset by additions.  * Included in 2005 and 2004 is an amount of CHF 131
milion and CHF 206 million, respectively, relating to the refease of tax contingency accruals following the favorable resolution of tax matters. 2006 also included & charge of
CHF 146 million relating to the reversal of deferred tax assets on net operating loss carry-forwards, which was offsel by an equivalent release of valuation allowances on
deferred lax assets on net operating loss carry-forwards (refer footnote 3).

At December 31, 2005, the Bank had accumulated undistrbuted eamings from foreign
subsidiaries of CHF 8.6 billion. No deferred tax was recorded in respect to those
amounts, as these earnings are considered indefinitely reinvested. It is not practicable to
estimate the amount of unrecognized deferred tax liabilities for these undistributed
foreign eamings.
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The following table sets forth details of the tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of deferred

tax assets and deferred tax liabilities:
December 31, in CHF m

Employment compensation and benefits

Provisions
Deﬁyaﬁves

Other

Gross de?erred tax asset befc;l:;. valu“a_i—i;:;lrligv_\rance_

Less vafuation alowance

Gross defer}eq tax assets net of valyraiﬁ:s;;gl'igwar-@gw
Employment compensation and benefts ;
Loans

Investment securities

éﬁginesé combinations

Derbaties

Soﬂware Eép&taliz_aﬁon _

Leasing

Realesle

é;m_deferr;djtaxhabﬂmes e A e e

Net deferred tax assets

The foliowing table sets forth the amounts and expiration dates of net operating loss (MOL) carry-forwards:

December 31, 2005, o CHF m Total

Due to expire within 1 year o6
Due fo éipire within 2~ § years ' 300
Bue to expire within 6 - 10 years 943
Due to expire through to 2005 . - B 6,218
Amount due to expire ' . - i “Eg;i_
Amount not due to expire 1,581

Total net operating loss carry-forwards 8,408

Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable
income over the periods in which the temporary differences are deductible and tax loss
carry-forwards are reasonable, management believes it is more likely than not that the
Bank will reafize the benefits of these deductible differences and tax loss carmy-
forwards, net of existing valuation allowances as of December 31, 2005. The amount
of the deferred tax asset considered realizable, however, could be reduced if estimates
of future taxable income during the cany-forward period are reduced.

The valuation allowance was CHF 1,067 million as of January 1, 2003, decreased by
CHF 44 million in 2003 and increased by CHF 107 million in 2004, and amounted to
CHF 1,124 milion as of December 31, 2004. During 2005, the valuation allowance

decreased CHF 233 milion to CHF 891 million as of December 31, 2005.

62 Trodd Soizse Annuni Resorl 2005




Moies to the consolidated finencial slaterments

Significant judgment is required in evaluating certain tax positions. The Bank accrues
for tax contingencies when, despite the belief that its tax retum positions are fully
supportable, certain positions could be challenged and the Bank's positions may not be
probable of being fully sustained, Once established, tax contingency accruals are
adjusted due to changing facts and circumstances, such as case law, progress of tax
audits or when an event occurs requiring a change to the fax contingency accruals.
Management regularly assesses the likelihood of adverse outcomes to determine the
appropriateness of provisions for income taxes. Although the outcome of any dispute is
uncertain, management believes that it has appropriately accrued for any unfavorable
outcome.

23 Employee share-based compensation and other benefits

Share-based compensation

The Bank’s share-based compensation program is an important element of its overall
compensation package for key employees and senior executives and is an integral part
of the Bank's annual compensation process. All share-based equity awards are granted
under the provisions of the Credit Suisse Group Master Share Plan in the form of
shares, share options and/or share units and represent compensation awards, refention
incentive awards, and special awards. The majority of the shared-based equity awards
are typically granted as part of the annual bonus given to employees subsequent to the
fiscal year to which the bonus relates.

Shares granted to employees entitle the holder to receive one Credit Suisse Group
common share subject to continued employment with the Bank, restrictive covenants
and cancellation provisions. Share options granted to employees entitle the holder to
purchase one Credit Suisse Group common share at a stated exercise price subject to
continued employment with the Barik, restrictive covenants and cancellation provisions,
Share options are typically granted with an exercise price at or above the market price
of Credit Suisse Group's shares on the date of grant, cannot be exercised until at least
one year after the grant date and expire after ten years. Shares and share options
granted as compensation awards generally vest on the grant date, whereas shares and
share options granted as retention incentive awards and special awards generally vest
between one and five years.

Total compensation expense for share-based payments recognized during 20085, 2004
and 2003 was CHF 2,118 million, CHF 862 milion and CHF 821 million, respectively.
The increase during 2005 was primarily caused by the recognition of expense for
employees eligible for early retirement, the acceleration of vesting for the management
equity program, the initial recognition of expense for the new share units granted in
January 2005 and the expensing of shares granted as retention incentive awards with
future service periods. Associated tax benefits recorded in the income statement during
2005, 2004 and 2003 were CHF 679 milion, CHE 275 miillion and CHF 196 million,
respectively. In addition, the Bank realized excess tax benefits related to the settlernent
of share awards and the exercise of share options as a reduction of its current tax
payable in the amount of CHF 46 million and CHF 143 milion in 2005 and 2004,
respectively. As of December 31, 2005, the total estimated unrecognized
compensation cost of CHF 1,162 million related to non-vested share-based equity
awards will be recognized over the remaining weighted-average requisite service period
of 1.7 years.

The Bank generally repurchases its own shares on the open market to satisfy these
obligations but also has the possibility of issuing new shares out of available conditional
capital. The Bank expects to repurchase approximately 20 million shares during 2006
to satisfy part of these obligations.
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Share oplions

The following table presents the share option activities during the periods indicated:

2005 2004 2003
Weighted- Weighted-
average average
Number of exercise  Number of exercise
oplions prce in options price in
inm CHF inm CHF
O@Qdinq at ._I_anu?_r_gj 65.4 52.19 1314 54}:28
Granted 03 4629 01 4775
Exercised e a0 084 (08 2549
Setflements 0.0 74.00 0.0 57.75
Foreted an 578 (25 5364
Exchanged. net 00 000 - 628) 5685
Expired 0.0 0.00 0.0 Q.00
Quistanding at December 31 60.6 54.23 65.4 8219
Exercisable at December 31 408 61.08 3.0 56.46

The weighted-average fair value of options granted during 2005, 2004 and 2003 was
CHF 9.5, CHF 14.62 and CHF 15.67, respectively. As of December 31, 2005, the
aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding was CHF 765 million, and the
weighted-average remaining contractual term was 5.4 years. As of December 31,
2005, the aggregate intrinsic value of options exercisable was CHF 678 million, and
the weighted-average remaining contractual term was 5.4 years. As of the exercise
date, the total intrinsic value of options exercised during 2005, 2004 and 2003 was
CHF 139 million, CHF 95 mitlion and CHF 13 million, respectively. Cash received from
option exercises during 2008, 2004 and 2003 was CHF 193 milion, CHF 82 million
and CHF 21 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2005, there were 2.3 million fully vested and exercisable options
outstanding containing a cash settlement feature, These options had a weighted-
average exercise price of CHF 66.08 and a weighted-average remaining contractual
term of 3.7 years. During 2005 there were no exercises, forfeitures or settlements.

On September 9, 2003, Credit Suisse Group completed its option reduction program,
which entitled employees o exchange on a value-for-value basis certain existing share
options for new share options and shares. The exercise price of the new share options
was 10% above the market price of the Credit Suisse Group's shares on the valuation
date. These share options were restricted for one year following the exchange and
expire seven years after the exchange. The new shares were granted at the market
price of the Credit Suisse Group’s shares on the valuation date and were restricted for
one year following the exchange. In accordance with SFAS 123, the Bank did not
recognize any compensation expense as a result of this exchange.

The following fable provides a summary of the exchange resulting from the option reduction program:

Weighled- Weighted-

average avelage Total

Number of exerse fair fair

aplions/shares price value value

inm in CHF in CHF CHFm

Exchanged options (654) 5659 1433 (9373
New options - _2.5 50_.5_5 14.73 _ 3_9.0
New shares 8e o B B3
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Share units

The following table presents the share unit activities for the period indicated:

2005

Outstanding at January 1
Granted

Fodfeited

Outstanding at December 31

In January 2005, the Bank granted share units fo a part of its workforce. These share
units entitle the holder to receive Credit Suisse Group common shares at the end of a
five-year vesting period based on the achievement of performance and market criferia
and subject to continued employment with the Bank, restrictive covenants and
cancellation provisions. Each share unit granted may be converted into a range of
between 0 and 3 final share units depending on the outcome of certain performance
and sewvice conditions during the five-year vesting period. In addition, each vested final
share unit may be converted into between O and 3 shares at the settlement date based
on the Credit Suisse Group's share price and the Credit Suisse Group's share price
performance compared to a select group of peers over the five-year vesting period.

The remaining weighted-average contractual term of the share units granted during
2005 was four years and none of the share units were convertible as of December 31,
2005. Total compensation expense for these share units was determined based on the
grant-date fair value muttiplied by management’s estimate of the total number of share
units for which the requisite service is expected to be rendered. The grant-date fair
value was determined based on the projected outcome of the market conditions on the
date of grant and will not be remeasured in subsequent periods regardless of the
outcome of those market conditions unless the award is modified. Management's
estimate of the total number of share units for which the requisite service period is
expected to be rendered is contingent upon the projected outcome of the underlying
service and performance conditions and is updated on a periodic basis.

For employees who do not become eligible for retirement during the scheduled vesting
period, the performance condition is considered in determining the total number of units
for which the requisite service period is expected fo be rendered and is updated art a
periodic basis. Based on the estimated outcome of the performance condition as of
Decernber 31, 2005, it is expected that each initial share unit will convert into 2.98
final share units at the end of the vesting period. For employees who do not become
eligible for retirement during the schedtled vesting period, the weighted average grant-
date fair value was CHF 51.70 per share unit,

For employees who are eligible for retirement at the date of grant or become eligible
during the scheduled vesting period, the performance conditiont and therefore the
estimate of the total number of share units expected to vest was considered in
determining the fair value of the respective awards at grant date. This fair value is not
subsequently updated or remeasured to refiect changes in the expected or actual
outcome of the performance condition, and compensation expense is recognized if the
required service has been rendered regardiess of the actual outcome of the
performance condition. For employees who are eligible for retirernent at grant date or
during the scheduled vesting period, the grant date fair value for each share unit was
CHF 83.75.

Fair value assumptions for share-based paymenis

In estimating the fair value for shared-based equity awards where an observable
independent quoted market price is not available, the Bank uses valuation techniques
and/or option-pricing models that most accurately reflect the substantive characteristics
of the instrument being valued. The underlying assumptions used in the models are
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determined based on management's assessment of the current market and historical
information available at the date of grant that marketplace participarts would likely use
in determining an exchange price for the instruments.

The following table iliustrates the significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of awards of share options and share
units:

December 31 2003
Expecied volatily, in % " 43.11
Expected dividend yield, in % * i 014
Exbeged ﬁsk-freé intE(ést rate, ir % ' 182

Ex

" Due to current and changing market conditions, the Group refined ist methodology in 2005 for estimating the expected volatility and expected dividend yield fo include
management’s assessment of bow future implied market yields impact the overall expected.

The expected volatility and dividend yield are based on the implied market volatility and
dividend yield of traded options on the Credit Suisse Group’s stock, the historicat
volatifity and dividend yield of the Group’s steck and other refevant factors that indicate
how the future is expected fo differ from the past. The expected risk-free interest rate
is based on the curent LIBOR rate at the date of grant which corresponds with the
expected term of the award. The LIBOR rates are used as a proxy for the risk-free
interest rates because zero-coupon govemiment issues do not exist in Switzerland. The
expected term represents the period of time that the awards are expected 1o be
outstanding and is based on the contractua! term of each instrument, taking into
account employees’ historical exercise and termination behavior.

Shares
The following table presents the share award activities during the periods indicated:
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Nurnber of average Number of average Tolal number average
Compensation grant-dale Retenlion grani-date of share grant-date
awards, fair value awards, fair value awards, fair value
inm in CHF inm in CHF nm in CHF
Outstanding at December 81,2002~ =~~~ 242 6271 501 7267 543 6828
Granied ” | . ..81 BB 45y gy 3952
Settled - @4 5700  (122) 7490 67.19
Eoﬁerted 7 W e s e e 75768 E
Qutstanding at December 31, 2003 206 6201 602  46.92 50.77
Granted 11 47.40 347 4707 47.08
Seed .. .. .. @8 6266  (7n 5238 masa
Forfeited 02 5190 (56 4595 46.20
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 129 6052 622 4472 47.44
of which vested 129 - 82 - -
e . - B - - . ! LB i
Forfeéfted

Outstanding at December 31,2005/
(_)f whzch vestgd _ _ ) ) ) ) 18 - . . s
of which unvested - - 2.9 - 429 -

¥ Includes 19.5 million shares granted in the opticn reduction program and 18.9 million special equity retention awards.

Other benefits

In prior years, certain employees received a part of their compensation in the form of a
financiaf instrument linked to Credit Suisse First Boston's long-term performance. Each
unit entitles the holder ta a patential future cash payment linked to Credit Suisse First
Boston's operating retum on average allocated capital, taking into account Credit
Suisse Group's cost of capital. Units have a three-year vesting period and contraciual
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term and are subject o forfeiture provisions. The number of units received by each
individual was based upon a fixed monetary amount approved by the Compensation
Committee on the date of grant.

In 2002 and 2001, employees were granted 377,600 units under this program. No
additional units were subsequently granted. During 2005, 274,887 units were setlled
for a fina) value of USD 370 million. As of December 31, 2005, 39,134 units had
been forfeited. The remaining 63,470 units will be settled during the first quarter of
2006 for a final value of USD 94 million.

24 Related parties

Credit Suisse Group owns all of the Bank’s outstanding voting common stock. The
Bank is involved in significant financing and other transactions and has significant
refated party balances with subsidiaries and affiliates of Credit Suisse Group outside of
the Bank. The Bank generally enters into these transactions in the ordinary course of
business and believes that these transactions are generally on market terms that could
be obtained from unrelated third parties.

The following table sets forth the Bank's related party assets and liabilities:
December 31, in CHF m

Assets

Cash and due from banks

Interest- beanng deposits with banks )
Central bank funds sold, securities purchased under resgle agreements and SECUI‘TtlES borrcmnng transachons -
ts

Tradlng :

Loans
Other assefs
Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits.

Tradlng Ilabllrhes
Short- term borrowmgs '
Long-term debt
Other fiabilities o
Total liabilities

The following iable sets forth the Bank’s related party revenues and expenses:

Year ended December 31, in CHF m 2004 2003

Interest a.nd dmdend income 37 ] 25‘
Interest expense B @28 3
Net interest income {191) (58)
Commissions ard fees 20 4
Other revenues 335 358
Total noninterest revenues 355 362
Net revenues 164 304

@45)  (404)
(445, (404)

Other expenses
Total operating expenses
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The following teble sets forth the Bank's related parly guarantees:

December 31, in CHF m

Credit guarantees and similar instruments

Pertormance guarantees and similar in_strqnﬁ_e_nts '_ o

Dervalives
Other guarantees

Total December 31

Loans fo members of the Board of Directors:

December 31, in CHF m

Balance January 1
Additions
Reductions

Balance December 31

" The number of individuals with outsianding loans &t the beginning of the year and al the end of the year was 9.

Loans to members of the Executive Boara:

Decerber 31, in CHF m

Balance Jarwary 1
Additions
Reductions

Balance December 31

" The number of individuals with outstanding loans at the beginning of the year and at the end of the year was 26 and 6, respectively.
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A large majority of loans outstanding to members of the Board of Directors and the
Executive Board are morigages or loans against securities. Such loans are made on the
same terms available to third-party customers or pursuant to widely available employee
benefit plans.

All mortgage: loans to members of the Executive Board are granted either with variable
interest rates or with fixed interest rates over a certain perod. Typically, fixed morgages
are grarited for perods of up to five years, in some cases up to ten years. Interest rates
applied are based on refinancing costs plus a margin, and interest rates and other
terms are consistent with those applicable to other employees. Loans against securties
are granted at interest rates and on terms applicable to such loans granted to other
employees. Interest rates applied are based on refinancing costs plus a margin. When
granting a loan to these individuals, the same credit approval and risk assessment
procedures apply as for loans to other employees.

Members of the Board of Directors are not granted employee conditions on any loans
extended to them, but such loans are subject to conditions applied to customers with a
comparable credit standing. ln addition to loans extended directly to members of the
Board of Directers, the Bark has entered into financing and other banking agreements
with companies in which current members of the Board of Directors have a significant
influence. As of December 31, 2005, the total exposure to such related parties
amounted to CHF 7 million, including all advances and contingent liabilities and are in
the ordinary course of business and granted at arm's length. The highest exposure to
such related parties for any of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2005 did not exceed in aggregate CHF 76 million,

The Bark is a giobal financial services provider and, in particular, has major corporate
banking operations in Swilzerland. The Bank, therefore, typically has relationships with
many large companies including those in which members of the Board of Directors
assume management functions or board member responsibilities. None of the
members of the Board of Directors or companies affiliated with them have important
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business relationships with the Bank. A relationships with the directars and their
affiliated companies are in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's-length
basis.

In addition, one of the Bank's subsidiaries has agreed to invest USD 100 million in an
investrent fund managed by a registered investment advisor owned and contralled by
two close family members of a member of the Executive Board. The terms of the
investment, including the fund's structure and fee amangements, were negotiated on an
arm’s-length basis with the investment advisor.

Other information

Liabililies due to pension funds

Liabitties due ta the Bank’s own pension funds as of December 31, 2005 and 2004
of CHF 680 million and CHF 404 million, respectively, are reflected in various liability
accounts in the Bank's consolidated balance sheets.

25  Pension and other post-retirement benefits

The Bank has a multiemployer defined benefit pension plan, single employer defined
benefit pension plans, defined contribution pension plans and other post-retirement
defined benefit plans. The Bank’s principal plans are located in Switzerand, the United
States, the United Kingdom and Germany. The measurement date for the Bank's
multiemployer defined benefit pension plan, single employer defined benefit pension
plans and other post-refirement defined benefit plans is September 30.

Multiemployer pension plan

The Bank covers pension requirement for its employees in Switzerland through the
participation in a defined benefit pension plan sponsored by Credit Suisse Group.
Various legal entities within Credit Suisse Group participate in the plan, and the plan is
set up as an independent trust domiciled in Zurich. Credit Suisse Group accounts for
the plan as a single-employer defined benefit pension plan and uses the projected unit
credit actuarial method to determine the net periodic pension expense, projected benefit
obligation (PBO), accumulated benefit obligation (ABO), and the related amounts
recognized in the balance sheet. Credit Suisse Group is also required to recognize a
minimum pension liability in AOC to the extent that the ABO exceeds the fair value of
plan assets and unrecognized prior service cost. The Bank accounts for the defined
benefit pension plan sponsored by Credit Suisse Group as a muftiemployer pension plan
because other legal eniities within Credit Suisse Group also participate in the plan and
the assets contributed by the Bank are not segregated info a separate account or
restricted to provide benefits only to empioyees of the Bank. The assets contributed by
the Bank are commingled with the assets contributed by the other legal entittes and
can be used to provide benefits o any employee of any participating legal entity. The
Bank’s contributions to the multiemployer plan comprise approximately $0% of the total
assets contributed fo the plan by =l participating legal entities on an annual basis.

The Bank accounts for the multiemployer plan on a defined contribution basis whereby
it only recognizes the amounts required to be contributed to the plan during the period
as net pesiodic pension expense and only recognizes a liability for any contributions due
and unpaid. No other expense or balance sheet amounts related to this plan are
recognized by the Bank. The Banlk's contributions are determined using a
predetermined formula based on each employee's salary level and age and
approximates 167% of each emplayee’s contribution, During 2005 and 2004, the
Bank contributed and recognized as expense approximately CHF 260 million and CHF
245 miliion, respectively. If the Bank had accounted for the multiemployer plan as a
single-employer defined benefit plan, the net periodic pension expense recognized by
the Bank during 2005 and 2004 would have been lower by CHF 175 million and CHF
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195 million, respectively. The Bank expects to contribute CHF 255 million to the
multiemployer plan during 2006. The Bank did not recognize any amortization of
unrecognized actuarial losses for the muttiemployer pension plan during 2006 and
2004.

As of the measurement date, the PBO of the multiemployer plan was CHF 11.3 billion.
The PBO includes an amount related to future salary increases of CHF 1,150 mition,
and on the basis of the ABO, which is defined as the PBO less the amount related to
future salary increases, the over-funded status of the plan amaounted to CHF 78 million.
If the Bank had accounted for the multiemployer plan as a defined benefit plan, the
Bank would have had a minimum pension liability of CHF O million and CHF 463 million
recognized in ACCH, net of tax, as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The calcutation of the expense and liability associated with the defined benefit pension
plan requires an extensive use of assumptions, which include the expected long-term
rate of retum on plan assets and discount rate as determined by the Bank. As of the
measurement date, if the Bank had accounted for the multiemployer plan as a defined
benefit plan, the expected long-term rate of refum on plan assets would have been
5.0%, and the discount rate used in the measurement of the benefit obligation and net
periodic pension cost would have been 3.0%. At the measurement date, the assets for
the multiemployer pension plan were allocated 16.0% 1o equities, 42.9% to debt
securiies, 17.4% o real estate, 16.5% to liquidity and 7.2% fo alternative
investments. The target asset allocation of the plan assets for the multiemployer plan is
20% to equities, 40% to debt securities, 20% to real estate, 15% to liquidity and 5%
1o altemative investments.

International pension plans

Various pension plans caver the Bank's employees outside of Switzerland, including
both single-employer defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans. Retirement
berefits under the plans depend on age, contributions and satary. The Bark's funding
policy with respect to these plans is consistent with local government and tax
requirements. The assumptions used are derived based on local economic conditions.
These plans provide defined benefits in the event of retirement, death, disability or
employment temnination.

Other post-retirement defined benefit plans
In the United States and Canada, the Bank sponsors other post-retirement defined
benefit plans that provide health and welfare benefits for certain retired employees.
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International single-employer defined benefit pension plans
and other post-retirement defined benefit plans

The following table sets forth details of net periodic cost for the international single-employer defined benefil pension plans and
other posi-reirement defined benefit plans:

Intemational single-employer Cilher post-retirement
defined benefit pension plans delined benefil plans

Year ended December 31, in CHF m 2004 2003
on berefit cbligation 1 1
: onibeneﬁ*i OVIVJ“QaﬁDH o 4 Y1
Exbected return on plan assets o -
P
Unrecognized transition obligation/(asset} - -
Prior sevice cost B - _
Unrecogni‘éédﬂ gains/(bsse;é) - )
Net periodic pension costs 5 8
Settlement (gains)/losses o o
Curtailment (gajns)/losses - -
Tolal pension costs 5 8
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The following table shows the changes in the PBO and the fair value of plan assets during 2006 and 2004, and the amounts
included in the Bank’s consofidated balance sheet for the infernational single-employer defined benefit pension plans and other

post-retirement defined benefit plans as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively:

in CHF m

Intemational
single-employer
defined benefit Other post-relrement
pension plans defined berefit plans

Projected benefi obligatio - beginning of the measurement period
Benefit obligatjbn of plans added in current Vyea'r” -
Plan participant contributions . o
Service cost )

Interest cost

Plan amendments

Seftlements

Curtaiments

Benefit payments S

&chmge rate (gams)/[osses

Projected benefit obligation - end of the measurement period

Fair value of plan assets beglnnlng of themeasurementpenod B
Assets of countries added in curré;tiye’ar ' o
Aa,“?'.'e“.’m onpbnassels )

Employer contrbutions

Plan participant contributions
Benefit paymen'tisr IV

: éhz}nge rate (gams)/bsses .

Fair value of plan assets — end of the measurement period

Total amount recognized
Funded status of the plan
Unrecogrized -
Net Fansition obligéﬁén}‘(asset)
Prior sefvnce cost h T
Net actuarial (gains)/losses
Foudh quarter.femployéénc.untribdt.ic-}&g

Net amount recognized December 31

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of
Prepaid benefit costs o
Accrued benefit libilty

Intangible assel

Accumulated ather comprei'-mens'rve income

Net amount recognized December 31

Accumulated benefit obligation - end of the measurement period

In 2006, the Bank expects to contribute CHF 35 million to the intemational single-
employer defined benefit pension plans and CHF 7 million to other post-retirement
defined benefit plans. At September 30, 2005 and 2004, there were no matedial
amounts of debt and equity securities included in plan assets for the international
singfe-employer defined benefit pension plans and cther post-retirement defined benefit

plans.
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As of the measurement date, the PBO, ABO and fair value of plan assets for the intemational single-emplayer defined benefit
pension plan with PBO in excess of plan assets and with an ABO in excess of plan assets were as follows:

PBO exceeds fair ABO exceeds lair
value of plan assels value of plan assels
Septernber 30, in CHF m S0 2008 2004 |5iiz00s! 2004
Projected benefit obligation 1,379 1,354
Accumulated benefit obligation 1253 1,240
Fair value of plan assets 903 Y
The amounts recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive income due fo the
change in the additional minimum pension liability were a decrease of CHF 220 milkon
in 2006 and of CHE 2 million in 2004, net of tax.
Assumptions

The weighted-average assumptions used in the measurement of the benefit obligation and net periedic pension cost for the
international single-employer defined benefit pension plans as of the measuerment date were as follows:

September 30, in % 2004
Benefit obligations

Discount rate . - B b6
Salary increases - O B ) 4.1
Net periodic pension cost

Discount rate 57
Satary increases 40
Exbé&ed longAtehﬁ' rate of retum on plan assets 75

As of September 30, 2005 and 2004, an annual weighted average discount rate of
6.0% was assumed in measuring the other post-retirement defined benefit obligation.
For 2005 and 2004 an average discount rate of 5.5% and 6.0%, respectively, was
assumed in measuring the other post-retirement defined benefit costs.

In determining other post-retirement defined benefits cost for 2005 and 2004, an
annual weighted-average rate of increase of 8.0% in the cost of covered health care
benefits was assumed. The rate is assumed to decrease gradually to 4.8% by 2011
and remain at that level thereafter. A 1% increase or decrease in the health care cost
trend rate assumption would not have had a material impact on the accumulated post-
retirement defined benefit obligation or expense.

Plan assets and investment strategy
The following table sets forth the weighted average asset allocation for the Bank's international single-employer defined benefit
pension plans as of the measurement date:

Septerber 30, in % 2004
Equity securiies e 529
e 1 208
Real estate 13
PG, @ﬁvesiﬁ%ems P, 08
I.risu'rérrjég_ T a6
Liquicty 15
Total 100.0

The Bank’s intemational single-employer defined benefit pension plans employ a total
retum investment approach, whereby a diversified mix of equities, fixed income
investments and alternative investments are used to maximize the long-term return of
plan assets while incurring a prudent level of risk. The intent of this strategy is to
outperform plan liabilities over the long term in order to minimize plan expenses. Risk

Cregi Suisse Annust Report 20056 73




Motes fo the consolidated fnancial shelernents

tolerance is established through careful consideration of plan liabilities, plan funded
status and corporate financial condition. Furthermore, equity investments are diversified
across Swiss and non-Swiss stocks as well as between growth, value, and small and
large capitalization stocks. Other assets, such as real estate, private equity and hedge
funds, are used to enhance long-term retums while improving portfolio diversification.
Derivatives may be used to take market exposure but are not used to leverage the
portfolio beyond the market value of the underlying investments. Investment risk is
measured and monitored on an ongoeing basis through annual liability measurements,
periodic asset/liability studies and quarterly investment portfolio reviews. To limit
investment risk, the Bank's intemational single-emplayer defined benefit pension plans
follow defined strategic asset allocation guidelines. Depending on the market
conditions, these guidelines are even more fimited on a short-term basis.

The weighted-average target asset aliocation of the Bank's international single-employer defined pension plan assets as of the

measurement date was:
Seplember 30, in %

Equiy securiies
Debtsecurtes o
Real estate

Aﬁémaﬁ(f—g-i‘nvesiﬁiénts o
s

Liquid‘rlyﬂ

Total

Estimated future benefit payments for defined benefit pension

and other post-retirement defined benefit plans

The fallowing table presents benefit payments for international single-employer defined benefit pension plans and other post-
retirement benefit plans expected 1o be paid, which include the effect of expected future service for the years indicated:

International  Other post-

single-employer retirenent

defined benefit defined
in CHF m pensicn plans  benetit plans
2006 55 7
2008 61 9
2009 64 10
2010 ....... ................................................................ 69 ........ 10 .
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Defined contribution pension plans

The Bank also contributes to various defined contribution pension plans primartly in the
US and the UK but also in other countries throughout the world. The contribution to
these plans during 2005 and 2004 were CHF 237 rmilion and CHF 111 milion,
respectively.
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96  Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are generally either privately negotiated over-the-counter (OTC) contracts or
standard contracts transacted through regulated exchanges. The Bank’s most
frequently used freestanding derivative products, entered into for trading and risk
management purposes, include interest rate, cross-cumency and credit default swaps,
interest rate and foreign currency options, foreign exchange forward contracts, and
foreign currency and interest rate futures.

Further, the Bank enters into contracts that are not considered derivatives in their
entirety but include embedded derivative features. Such transactions primarily include
issued and purchased structured debt instruments whese the retum may be calculated
by reference to an equity security, index, or third-party credit nisk, or that have non-
standard interest or foreign cumency terms.

On the date the derivative contract is entered into, the Bank designates the derivative
as belonging to one of the following categories:

(i) Trading activities;

(i) A risk management transaction that does not qualify as a hedge under accounting
standards (referred fo as an economic hedge);

(i) A hedge of the fair value of a recognized asset or liability;

{iv) A hedge of the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a
recognized asset or liability or a forecasted transaction; or

(v) A hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation.

Trading activities

The Bank is active in most of the principal trading markets and transacts in many
popular trading and hedging products. As noted abave, this includes the use of swaps,
futures, options and structured products (custom transactions using combinations of
derivatives) in connection with its sales and trading activities. Trading activities include
market-making, positioning and arbitrage activities. The majority of the Bank's
derivatives held as of December 31, 2005, were used for trading activities.

Economic hedges

The Bank uses interest rate derivatives to manage its net interest rate risk on certain of
its core banking business assets and liabilities. However, these economic hedge
relationships, while used to manage risk, do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment
under US GAAP.

The Bank also uses credit derivatives to manage the credit risk on certain of its loan
portfolios. These derivatives also do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment under
US GAAF.

Hedge accounting

Fair valus hedges

The Bank designates fair value hedges as part of an overall interest rate risk
management strategy that incorporates the use of derivative instruments o minimize
fluctuations in earnings that are caused by interest rate volafiity.

In addition to hedging changes in fair value due to interest rate risk associated with
fixed-rate loans, repos and long-term debt instruments, the Bank uses:

- Cross-cummency swaps to convert foreign cumency denominated fixed rate assets or
liabilities to floating rate functional currency assets or labilities; and

—  Foreign currency forward confracts to hedge the foreign currency risk associated
with available-for-sale securities.
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Cash flow hedges

The Bank uses cash flow hedging strategies to mitigate its risk to variability of cash
flows on loans, deposits and other dett obligations by using interest rate swaps to
convert variable rate assets or fiabilities to fixed rates. The Bank also uses cross-
currency swaps to convert foreign currency denominated fixed and floating rate assets
or liabilities to fixed rate CHF assets or ¥abilities. Further, the Bank uses derivatives to
hedge the cash flows associated with forecasted transactions.

The maximum length of time over which the Bank hedges its exposure to the variability
in future cash flows for forecasted transactions, excluding those forecasted transactions
refated to the payment of variable interest on existing financial instruments, is 16
morths,

Net investtnent hedges

The Bank typically uses forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge selected net
investments in foreign operations. The objective of these hedging transactions is to
protect against adverse movements in foreign exchange rates.

Hedge effectiveness assessment

The Bank assesses the effectiveness of hedging relationships both prospectively and
retrospectively. The prospective assessment is made both at the inception of a hedging
refationship and on an ongoing basis and requires the Bank to justify its expectation
that the relationship will be highly effective over future pericds. The retrospective
assessment is also performed on an ongoing basis and requires the Bank to determine
whether or not the hedging relationship has actually been effective. If the Bank
concludes, through a retrospective evaluation, that hedge accounting is appropriate for
the current periad, then i measures the amount of hedge ineffectiveness o be
recognized in eamings.

The following table sets forth details of fair value, cash flow and net investment hedges:

December 31, in CHF m 2004 2003
Fair value hedges

Net gain/(loss) of the ineffective porticn _ 13 39
Cash flow hedges

Net gain/(loss) of the ineffective portion o i - 0 0
Expected reclassification from AOCI into eamings during the next twelve months 1 0
Net investment hedges

N_e_{ gain/(loss) on hedges included in ACC {a78) (113 Q
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The following tables set forth details of trading and hedging derivative instruments:
Trading Hedging

Positive Negative Pasitve Negatve
Notional  replacement  teplacement Notional  replacement  replagement
Cecember 31, 2005, in CHF bn amouni value vahe amount value value

Forwards and forward rate agreements i 2.0967 o 17 1.8 0.4 04 00
Swaps R e 170.1 164.6 gt 26 12
waps e T a1 e “e6 00 on
ptons b e ~ eore a6 6o oo os oo
Options bought and sokd ftraded) B AL R S 00 00 00
Inferest rate products ) ) 185747 1936 1909  100.1 21 13

Fowards . ... _ B .. 125 121 49 0o 02

Opticns bought and soid (OTC)

e e e “gos Cae  1es 14 o1 00
Cptions bought and sold (OTC) - o 4704 51 59 00 0c 00
SRR S e R Bt S
S e i e e o1 o O8O
Foreign exchange products 2,125.7 366 376 63 0.1 02
Forwards _ 86 1.1 13 0.0 0.0 00
o e s 20l
Options bought and sold (OTC) o o a2 o7 o1 00 oo o0
Futwres S ' - o1 o0 00 000G 00
e i i ™ s s R o ™ oo
Precious metals producis - L 149 1.3 1.5 0.0 0.0 0.0
Forwards o - 146 49 64 0.0 0.0 00
G S et i a3 e 73
Options bought and seld ©©OTC) T amsa 220 206 00 00 00
SR g O1%) | e U o oo o oy o
Opions bought and sold (traded) - ¢ 1> SR U S ' co oo oo
gquﬂylinq§x-relatgq produqs 1,067.1 30.3 3.3 0.0 0.0 0.0

Credit derivatives o 1,292 117 12.9 15 00 00

Forwards _ _ __ 7 52 0.l 63 oo 00 00
Swaps R et 03 02 00 00 00
Sptons boughtand s O1C) T T as o1 02 00 00 00
opions o d©TC) , . C s o o o - g o
Options bought and scld (traded) 50 - SN o Yo IR ) 00 00 00
Other products 181 05 0.7 o0 00 0.0
Total derivative instruments 23,039.7 274.0 274.9 107.9 22 1.5

The notional amount for derivative instruments (frading and hedging) was CHF 23,147.6 bilion and CHF 16,355.4 billion as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

2004

Posilive Negalive
replace- replace-
ment value  ment value

249.0
59.1

December 31, in CHF br
Replacement values {irading and hedging) before netting

Replacement values (frading and hedging) afler netting
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27  Guarantees and o

Guarantees

ommiimeants

The following tables set forth details of contingent lfabilities associated with guarantees:

December 31, 2005, in CHE m

Credit guarantees and snrmlar instruments

Performance guarantees and sumﬂar nnslruments

Securities lending m_d_emn!ﬂcat:ons
Denvafrves
Other guarantees 2

Total guarantees

35,070

Maturity Maturty Maturity Matyrity

less than between between greater  Total grass Total net Carrfing Collatesal
December 31, 2004, in CHF m lTyear 1io3years 3toSyears than 5 yews amount amount " value received
Credrt guarantees and 5|m|ﬁar instruments 2 638 1 ,31@_ _ 3292 2,689 _ Q 835 8 316 %2 - 3, 754
Performance guaramees and simiar instruments 3,274 1393 763 781 6211 5519 112 3M5
Derivatives 45, a7 68466 96084 42424 242, prrs 242,491 0215 T
Other guarantees 7 1950 043 165 116 2474 2474 0 1,047

Tolal guaraniees

78,117 61,418 100,304 45,910 285749 283,538 2,339 33,440

" Total net amound relates to gross amount less any participations.  * Contingent consideration in business combination, residual value guarantees and other

indemnifications.

Tre following tables set forth details of collateralized guarantees:

December 31, 2004, in CHF m
Cther Without Total

Credit guarantees and similas instruments

Perormance guarantees and similar |nsfruments

Securmes lendlng mdemmf:cabons ]

Derwatrves _
Other guarantees

3,248 4582 8316
2 852 2,074 5 519

24,808 0 24808
18 24023 24001
1,159 1 227 2,474

Total collateralized guarantees

32,253 250,098 283538
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Credit guarantees are coniracts that require the Bank to make payments should a
third party fail to do so under a specified existing credit obligation. For example, in
connection with its corporate fending business and other corporate activities, the Bank
provides guarantees to counterparties in the form of standby letters of credit, which
represent obligations to make payments to third parties if the counterparties fail to fulfil
their obligations under a borrowing anangement or other contractual obligation.

As part of the Bank's cornmercial morigage activities in the US, the Bank sells certain
commercial and residential mortgages that it has originated or purchased to the Federal
National Mortgage Association (FNMA) and agrees to bear 2 percentage of the losses
should the borrowers fail to perform. The Bank also issues guarantees that require it to
reimburse FNMA for losses on certain whole bans underlying mortgage-backed
securities issued by FNMA.

The Bank also provides guarantees to VIES and other counterparties under which it may
be required to buy assets from such entities upon the occurrence of certain triggering
events.

Performance guarantees and similar instruments are arrangements that require
contingent payments to be made when certain performance-related targets or
covenants are not met. Such covenants may inchude a customer's obligation o deliver
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cestain products and services or to perform under a construction contract.
Performance-related guarantees are frequently executed as part of project finance
transactions.

Under certain circumstances, the Bank has provided investors in private equity funds
spansored by a Bank entity guarantees of potential obligations of certain general
partners to retum amounts previcusly paid as carried interest to those general pariners.
To manage its exposure, the Bank generally withholds a portion of carried interest
distributions to cover any repayment obiigations. In addition, pursuant to certain
contractual arrangements, the Bank is obligated to make cash payments to certain
investors in certain private equity funds if specified performance thresholds are not met.

Further, as part of the Bank's residential morigage securitization activities in the US, the
Bank may guarantee the collection by the servicer and remittance to the securitization
trust of prepayment penalties.

Securities lending indemnifications are amangements in which the Bank agrees to
indemnify securities lending customers against losses incurred in the event that security
barrowers do not return securities subject to the lending agreement and the collateral
held is insufficient to cover the market value of the securities borrowed.

Derivatives disclosed as guarantees are issued in the ordinary course of business,
generally in the form of written put options and credit default swaps. Derivative
contracts that may be cash settled, and which the Bank has no basis for concluding
that it is probable that the counterparties held the underlying instruments at the
inception of the contracts are not considered guarantees under FIN 45, For derivative
contracts executed with counterparties which generally act as financial intermediaries,
such as investrnent banks, hedge funds and security dealers, the Bank has concluded
that there is no basis o assume that these counterparties hold the undertying
instruments related to the derivative confracts and, therefore, does not report such
contracts as guarantees.

The Bank manages its exposure 10 these derivatives by engaging in various hedging
strategies to reduce its exposure. For some contracts, such as written interest rate caps
or foreign exchange options, the maximum payout is not determinable as interest rates
or exchange rates could theoretically rise without limit. For these contracts, notional
amounts are disclosed in the table above in order to provide an indication of the
underlying exposure. In addition, the Bank carries all derivatives at fair value in the
consolidated balance sheets.

Other guarantees include acceptances, tesidual value guarantees and all other
guarantees that are not allocated to one of the captions above.

Disposal-related contingencies and other indemnifications

The Bank has certain guarantees for which its maximurm contingent fiability cannot be
quantified. These guarantees are not reflected in the table above and are discussed
below.

Disposal-related contingencies

In connection with the sale of assets or businesses, the Bank sometimes provides the
acquirer with certain indemnification provisions. These indemnification provisions vary by
counterparty in scope and duration and depend upon the type of assets or businesses
sold. These indemnification provisions generally shift the potential risk of certain
urquantifiable and unknowable loss contingencies (e.g., relating to litigation, tax, and
intellectual property matters) from the acquirer to the sefler. The Bank closely monitors
all such contractual agreements to ensure that indemnification provisions are adequately
provided for in the Bank’s consolidated financial statements.
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Lease commitments

Other indemnifications

The Bank provides indemnifications to certain counterparties in connection with its
normal operating activities, for which it is not possible to estimate the maximum amount
it could be obligated to pay. As a normal part of issuing its own securities, the Bank
typically agrees to reimburse holders for additionat tax withholding charges or
assessments resuling from changes in applicable tax faws or the interpretation of those
laws, Securities that include these agreements to pay additional amounts generally also
include: a related redemption or call provision ¥ the obligation to pay the additional
amounts results from a change In law or its interpretation and the obligation cannct be
avoided by the issuer taking reasonable steps to avoid the payment of additional
amounts. Since such potential obligations are dependent on future changes in tax laws,
the related liabilities the Bank may incur as a result of such changes cannot be
reasonably estimated. In light of the related call provisions typically included, the Bankk
does not expect any potential liabilities in respect of tax gross-ups to be material.

The Bank is a member of numerous securities exchanges and clearing houses, and
may, as a result of its membership arrangements, be required to perform if another
member defaufts. The Bank has determined that it is not possible to estimate the
maximum armount of these obligations and believes that any potential requirement to
make payments under these arrangements is remote,

The following table sets forth details of future minimum cperating lease commitments under non-cancelable operating leases:

Year ended December 31, i CHF m

2006
2007
2009

T_hf,feafter

Future operating lease commitments

Less minimum non-cancelable sublease rentals

Total net future minimum lease commitments

The following lable sets forth details of rental expenses of alf operating leases:

Year ended Cecember 31, in CHF m 2004 2003
Minimum rentals 693 861
S bronse et iﬁéérﬁe R ('1'49) - (50}
Totaf net rental expenses 544 611

Other commitments

The foliowirg tables set forth details of other commitments:

Cecember 31, 2005, in CHF m

DMy o
o greater: - Tatal gross

Irevocable commitments under

documentary credits

Loan .commi‘tmems

Forward revé}s_e reburg:_hasé'agreemgpts o
Other ' '

rs' than5years: - dmiount

0. 5284

132,18 . . 14,050 192,297
15472 0 LD, 15,472
- 603 1243 2862

Total other commitments

153,470 : 17,595 29,557 ' 15,293 215,915
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Maturity Maturity Maturity Maturity

less than between between greater  Told gross Total net Collateral
December 31, 2004, in CHF m lyear tio3years 3toS5years thanbyears amounl amount ¥ recened
Irevocable commitments under
documentary credts . 4% 5 8 0 434 4010 LT
Loan commitments e 1os301 16,165 16356 6850 145081 145681 83,188
Forward reverse repurchase agreements 15268 58 0 0 _153% 15326 1503
Other 985 2N 215 9g7 2,478 2,478 438
Total other commitments 126,845 16,519 16,599 7.846 167,809 167,495 100,523

 Total net amount relates 1o gross amount less any participations.

The following tables set forth details of collateralized other commitments:
December 31, 2005, b

December 31, 2004, in CHF m

Other Without Total
Irevocable commitments under
documentary credits 1569 2,439 4,01 0
Loan comemitments - 80469 62493 145881
Forward reye;ée réi:ﬁ.rchaée agre . 15,326 ) 0 15,396
i sttt sndali - ) s 2040 2,478

Total collateralized other commitments 2,721 97.802 66,972 167,495

Irrevocable commitments under documentary credits include exposures from
trade finance related to commercial letters of credit under which the Bank guarantees
payments to exporters against presentation of shipping and other documents.

Loan commitments indude unused credit facilities that cannat be revoked at any time
without prior notice. Commitments to originate and purchase loans which qualify as
derivatives are not included in the Guarantees and commitments disclosure. Such
commitments are reflected as derivatives in the consolidated balance sheets.

Forward reverse repurchase agreements represent transactions in which the initial
cash exchange of the reverse repurchase transactions takes place on specified future
dates.

Other commitments include private equity commitments, firm commitments in
underwiiting securities, commitments arising from deferred payment letters of credit and
from acceptances in circulation and liabifities for calls on shares and other equity
instruments.

28  Securitization activity

The Bank originates and purchases cormerciat and residential morigages for the
purpose of securitization. The Bank sells these mortgage loans to qualified special
purpose entities (QSPESs) or other variable interest entities (VIEs), which are not
consolidated by the Bank. These QSPEs issue securities that are backed by the assets
transferred to the QSPEs and pay a retum based on the returns on those assets.
Investors in these mortgage-backed securities typically have recourse to the assets in
the OSPEs, The investors and the QSPEs have no recourse to the Bank's assets. The
Bank is an underwriter of, and makes a market in, these securities.

The Bank purchases loans and other debt obligations from dlients for the purpose of
securitization. The loans and other debt obligations are sold by the Bank directly, or
indirectly through affiliates, to QSPEs or other VIEs that issue collateralized debt
obligations (CDOs). The Bank structures, underwiites and makes a market in these
CDOs. CDOs are securities backed by the assets transferred to the CDO VIEs and pay
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a retum based on the retumns on those assets. Investors typically have recourse to the
assets in the CDO VIEs, The investors and the COO VIEs have no recourse to the
Bank's assets.

The following table summarizes proceeds received from securitization trusts and pre-tax gains/(losses) recognized by the Bank
on securitization:

Year ended December 31, in CHF m
Commercial morigage

2004 2003

F_’[c__x:eeds from securitizations 13,396 10,045
G e e 383
Residential mortgage loans S T
Proceeds from securitizations 53,795 91,027
Gains/(osses) on securitzations "7 T2 (2

Collateralized debt obligations (CDO)

_Ff(c_»cef_t__i__s_from securitizations 13.917
Gains on securitizations » o B4
Other asset-backed securities ® T
Proceeds from securitizations 9,775 7,047
Gains on securifizations © -

" Includes underwriting revenues, deferred origination fees, gains or losses on ihe sale of collateral to the QSPE or VIE and gains or losses on the sale of the newly issued
securities to third parties, but excludes net inferest revenues on assets pricr 1 securitization. The gains or losses on the sale of the collaleral is the difference between the fair
value on the day prior to securitization pricing date and the sale price of the loans. ™ The net revenues eamed while helding the residential mortgage loans prior to the
securitization significantly exceeded the amount of the losses from securitization.  ® Primarily home equity loans.

The Bank may retain interests in these securitized assets in connection with its
underwriting and market-raking activities. The Bank's exposure in its securitization
activities is generally limited to its retained interests. Retained interests in securitized
financial assets are included at fair value in Trading assets in the consolidated balance
sheet, Any changes in the fair value of these retained interests are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income. The fair values of retained interests are determined
using fair value estimation techniques, such as the present value of estimated future
cash flows that incomorate assumptions that market padicipants customarily use in
these valuation techniques. The Bank does not retain material servicing responsibilities
from its securitization transactions.

Gains and losses on securitization transactions depend in part on the canying values of
mortgages and CDOs involved in the transfer, and are allocated between the
mortgages and CDOs sold and any retained interests according to the relative fair
values at the date of sale.

Key economic assumptions used in measuring, at the date of securitization, the fair value of retained interests resulting from
securitizations completed during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, were as follows:

2004
Com- Olber

mercial  Residential asset-

morlgage mortgage backed

December 31, in CHF m loans " loans CDOs ?  securilies
Weighted-average life (in years) ] 40 36 16.7 22
Prepayment speed assumption {in rate per annum), in % ¥ n/a 11.2-30.0 n/a 25.0-30.0

73 28395 48160 11.1-150

Cash flow discount eate (in rate per annum), in % * Jm mereds SO
| 02193 01369 02-163 04-116

Expected credit losses (in rate per annum), in %
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The followirg table sets forth the fair value of retained interests from securitizations as of December 31, 2005, key economic
assumptions used to determine the fair value and the sensitivity of the fair value to immediate adverse changes in those

assumptions:
Com- Clher
mercial Residential assel-
morlgage morlgage backed
in CHF m, excepl where indicated loans " loans COOs ?  secunties
Canrying amount/fair value of retained interests 266 6,342 135 160
Weighted average life (in years) ) C 43 42 33 7.4
Prepayment speed assumption, in % % " o/a 0.2-84.8 " n/a 11.5-47.0
Impa“c:t. on fair \}élue'ﬁrom 10% adverse change n/a ) (Ql 0) nfa o
lmpact on fair value from 20% adverse change n/a (40.7) . n/a o
Cash flow discount rate, in % * i a2 6.4 13.0 14.0
\mpact on fair value from 10% adverse change @2 (ol (13 (26)
impact on faurva{ue from 90% adverse change ' t5.0) (2023) (3.9 . (53)
Expected credit losses, in % 4.1 21 3.2 9.6

Impact on fair value from 10% adverse charge

Impact on fair value from 20% adverse change

S0y @m0y a3
18 630 (13 28

Y To deter prepayment, commercial mortgage loans typically have prepayment protection in the form of prepayment fockeouts and vield maintenances. ¥ CDOs are generally
structured to be protected from prepayment risk.  * Prepayment speed assumption (PSA) is an industry standard prepayment speed metic used for projecting prepayments
aver the Sife of a residential morigage loan. PSA ulitizes the Constant Prepayment Rate (CPR) assumptions. A 100% prepayment assumption assumes a prepayment rate of
0.2% per annum of the outstanding principal balance of morlgage loans in the first month. This increases by (.2% thereafter during the term of the mortgage loar, leveling
off to a CPR of 6% per annum beginning in the thirlieth menth and each month thereafter during the term of the morigage loan. 100 PSA equals 6 CPR. * The rate is
based on the weighted-average yietd on the retained interest.

These sensitivities are hypothetical and do not reflect the benefits of hedging activities.
Changes in fair value based on a 10% or 20% variation in assumptions generally
cannot be extrapolated because the refationship of the change in assumption to the
change in fair value may not be linear. Also, the effect of a variation in a particular
assumption on the fair value of the retained interests is caleulated without changing any
other assumption. In practice, changes in one assumption may result in changes in
other assumptions (for example, increases in market interest rates may result in lower
prepayments and increased credit losses), which might magnify or counteract the
sensitivities.
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2% Varable nterest entiies

FIN 46R “Consoiidation of Variable Interest Entities — An Interpretation of ARB No. 51,"
requires the Bank to consolidate all variable interest entities (VIEs} for which it is the
primary beneficiary, defined as the entity that will absorb a majonity of expected losses,
receive a majority of the expected residual retums, or both. In December 2003, the
FASB issued a revision to the original pronouncement, FIN 46, in order to address
various implementation issues that had ansen and to provide companies with the option
of deferring the adoption of FIN 46R for certain VIEs to periods ending after March 15,
2004. For turther details on the adoption ot FIN 46, refer to note 2. In accordance with
FIN 48R, prior period balances have not been restated.

As a normal part of its business, the Bank engages in transactions with entities that are
considered VIEs. These transactions include seffing or purchasing assets, acting as a
counterparty in dervatives transactions and providing liquidity, credit or other support.
Transactions with VIEs are generally executed to facilitate securitization aciivities or to
meet specific client needs, such as providing liquidity or investment opportunities. As a
part of these activities, the Bank may retain interests in VIEs. Substantially all of the
consalidated assets of the VIEs are collatera! for related consclidated liabilities. In
general, investors in consolidated VIEs do not have recourse to the Bank in the event of
a default, except where a guarantee was provided to the investors or where the Bank is
the counterparty to a derivative transaction involving VIEs.

As of December 31, 2005, the Bank consolidated afl VIEs for which it is the primary
bereficiary under FiN 46R. For the years ended Decermnber 31, 2005 and 2004, the
Bank recorded net revenues of CHF 2,074 million and CHF 1,088 milion, respectively,
and total operating expenses of CHF 32 milion and CHF 18 million, respectively, as a
result of the consolidation of VIEs under FIN 46R. Net income was unaffected as
offsetting minority interests were recorded in the conscfidated statements of income.

The following table summarizes the ictal assels, by category, refated 1o VIEs consolidated as a result of the Bank being the
primary beneficiary:

VIEs' lotal assets

December 31,in CHF m
Collateralized debt obligations
Cammercial paper conduits

Financial intermediation
Total assets consolidated pursuant to FIN 46R

The following table summarizes the estimated total assets, by category, refated to non-consolidated VIEs:

Carrying value of
' total assets

Oecember 31, in CHE m 2004
Collateralized debt obligations 16,980
Commercial paper conduits 7 .“‘.‘1.,456.
Financial intermediation 66,477
Total 105,867 86,013

The Bank's involvement with VIEs may be broadly grouped into three primary
categories: collateralized debt obligations (CDOCs}, commercial paper conduits and
financial intermediation.

Coilateralized debt obligations

As part of its structured finance business, the Bank purchases loans and other debt
obligations from and on behalf of clients for the purpose of securitization, The loans and
other debt obligations are sold to QSPEs or VIESs that issue CDOs, VIEs issue CDOs to
fund the purchase of assets such as investment-grade and high-yield corporate debt
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instruments. The Bank engages in CDO transactions to meet client and investor needs,
eam fees and sell financial assets.

In connection with its CDQ activities, the Bank may act as underwriter, placement agent
or asset manager and may warehouse assets prior o the closing of a transaction. The
Bank may also act as a derivatives counterparty to the VIEs and may invest in portions
of the notes or equity issued by the VIEs. The Bank also participates in synthetic CDO
transactions, which use credit default swaps to exchange the underlying credit risk
instead of using cash assets in a separate legal entity. The CDO entities may have
actively managed (open) portfolios or static or unmanaged (closed) portfolios.

The Bank has consolidated all CDO VIEs for which it is the primary beneficiary,
resulting in the inclusion by the Bank of approximately CHF 2.6 billion and CHF 0.7
willion of assets and liabilities of these VIEs as of December 31, 20050 and 2004,
respectively. The beneficial interests issued by these VIEs are payable solely from the
cash flows of the related collateral, and the creditors of these VIEs do not have
recourse to the Bank in the event of default,

The Bank also retains certain debt and equity interests in CDO VIEs that are not
consotidated because the Bank is not the primary beneficiary. The Bank’s exposure in
these CDO transactions typically consists of the interests retained in connection with its
underwriting or market-making activities. The Bank's maximum loss expasure generally
is equal fo the camrying value of these retained interests, which are reported as Jrading
assets and carried at fair value and totaled CHF 1.0 billion and CHF 0.9 bition as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Commercial paper conduits

During 2005, the Bank acted as the administrator and provider of liquidity and credit
enhancement facilities for several cammercial paper conduit vehicles (CP conduits).
These CP conduits purchase assets, primarily receivables, from clients and provide
liquidity through the issuance of commercial paper backed by these assets. The clients
provide credit support to investors of the CP conduits in the form of over-
coliateralization and other asset-specific enhancements as described below. The Bank
does not sell assets to the CP conduits and does not have any ownership interest in
the CP conduits.

The Bark's commitments to CP condutts consist of obligations under fiquidity
agreements and credit enhancement. The liquidity agreements are asset-specific
amangements, which require the Bank to purchase assets from the CP conduits in
certain circumstances, such as if the CP conduits are unable to access the commercial
paper markets. Credit enhancement agreements, which may be asset-specific or
program-wide, require the Bank to purchase certain assets under any condition,
including defautt. In entering into such agreements, the Bank reviews the credit risk
associated with these transactions on the same basis that would apply to other
extensions of credit.

As of December 31, 2005, the Bank’s maximum loss exposure to non-consolidated
CP conduits was CHF 14.2 hillkon, which consisted of CHF 8.5 billion of funded assets
and the CP conduit's commitments to purchase CHF 5.7 hillion of additional assets. As
of December 31, 2004, the Barnk's maximum loss exposure was CHF 9.6 billion.

The Bank believes that the likelihood of incurring a loss equal to this maximum
exposure is remote because the assets held by the CP conduits, after giving effect to
refated asset-spedific credit enhancement primarily provided by the clients, must be
classified as investment grade when acquired by the CP condults.

Financial intermediation
The Bank has significant involvernent with VIEs in its role as a financial intermediary on
behalf of clients. These activities include the use of VIEs to structure various fund-linked
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products to provide clients with investment opportunities in altemative investments. In
addition, the Bank provides financing to client-sponsared VIEs, established to purchase
or lease certain types of assets. For certain products structured fo provide clients with
investment opportunities, a VIE holds underlying investments and issues securities that
provide investors with a retum based on the performance of those investments. The
investors typically retain the risk of loss on such transactions, but the Bank may provide
principal protection on the securities to limit the investors’ exposure to downside risk.

As a financial intermediary, the Bank may administer or sponsor the VIE, transfer assets
to the VIE, provide collateralized financing, act as a derivatives counterparty, advise on
the transaction, act as inwestment advisor or investment manager, act as underwriter or
placement agent or provide credit enhancement, liquidity or other support to the VIE.
The Bank aiso owns securities issued by the VIEs structured to provide clients with
investment opportunities, for market-making purposes and as investments, The Bank's
maxiraurm loss exposure 1o non-consolidated VIES related to financial intermediation
activities was CHF 12.6 billon and CHF 22.3 billion, as of Decermber 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively, which represents the notional amount of any guarantees and the
fair value of all other interests held. Further, the Bank considers the likelihood of
incuring a loss equal to the maximum expasure to be remote because of the Bank's
risk mitigation efforts, including hedging strategies, and the risk of foss, which is
retained by investors.

3C Concentrations of credit risk

Credit risk concentrations arise and exist when any particular exposure type becomes
material relative to the size and capital of the Bank. The Bank monitors exposures by
counterparties, country, industry, product and business segments 1o ensure that such
concentrations are identified. Possible material exposures of any counterparty or
countesparties are regulerty identfied as part of regulatory reporting of ‘arge exposures.
The approval of country and regional lirnits aims to avoid any undue country risk
concentration. From an industry exposure point of view, the combined credit exposure
of the Bank is diversified. Within the Bank, large portions of exposure are from
individual clients, particularly in residential morlgages in Switzedand or relate to
transactions with financial institutions, In both cases, the customer base is extensive
and the number and variety of transactions are broad. For transactions with financial
institutions, the business is also geographically diverse with operations focused in the
Armericas, Europe and, to a lesser extent, Asia-Pacific.

86 [iedd Sulsse Annuwnd Repor? 2005




Hotes to tre consolidated Hnancial slatements

31 Fajr value of financial instruments

The disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of
Financial Instruments” (SFAS 107), encompass the disclosure of the fair values of
financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate those values, whether or not
they are recognized in the consolidated financial stalements. SFAS 107 excludes all
non-financial instruments such as lease transactions, real estate, premises and
equipment, equity method investments and pension and benefit obligations.

Quoted market prices, when available, are used as the measure of fair value, In cases
where quoted market prices are not available, Tair values are determined using present
value estimates or other valuation techniques, for example, the present value of
estimated expected future cash flows using discount rates commensurate with the risks
involved, option-pricing models, matrix pricing, option-adjusted spread models and
fundamental analysis, Fair value estimation techniques normally incorporate
assumptions that market participants would use in their estimates of values, future
revenues, and future expenses, including assumptions about interest rates, default,
prepayment and volatiity. Since assumptions are inherently subjective in nature,
estimated fair values cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent market
quotes and, in many cases, estimated fair values would not necessarily be realized in
immediate sales or settlement of the instruments.

For cash and other liquid assets and money market papers maturing within three
months, fair values are assumed to approximate book values, given the short-term
nature of these instruments. For those items with a stated maturity exceeding three
months, fair values are calculated using a discounted cash flow analysis.

For non-impaired loans where quoted market prices are available, fair values are based
on such prices. For variable rate loans which re-price within three months, book values
are used as reasonable estimates of fair values. For cther non-impaired loans, fair
values are estimated by discounting contractual cash flows using market interest rates
for loans with similar characteristics. For impaired loans, book values, net of valuation
adjustments, are approximate 1o fair values.

The securities and precious metals trading portfolio is carried on the consolidated
balance sheet at fair value,

Fair values of derivative instruments used for hedging, financial investmenits from the
banking business and non-consolidated participations are based on quoted market
prices. Where these are not available, fair values are based on the quoted market
prices of comparable instruments, or are estimated by discounting estimated future
cash flows or by using other valuation techniques.

For deposit instruments with no stated maturity and those with original maturities of less
than three months, book values are assumed to approximate fair values due to the
shori-term nature of these liabilities. For deposit instruments with a stated maturity
exceeding three months, fair values are calcufated using a discounted cash flow
analysis.

For medium-term notes, bonds and mortgage-backed bonds, fair values are estimated
using quoted market prices or by discounting the remaining contractual cash flows
using a rate at which the Bank could issue debt with a simitar remaining maturity as of
the balance sheet date.

Credit Sulsse Annual Report 2005 87




I

Hotes o the consolidated finencial slatements

The following tables sets forth the carrying value and the estimated fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments recognized in

the consolidated baiance sheet:

2004
December 31, in CHF m Book value Fair value
Financial assets
Central bark funds sold, securities purchased under resale agreements
ang securities bormrowing transactions 267,156 267,157
Securities receied as colateral B ) 20033 20,083
Tiading assets 331,005 331,005
Investment securies 13427 13430
Loans o - 149,195 151,239
Other financia) assets * o ’ - 98 651 ) 98 669
Financial liabilities i
Deposits _ _ _ o ] 287,341 292,012
Centraf bark funds purchased, securities sokd under repurchase agreements S
and secunties lending transactions e 239,787 239,632
Obhgabon to retum securmes recenied as colla raJ o ' 20 033 20,033
Trading kabilfies ] B 149935 149,936
Short tem borowings ) 15850 15,646
Long-term debt N 94,721 98, 493
Other firancial fiabilies” 61507 61527

" Includes cash and due from banks, interest-bearing deposds with banks, brokerage receivables, loans held-for-sale, non-marketable equity securities, interest and fee
receivables and cash collateral on derivative instruments for which the carrying value s a reasonable estimate of fair value.  “ Includes brokerage payables, interest and fee

payables, provisions and cash collateral on derivative instruments for which the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of the fair value.

32  Assets pledged or assigned

The following tables sets forth details of assets pledged or assigned:
December 31, in CHF m

Book value of assets pledged and assigned as coflaterat ]
of which assets provided with the right to sell or repledge B - ]

Fair value of collateral received wrﬂ'l the nght fo Seil ar repledge .

_of whlch sold or repledged )

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Bank had received collateral in connection
with resale agreements, securities barrowings and loans, derivative transactions and
margined broker loans. As of these dates, a substantial portion of the collateral received
by the Bank had been sold o repledged in connection with repurchase agreements,
securities sold, not yet purchased, securities borrowings and loans, pledges to clearing
organizations, segregation requirements under securities faws and regulations, derivative

fransactions and bank loans.

The following tables shows other information:

2“’5‘ :

December 31, in CHF m ,' 2004
Cash restricted under foreign banking regulations _ 13000 11,569
Swiss National Bank Liquidity 1 required cash eseves . ) 21,438 1,848
Cash restricted under Swiss and foreign banking regulations 14,528 13,407
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32 Capital adeguacy

The Bank, an a consolidated basis, is subject to risk-based capital and leverage
guidelines under Swiss Federal Banking Commission (Eidgendssische
Bankenkommission, or EBK) and Bank for Intemational Settlements (BIS) guidelines.
These guidelines are used fo evaluate risk-based capital adequacy. Since January 1,
9004, the Bank has based its capital adequacy caleulations on US GAAR, as permitted
by EBK newsletter 32 (dated December 18, 2003). The EBK has advised the Bank
that it may continue to include as Tier 1 capital CHF 6.5 billion of equity from VIEs
(referred to as non-cumulative perpetual preferred securities) that have been
deconsolidated under FIN 46R.

According to EBK and BIS capital requirements, total capital is comprised of two
categories. Tier 1 capital comprises primarily paid-in share capital, reserves {defined to
include retained earnings), audited current year profits or losses, less anticipated
dividends, capital participations of minority shareholders in certain fully consalidated
subsidiaries, and the equity from VIEs as described above. Among other items, this is
adjusted by anticipated dividends, the Bank 's haldings of Credit Suisse Group shares
outside the trading book and goodwill. Tier 1 capital is supplemented for capital
adequacy purposes by Tier 2 capital, which consists primarily of perpetual and dated
subordinated debt instruments. The sum of these two capital tiers, tess non-
consolidated participations in the industries of banking and finance, equats total
available capital. Under both EBK and BIS guidelines, a bank must have a ratio of total
eligible capital to aggregate risk-weighted assets of at least 8%, of which the Tier 1
capital element must be at least 4%.

The ratios measure capital adequacy by comparing eligible capital with risk-weighted
assets positions, which include balance sheet assets, net positions in securities not held
in the trading portfolio, off-balance sheet transactions converted into credit equivalents
and market positions in the trading portfolio.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Bank was adequately capitalized under the
regulatery provisions outlined under both EBK and BIS guidelines.

Credit Suisse Annual Repori 2005 89




3

Hotes to the consolidated Hnengist siaterments

The following table sets forth details of BIS data (risk-weighted assets, capital and rafios).

December 31, in CHF m, except where indicated 2004
Risk-weighted positions ; 170,112
Market sisk equivalents 2499 9,769

Total risk-weighted assets

213403 170,801

Reconciliafion to shareholder's equnty

Total shareholdersequity oo

Non-curmulative perpetual preferred secudies
Adjustments for goodwill, minority interest, disabowed unrealized gains
_on fair value easorement, ewn shares and dividend accruals o

Tier 1 capital

Tier 2 capial
Upper Tier 2
Lower Tier 2

Tier 2 capital

Less: Deductions

Total capital

Tier 1 capital

of which non-cumulative perpetual preferred securiies

Total capital ratio

1

0 Tredit Suisse Anrual Report 2005

Broker-dealer operations

Certain Bank broker-desler subsidiaries are also subject to ¢apital adequacy
requirements. As of December 31, 2005, the Bank and #s subsidiaries complied with
all applicable regulatory capitat adequacy requirements.

Dividend restrictions

Certain of the Bank’s subsidiaries are subject to legal restrictions governing the amount
of dividends they can pay {for example, pursuant to corporate law as defined by the
Swiss Code of Obligations). At December 3%, 2005, the Bank was not subject to
restrictions on its ability to pay dividends.

34 Liigaton and other contingencies

In accordance with SFAS Na. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies,” the Bank recorded in
2005 a CHF 960 milion (USD 750 million) charge before tax (CHF 624 miliion after
tax} in Institutional Securities, to increase the reserve for private litigation involving
Enron, certain IPO allocation practices, research analyst independence and other
related fitigation. The charge was in addition to the resesve for these private litigation
matters of CHF 702 miilion (USD 450 million) before tax originally established in 2002
and brings the total reserve for these private litigation matters to CHF 1.4 billion (USD
1.1 bilion) as of December 31, 2005, after deductions for setilements that have since
taken place.

It is inherently difficult to predict the outcome of many of these matters. In presenting
the consolidated financial statements, management makes estimates regarding the
outcome of these matters and records a reserve and takes a charge to income when
fosses with respect to such matters are probable and can be reasonably estimated.
Estimates, by their nature, are based on judgment and currently available information
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and involve a variety of factors, including, but not imited to, the type and nature of the
litigation, claim or proceeding, the progress of the matter, the advice of legat counsel,
the Bank's defenses and its experience in similar cases or proceedings, as well as its
assessment of matters, including settlements, involving other defendants in similar or
related cases or proceedings. Further charges or releases of litigation reserves may be
necessary in the future as developments in such cases or proceedings warrant,

The Bank is also involved in a number of other judicia, regulatory and arbitration
proceedings conceming matters arising in connection with the conduct of its
businesses. These actions have been brought on behalf of various classes of claimants
and, untess otherwise specified, seek damages of matenial and/or indeterminate
amounts. The Bank believes, based on currently available information and advice of
counsel, that the results of such proceedings, in the aggregate, will not have a material
adverse effect on its financial condition but might be material to operating results for
any particular period, depending, in part, upon the operating results for such period.

35  Significant subsidiaries and associates

Effective January 1, 2006, the Bank aligned its organizational strycture fo its new
strategic orientation. As a result of this new structure, which was implemented as of
January 1, 2006, the Bank changed the names of certain of its subsidiaries as follows.
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Significant subsidiaries
As of December 31, 2006

% of equity Capital
capital hekd Cormpany tame Domicile Cureency inm
Credit Suisse Zurich, Switzerland
100 AJP Cayman Lid. _ George Town, Cayman Islands JPY 80258
- " Banco Credit Suisse (Mexrco} SA. (formerty known as ) o
100 Banco Credit Suisse First Boston (Mexico), S.A.) Mexice City, Mexico MXN 7266
" Banco de Investimentos Credit Suisse (Brasul) S.A. (formerly krown as o h -
10 Banco de Investimertos Credit Suisse First Boston S. A) Sao Paub, Brazil BRL 164 8
100 Boston RE Lid. _ Hamiton, Bermuda usb 20
0 Co!umn Canada F|nanc;al Corp ' Toronto Carada UsD 0 0
100 "~ Column Flnancral Inc. Wllmlngton United States usD 00
80  Column Guaranteed LLC Wilmington, Unded States. . usD 332
100 ' - Credﬁ Sulsse Asset Management (Austraﬂa) Lzmﬁed ) Sydn_e_y, Austr_aha AUD ) 03
100  Credit SUISS& Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH - Frankfud Gérmany ' EUR 26
1o Credli Swsse Asset Management (France) sa o Parls France . EUR 31 6
00 Credlt Suisse Asset Management (UK) Ho!drng lerted London “United Klngdom ‘GBP 142
o Credft Sulsse Asset Management Fund Ho lding (Luxembourg) S A, h Luxembourg Luxembourg . CHF Y
e Credl’t Suisse Asset Management Funds Zurich, Switzerland CHF 70
100 Credrt Suisse Asset Maragement Lid Lonuon' United Kinédom GBP oo
100 a _ ' Credut Suisse Asset Management SiM S.pA. Mian, I_faly - _ EUR - 7.0
oo Credit Suisse Asset Management, LLe thmmg’ﬁon Unlted States' ' usD oD
1007 Credd Sursse Asset Maragement fntematronal Holdrng Zurich, Swnzedand CHF 200
00 Credit Swsse Bond Fund Management Company Luxembourg, Luxembourg CHF 03
1 OO ' " Credt Swsse Equity Fund Managernent Company . Luxembourg, Luxembourg . CHF o
1 0 - - Credit Suisse Asset Management Lid. - . Tokyo‘ Japan T ey 00
100 . Credlt Sursse Asset Management Fund Servrce (Lux) SA Luxembourg, Luxembourg. . CHF;: 15
1w Credit Su'rsse Asset Maragement Huldmg Europe (Lux) 5 AI Luxernbourg, Luxembourg CHE 3086
100 Credi Suisse Asset Management Funds S.p.A. Mian, laly EUR 50
T Credit Suisse Investment Bank (Banamas) Lienited {(ormerfy knownes o
100 Credit Smsse First Beston (Bahamas) Lirruted) Nassau, Bahamas usp 16.9
100 Credit Suisse First Boston (Cayman) Limited ' George Town, Cayman Isfands Usp 00
I Credrt Sulsse Secunhes (Europe) Lzmrted (fon'ner!y known as S T e T
100 _ Credit Suisse First Boston (Europe) Limited) Loridon, United Kingdon: usD 273
' Creo‘rt Sursse (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly known as ' ' '

100 Credit Suisse First Boston (Hong Kong) Limited) Hong Kong, China HKD 3977
76 Credit Suisse First Boston {(India) Securities Private Limited " Mumbai, Inda INR 9798
. o Credit Suisse (Intemahonal) Holding AG (formedy knownas o T
100 Credit Suisse First Boston {irtermnational) Holding AG) Zug, Swizerland CHF 375
'100 Credit Suisse First Boston (Latam Holdings) LLC' Georgé Town, Cayman lslands USD 238

Credit Suisse (Singapore} Limited (formerly known as ' '
100 Credit Suisse First Boston (Singapore) Limited) Singapore, Singapore 5SGD 278.4
o T et S (USA)‘ - formers i e Mt Bl b " i
100 as Credit Swsse First Boston (USA), lnc) Wimington, United States usD 0.0
100 Credit Suisse First Boston Australia (Flnance) Limited Sydney, Australia AUD 100
h h Credit Suisse Hoidlngs (Austraha) Limited (forrneriy krownas - o
100 Credit Suisse First Bosten Australia (Holdings) Limited) Sydney, Australia AUD 42.0
. Credit Suisse Equities (Australia) Limited (formerly known as . a
100 ~ Credit Suisse First Boston Australia Equities Limiled) Sydney, Auslralia AUD 13.0
Credit Suisse (Austraha) Limtted {formeny known as . o T
100 Credit Suisse First Boston Austratia Limited) Sydney, Australia AUD 34.1
i-OQ . Cradit 5ur§se First Boston Austrafla Securities Limited Sydnéy, Australia Al D 384
Credit Suisse Securities (Canada), Inc. (formedy known as - o
100 Credit Suisse First Boston Canada Inc.} Torento, Carada CAD 34
. © Credit Suisse Capdal uc (formeriy known as . ) -
100 Credit Suisse First Boston Capital LLC) Wilmington, Uinited States usb 7376
100 Credit Suisse First Boston Equities Limited Lonoo_n, Unlted Kingrjom GBP 15 o
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As of December 31, 2005:

% of equilty
capital held Company name Domicie Currency inm
100 Credit Suisse First Boston Finance (Guemsey) Lld St Peter Port, Guemsey usb 02
100 Credrt Sunsse First Bosion Fmance BV, ] o Amstefdam The Nether‘lands ] B .EUR B 00
o Credit Suisse Financial Corporabon (formedy known as . ) B
100 Credlt Suisse First Boston Flnanaal Corporatlon) Wikmington, United States USD 00
B " Credit Suisse Interational (formedy known as .
80" Credit Suisse First Boston lniemtmD R ~ Londen, United Kingdom _usb 682.3
7777 "7 Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC (fc;Fr;nedy known as o
100 Credlt Suisse First Boston LLC) ~ Wilminggton, United States usb 7777@\,_170.2
T ' Cred Suisse Management uc (forrneny known as '
100 Credit Suisse First Boston Management ue _ Wilmington, Urited States usb 8989
100 " Credit Suisse First Boston Mortgage Capital LLC Wimington, United States USD 3566
100 Credit SwsSe First Boston Private Equtty Inc. ' \f\fll_nj_i_ngtqn, United States [ 00
w Credlt Smsse Fwst ‘Boston Securrtles (Japan)r Limited o HongKong_, (_Ihma 7 - _ T USD ) ?306
T Credit Suisse Holdlngs (USA) Inc. (formerty known as o T
i00= ~ Credit Suisse First Boston, Inc.} Wilmington, United States Ush 1848
100 edit Suisse Leasing 924, LP ' " NewYork, United States Usoc 860
100 . Credut Smsse Money Market Fund Managem nt Company N ) Luxembourg, Luxembourg“ o _ CHF o3
100 ' Credrt Su1sse Port'foho Fund Management Company i - Luxembonrg. Luxembourg o T CHF 03
100 ' Credit Suisse Trust and Banking Co,, 14d. Y oo depen JPY 95250
100 DLJ Caprla[ Corporatlon o T Wiimington, U ed States - ' USD 00
100 DLJ Capital Funding, Inc. " Wimington, Uned States UsD 00
100 ' DL..F Mortgage Capn.al fnc. Wllmlngton Unrted States ' 7' USD B 00
100 Si Holdlng Corporafion h Wilmington, United States T USD " a52
106_ B Merban Eqmty T i Zug“SmtzerIand T CHF 01
100 - ZAO Bank Credlt Suisse First Boston ~ Moscow, Russia T N USD T8
100 " Glenstreet Corporation NV, Curacao, Netherands Anles ~ GBP 200
100 o Clty Bank ' " Zurich, Swrt.zedand CHF 75
96 ' Credn Smsse (Bahamas) Litd. . Nassau Bahamas o USD 120
99 i Credlt Smsse Wealth Managemént Limited - Nassau Bahamas o USD 39 5"
1w Credit Suisse (Deutschland) Aktlengesellschaf't . Frankfurt Gen-nany EUR 800
100 Credit Suisse {France) Paris, France ELR 529
100 Credlt Sutsse (France) Hnlacng SA Paris, France ’ EUR "85
100 ' Credt Suisse (Gibratar) Lid. " Gioraftar, Gbratar GBP 5.0
100 Credrt Sunsse (Guernsey) L|mrled T s, Pe{er Port, Guemsey USD 61
00 ' Credtt Swsse (italy) S.p. A Ml!qn_ lta.ly EUR 67. 6
Credit Suisse (Monaco) SAM.  Monte Carlo, Mor EUR 120
" Credit Suisse (UK) Limited London, Unfied Kingdom &8P 1500
' Credit SUlSse Life & Pensmn-s.AG Vaduz Liechienstein CHF” 15 0
" Credit Suisse Life (Bermuda) Lid. " Hamhon,Bemuda UsD 05
) Cs’edrt Suisse F’nvate Adwsors . Zunch Swﬂzedand o “CHF 1 50
CS Non—Tradmonal Preducts Ltd Nassau, Bahamas usD 0.1
FLCM Holdmg Co “Inc. o Wnlmmg{on Unrted Staies '_ ) ' UsD 237
JOHIM CS Limited ' London, United Kingdom GRP 50.0
Pearf fnvesirnent Management Li‘d o Nassau, Bahamas USDM 01
vass Amencan Corporation o New York Unnted Sfates o USD T ag9

" Remaining 20% directly held by Credit Suisse Group.

*43% of votlng rights held by Credit Suisse Group, Guernsey Branch.
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Notes to the consolidated firpnoial steternents

Significant associates (Value according to the Equity Method)
As of December 31, 2005:

94 Credit Suisse Annual Repor] 2008

" Bark retains significant influence through Board of Directors representation.

# Voting rights 33%.

36 Significant valuation and income recognition differences between US
GAAF and Swiss GAAF {true and fair view}

Equity interest Capital
in% Company name Dernicite Currency inm
7 Absolute Europe AG e e e e 208 SiLZETANG CHF 2368
9" © AbsolteManagersAG " Zug Swizerand ! TCHE 2461
1 Absolute Private Equiy AG Zug, Swizedand CHF 5718
gv Absolute US AG -  Zug, Switetand S cHF 23
127 pliemative Performance Strategies Lde.  George Town, Cayman lslands UsB 5000
17 Asian Diversified Total Return Lde.  GeogeTown, Caymanlsnds  USD 5000
63 Sauber HodingAG  Vaduz liechtensten CHF 950
19 SIS Swiss Financial Services Group AG Zurich, Switerard CHF %0

The Bank's consolidated financia! statements have been prepared in accordance with
US GAAP. For a detalled description of the Bank’s accounting poficies please refer 1o
note 1.

The Swiss Federal Banking Commission requires Swiss-domicited banks which present
their financial statements under either US GAAP or Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (JFRS) to provide a namrative explanation of the major differences between
Swiss GAAP and its primary accounting standard.

The principle provisions of the Banking Ordinance and the Guidelines of the Swiss
Federat Banking Commission governing financial statement reporting (Swiss GAAP)
differ in certain aspects from US GAAP The following are the major differences:

Scope of consolidation

Under US GAAP, the Bank decansolidated certain entities that issue redesmahle
preferred securities as of March 31, 2004 due to the issuance FIN 46R. Under Swiss
GAAP, these entities would continue 1o be consolidated as the Bank holds 100% of
the voting rights.

Under Swiss GAAP, majarity-owned subsidiaries that are not considered long-term
investments or do not operate in the core business of the Bank are either accounted for
as financial investments or as equity method investments. US GAAP has no such
exceplion relating to the consolidation of majority-owned subsidiaries.

Discontinued operations

Under US GAAP, the assets and liabilities of an entity held-for-sale are separated from
the ordinary balance sheet captions into a separate discontinued operations item and
are measured at the lower of the carmying value or fair value less cost to sell. Under
Swiss GAAP, these positions rermain in their initial balance sheet captions until disposed
and are valued according 1o the respective captions,

Real estate held for investment
Under LS GAAP, Real estale held for investment is valued at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairments,




Rotes to the consolidated fnancial staternents

For Swiss GAAP, Real estate held for investment that the Bank intends to hold
permanently is also accounted for at cost less accumulated depreciation. If the Bank
does not, however, intend to hold real estate permanently, real estate is accounted for
at the lower of cost or market (LOCOM).

Investments in securities

Available-for-sale securities

Under US GAAP, available-for-sale securities are valued at fair value. Unrealized holding
gains and losses (including foreign exchange) due to fluctuations in fair value are not
recarded in the consolidated statements of income but reported in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income, which is part of Total shareholder's equity. Declines in fair
value below cost value deemed to be other-than-temporary are recognized as
impairment fosses through the consolidated statements of income. The new cost basis
willnot be changed for subsequent recoveries in fair value.

Under Swiss GAAP, available-for-sale securities are accounted for at LOCOM with
market fluctuations where required recorded in Other revenues. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognized as Trading revenues.

Non-marketable equity securities are valued at cost less other-than-termporary
impairment or at fair value (depending on the status of reporting entity) under US
GAAP, whereas under Swiss GAAP non-marketable equity securities are accounted for
at LOCOM,

Impairments on held-to-maturity securities

Under US GAAP, declines in fair value of held-to-maturity securities below cost value
deemed to be other-than-temporary are recognized as impairment losses through the
consolidated statements of income. The impaimment cannct be reversed in future
periods.

Under Swiss GAAP, impairment losses recognized on held-to-maturity securities should
be reversed up to the amortized cost if the fair value of the instrument subsequently
recovers. The reversal is recorded in the consolidated statements of income.

Trading positions

Under both US GAAP and Swiss GAAP, positions classified as trading assets are
valued at fair value. Under US GAAF, this classification is based on management's
intent for the specific instrument, whereas the prevailing criteria under Swiss GAAP is
ihe active management of the specific instrument.

investments in precious metals

Physical precious metal (e.g., gold) positions held for other-than-trading purposes are
valued at fair value under US GAAP. Under Swiss GAAP, they are accounted for at
LOCOM.

Bifurcation of precious metal loans

Under US GAAP, precious metal loans and deposits are considered hybrid instruments.
As precious metals are considered a commodity, which is not clearly and closely related
to a loan or deposit host, the embedded derivative is bifurcated under US GAAR

Under Swiss GAAP, precious metals loans and deposits are not considered hybrid
instruments. Precious metals are rather considered a currency, not a commodity.

Intangible assets, including goodwill

intzngible assels with indefinite lives

Under US GAAP, intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized but are tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the asset might be impaired.
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Under Swiss GAAR, intangibles assets with indefinite lives are amortized over the useful
life, with a maximum of five years. Additionally these assets are tested for impairment.

Gondwill amortization

Under US GAAF, gocdwill is not amortized but must be tested for impairment on an
annual basis or more frequently if an event occurs or circumstances change that
indicate that goodwill may be impaired.

Under Swiss GAAR, goodwill is amortized over its useful iife, normally not exceeding
five years, except in justified cases {up to 20 years). In additien goodwill is tested for
impairment.

Pensions and post-retirements benefits

Under US GAAPF, the liability and related pension expense is determined based on the
projected unit credit actuarial caloulation of the benefit obligation. Under Swiss GAAP
the fiability and related pension expense is determined based on the required
contributions defined by Swiss law and any additional contribution mandated by the
pension fund trustees.

Reserves for general banking risks

Under Swiss GAAP, reserves for general banking risks are recorded as a separate
component of Total shareholder's equity. US GAAP does not allow general unallocated
DIOVISIONS,
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Report of the Auditors

Report of the Auditors to the General Meeting
of Credit Suisse, Zurich

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Credit Suisse and subsidiaries (*the
Company™), formerly Credit Suisse First Boston and Credit Suisse and their subsidiaries, as of December 31,
2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholder's equity, and cash flows, and
notes thereto, for the year ended December 31, 2005. We have also audited the comparatve combined balance
sheets of the Company, as of 31 December 2004 and the related combined statements of income, changes in
shareholders equity, and cash flows, and notes thereto for each of the years in the two-year period ended 31
December 2004. These consolidated (cormbined for comparative periods presented) financial statements are the
responsibility of management and the Board of Directors. Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these
consalidated (combined for comparative periods presented) financial statements based on our audits. We confim
that we meet the legal requirements conceming professional qualification and independence.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and Swiss Auditing Standasds. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
consideration of intemal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's intemal controt over financial reporting Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit alse
includes examining, on a fest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We befieve that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated {combined for comparative periods presented) financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Credit Suisse and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in
the two-year period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, and comply with Swiss law.

In accordance with Swiss law, we recommend that the consolidated financial staterments submitted to you be
approved,

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated {combined for comparative periods presented) financial statements of
the Company, on 13 May 2005, Credit Suisse First Boston and subsidiaries and Credit Suisse and subsidiaries,
both Swiss Banks, were legally merged, with Credit Suisse First Boston as the surviving legal entity.
Contemporaneously, the name of the suviving legal entity was changed to Credit Suisse, The combined financial
statements of the Company presented for comparative periods have been prepared o represent the combined
results of operations of the former entities. Historically, the Company was not operated as a separate legal entity
and accordingly stand-alone combined financial statements were not prepared. The combined financial
statements for comparative periods presented do not purpart to represent the Company's financial positian as of
31 December 2004 and 2003 and its related results of operations in the two-year period ended 31 December
2004 had the Company been operated as a separate legal eniity.

Additionally, as discussed in Notes 1 and 2 to the consolidated (combined for comparative periods presented)
financial statements, in 2005 Credit Suisse changed its method of accounting for share-based compensation and
in 2004 Credit Suisse changed its method of accounting for certain variable interest entities.

KPMG Kiyrveld Peat Marwick Goerdeler SA

Christos Papadopouios Philipp Rickert
Chartered Accountant Certified Accountant
Auditor in charge

Zurich, Switzedand
March 23, 2006
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Parent company Swiss GAAP financial statements
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Parart company lnancial stalemants

Parent company financial review

The Parent Company Credit Suisse (the Parent Company) recorded a net operating
income of CHF 12,198 milion for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to
CHF 9,570 millian for the year ended December 31, 2004. After deduction of
operating expenses totaling CHF 6,729 million representing an increase of CHF 1,202
million, or 22%, in comparison with the previous year, gross operating profit was CHF
1,406 million, or 35%, higher than in 2004 and amounted to CHF 5,469 million.

Depreciation of non-current assets of CHE 448 million, and valuation adjustments,
provisions and losses of CHF 122 million, resulted in a profit before extraordinary items
and taxes of CHF 4,898 miilion. The Parent Company recorded a net profit of CHF
3,508 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, reflecting an increase of CHF
387 milion, or 12%, compared to the prior year.

Net interest income increased year-on-year by CHF 942 million, or 26%, to CHF
4,505 million. Commission and sevice fee activities increased by CHF 392 million to
CHF 4,966 million. Net trading income increased year-on-year by CHF 422 million, or
49%, to CHF 5,277 milion. The Parent Company reported Net other ordinary income
of CHF 1,450 million representing an increase of CHF 872 millien, or 151%,
compared to the previous year.

Operating expenses were up CHF 1,202 million on the previous year to CHF 6,720
milion. Personnel expenses increased by CHF 835 million, or 24%, o CHF 4,355
miflion. Property, equipment and administrative costs totaled CHF 2,374 million,
representing an increase of CHF 387 million, or 19%, compared to the previous year.

Depreciation of non-current assets amounted to CHF 449 mittion, a decrease of 1%
versus the CHF 505 million of the previous year. Valuation adjustments, provisions and
losses amounted to CHF 122 million compared to a release of CHF 2 million in the
previous year.

Exiraordinary income for the year ended December 31, 2004 included realized gain of
CHF 107 million as a result of a share capital repatriation from a fully written off
subsidiary together with a CHF 70 million release of other reserves.

At the Anmal General Meeting on March 23, 2006, the registered shareholder was
asked to approve the Board of Directors’ propased appropriation of retained eamings,
which included a dividend of CHF 2.5 billion and an allocation of CHF 225 million to
general legal reserves.
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Parert company financial statements

Income statment

Year ended December 31, in CHF m

Reference o notes

Results from interest business

Interest ancf i ount mcome

Interest and Mdend income from radi ing porﬁoho

Inferest and dwidend income from financial mvesh'nents o
lnterest expense

Net interest income

Results from commission and service fee activities
Commission income from lending transactions
Secuu‘oes and mves‘tment commrssmons '

Other commission and fee income

Commission expense

Net commission and service fee activities

Net trading income

Other ordinary income
Income from the disposal of financial investments
inCOme ffom pa.rhqpat,ons ettt e s
Income from real estate

Other ordmary income

(Other ardinary expenses

Nef other ordmary income

Net operatlng income

Operating expenses
Personnel expenses
Property, equipment and admlnlst.'at:ve costs

Total operating expenses

Gross operating profit

Depreciation of ncn- current assets

Valuation adjustrnents provisions and losses _ R

Profit before extraordinary items and taxes ]

Extraordinary income
Extrzordinary expenses

Cumulative effect of change in accounhng pnncnples _
Taxes

Net profit

For comparative purposes prior year numbers are disclosed on a pre-forma basis.

The accompanying notes fo the Parent Company are an integral part of these statements.
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Parert compaty Bnancial staternsnts

Balance sheet before appropriation of retained earnings

Reference

December 31, in CHF m o notes 2004
Assets
Cash and other kquid assets B 1,719
Money ‘market papers 7,689
Due from banks 174 890
Due from customers - 84 994_
Morigages 7 77,060
Securities and precious metals frading porrfoho 24,581
Flnanc;a] invesiments ‘ 24 135
Patidpations 17,316
Tangbl fedassets i 2712
Intangible assets 1,336
Accrued income and prepaid expenses 9,298
Other assets 18,123
Total assets 436,783

of which subordinated assets 685
. of wh;ch assets in 1 respect 6 of parhqpa’uons and qualn‘led shareholders ~ 17;?,18'0"
Liabilities and shareholder’s equity
Liabilites in respect of maney market papers 50,884
Due to banks 17,777
Due to customers savings anrd investment deposnts T 37,60.(.}.
Due o customers, other deposrts 140,093
Nedumtem notes T e e e 595
Bonds and mortgage-backed bonds ) 35,281
Accrued expenses and deferred income s 4,012
Other Jiabilties 18770
Valuation adjustrnents"dnd provisions 5 400
Total liabilities 404,812
Share capital 4,400
General legal reserves - 18 3,495
O’(her reserves e 610
Retamed ea.mlngs carrled forward T ) 5 345
Net profit 3,121
Total shareholder’s equity 31,971
Total liabilities and shareholder's equity 436,783

of which subordlnated liabllities 12,920

of WhICh |Iabl|[UBS in respect of partlupatlons and quakfied shareholders o 39,520

For comparative purposes prior year numbers are disclosed on a pro-forma basis.

' Reflects reclassification of prior year to conform to the current presentation.

The accompanyying notes to the Parent Company are an integral part of these statements.
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3 ¥

Of-balance sheet business

Cecember 31, in €HF m

2004
Contingent liabiliies 53,243
imevocable commitments 63,115
Liabikties for calls on shares and oﬂle;"éz\ﬁity instruments 28
Confirmed credits B 80
Derivative financial instruments ) o
Gross positive replacement values 32,116
Gross negative repfacement values 33518
Contac y:dlu;n_'ne e OO 1 s SR ) ,0’!‘9,65 .
Fiduciary transactions o 19.8&}3_

The company belongs 1o the Swiss value-added tax (VAT) group of Credit Suisse Group, and thus carries joint liability to the Swiss federal tax authority for value-added tax
debts of the entire Group.

Contingent liabilities to other Bank entities include guarantees for obligations,
performance, related guarantees and letters of comfort issued to third parties.
Contingencies with a stated amount are included in the off balance sheet section of the
financial statement. In some instance the parent company's exposure is not defined as
an amount bet relates to specific circumstances as the solvability of subsidiaries or the
performance of a service.

Further as shareholder of Credit Suisse International, an unlimited company
incorporated in England and Wales, the parent company has a joint, several and
unlimited obligation to meet any insufficiency in the assets in the event of liquidation,

The accompanying nctes to the Parent Company are an integral part of these statements.
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Parant company financial statements

Proposed appropriation of retained earnings

Decernber 31, in CHF

2004

Retained earnings
Net annual profit

3,121,371,507

Retained eamnings canied forward 5,344,700,607
Retained eamings available for appropriation 8,466,072,204
Dividend . T 1,872,000,000
Allocations 1o general legal reserves 125,000,000
Balance to be carried forward 6,469,072 204
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Description of business activities

Credit Suisse is a Swiss Bank with total assets of CHF 524 bilion and
shareholder’sequity of CHF 34 billion as of Decermber 31, 2005.

Credit Suisse is a 100% subsidiary of Credit Suisse Group. For a description of iis
business activities refer to the section “Organization and description of business” in this
Annual Report.

Accounting and valuation policies

104 Credit Suiase Arnual Report 23005

Basis for accounting

The Parent Compary's stand alone financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the accounting niles of the Swiss Federal Law on Banks and Savings Banks, the
respective Implementing Ordinance and the Federal Banking Commission Guidelines
(Swiss GAAP statufory).

The Bank's consolidated financial stafements are prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP).
Accounting and valuation principles are described in note 1 to the Bank's consolidated
financial statements.

See also note 36 for major valuation and income recognition differences between US
GAAP and Swiss GAAFP (rue and fair view). Additional differences between US GAAP
and Swiss GAAP statutory are stated below and should be read in conjunction with
note 1 to the Bank's consolidated financial statements:

Foreign currency translations

For US GAAP purposes foreign currency transtation adjustments for available-for-sale
securities are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCH), which is
part of the Shareholder's equity, whereas for Swiss GAAP statutory they are included in
the statements of income.

Share-based compensation

Under US GAAP the Credit Suisse Group share based compensation plans are treated
as equity awards. Under Swiss GAAP statitiory, such plans are treated as liability
awards.

Derivatives used for hedging purposes

Cash flow hedyges

For US GAAP purposes, the effective portion of a cash flow hedge is reported in AOCI,
For Swiss GAAP statutory purposes, the effective portion of a cash flow hedge is
reported in the Compensation account, which is part of Other assets or Other liabiliies.

Fair value hedaes

Under US GAAP the full amount of unrealized losses on derivatives classified as
hedging instruments and the corresponding gains on avaifable-for-sale securities as
hedged ftems are recognized in income. Under Swiss GAAP statutory the amount
representing the portion above historical cost of financial investmenis as hedged item is
recorded in the Compensation account.

Deferred taxes
US GAAP allows the recognition of deferred tax assets on net operating loss cany
forwards. Such recognition is not allowed for Swiss GAAP statutery purposes.

Participations
The Portfolio valuation method is applied to the participation positions.




Parers company Hnancial stelements

Undisclosed reserves

Unlike under US GAAP. Swiss GAAP statutory financial statements may include and be
influenced by undisclosed reserves. Undisclosed reserves anise from economically
unnecessary write-downs on fixed assets and participations or through market-related
price increases, which are not reflected in the Income Statement. Such undisclosed
reserves arise from recording excessive provisions and loan loss reserves. In addition,
such undisclosed reserves arise if provisions and loan reserves, which are na longer
necessary, are not written back to income.

Notes on risk management

For information on the Parent Company’s policy with regard to risk management and
the use of financial derivatives, see notes to the Bark's consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

i Additional information on the parent company income statement

The following table summarizes details of net trading income:
Year ended December 31, in CHF m

2004
Income from frading in interest refated instruments 570
!nCOme/(Ioss)from tradrngmequrty e L L (429)
income from ?oré:ngn exch.él:lge and banknote ‘I]'ad'l.r;g. - 957
Income from precious mefal trading o
Other loss from frading - (365)
Total net trading income o

The following table summarizes valuation adjustments, provisions and losses:

Year ended December 31, in CHF m

Provisions and valuation adjustments for default risks

ﬁré;:s.ions and va]uatlon adjds.i-.menfé for oths.r.bankihg rlisl-{sr N
Otherprowsmns o GE EnRIng TSRS
Losses

Total valuation adjustments, provisions and losses

The following table summarizes extraordinary income and expenses:
Year ended December 31, in CHF m

Extraordinary income and expenses
Gains realized on the disposal of participaticns

Extraordinary income

Losses realzed on the disposal of particpations
Qther extragrdinary expenses

Extraordinary expenses

Total net extraordinary income and expenses

2 Pledged assets ana assets under reservation of ownership

The following table summarizes details of pledged assets under reservation of ownership:

December 31, in CHF m

Assefs pledged and assigned as collzteral
Actual commitments secured
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3 Securities borrowing and securities lending, repurchase and reverse
repurchase agrsements

The following table summarizes details of securities borrowing, securities lending, purchase and reverse purchase a

December 31, in CHF m

Due from banks

Due from customers

Cash collateral due from securities borrowed and reverse repurchase agreements

Due to banks

Due to customers

Cash collateral due 1o securities lent and repurchase agreements

Canying value of securities transferred under securities lending and borrowing and repurchase agreements
" thereof transfers with the right to repledée or resell N .

Fair value of securiies received under securilies kending and borrowing and
reverse repurchase agreements with the right to sell or repledge

11,979

118,129
1

thereof re-sold or re-pledged

4 Liabilities in respect of own pension funds

The following table summarizes details of liabilities in respect of own pension funds:

December 31, in CHF m
Total

5 Valuation adjustments and provisions

The following table summarizes details of valuation adjustments and provisions:

Recaveres,
endangered MNew

Change interst, charges lo  Releases to

Total Spedtic Reclassifi-  consolidated currency income income

Year ended December 31, in CHF m 2004 wiite-downs cations. companies diffierences statement slaternent
Pravisions for deferred taxes 55 1 10 37 (3]
Valuaticn adjustments and provisions for cefault nisks 2,644 {864) 24) 5) 203 456 {488)
Valuation adjustments and provisions for other risks 85 89 0 o 8 51 (10}
Provisions for restructuring 3 @) 0 o} ] 0 0
Other provisions * ¥ 257 22) ,?, 0 33 20 8)
Subtotal 2989 (920 22 6 244 597 (596)
Total valuation adjustments and provisions 3,044 920} 22) (4) 254 834 (604}

Less direct charge-offs against specific assets B (2,644)

Total valuation adjustments and provisions as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet 400

" Provisions are not discounted due 1o shori-term nature,  ® Provisions in respect of litigatien claims were CHF 94 million and CHE 92 million as at December 31, 2005 and
9004,  ® No provisions for defined benefit pension cost.
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8 Composition of share capiial and authorized capital

The following table summarizes details of share capital and authorized capital:

2005

2004

Fotal nermina!
Quanlity value CHF "

Registered shares at CHF 100
Capital on Janyary 1 _
Capital on December 31

43896652 4,309,665,200
43996652  4,399,666,200

Authorized share capital on December 31 0 0
Conditional share capital on December 31 ,,0 o
¥ The dividend efigible capital equals the total nominal value.
7 Major sharehclders and groups of shareholders
The following table summarizes details of major shareholders and groups of shareholders:

2005 004

Total nominaf

Qecember 31, Quantity valge GHE Share %
Registered shares
at CHF 100 with voting rights
Credit Suisse Group 43,996,652  4,399,665,200 100

8 Sharehicloer’s eguity

The following table summarizes details of shareholder's equity:

inCHF m 2004
Shareholder's equity at January 1

Share capitat 4,400
General legal reserves 18,460
Other reserves 7 7 610

Retained eamings

of which carried forward from previous yéar
_of which net annual profi/foss)
Total shareholder's_equity-' as of Ja;;nuary 1

(Other changes

Dividend

Net annual profit

Total shareholder’s equity as of December 31 (before profit allocation) ~ B

S'h;re?a—pial_ e e e e S —

General legéi resemves B .1.8,4.9.5”

Other reserves 610

Retained camings 8,466
of which carried forward from breﬁous yéér - 5345
of which net annual profit 35K 3,121

Total shareholder’s equity as of December 31 (after profit allocation) 33,611 31,871
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9 Assets from and liabilities to affiliated companies and loans to members of the
Parent Company’s governing bodies

The following table summarizes details of assets from and fiabilities to affiiated companies and loans to members of the Parent
Company’s governing bodies:

Cecember 31, in CHF m 2004
Assets from affiliated companies - 4,965
Liabiltes to affikated companies B . T aa79
Loans o members of the Parent Company’s goveming bodies CTm

10 Significant iransactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties (such as securities transactions, payment fransfer
services, borrowings and compensation for deposits) are carried out at arm's length,

11 Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

Credit Suisse First Parent Company and its branches contributed to various defined
contribution plans primarily in Switzerland but also in other countries throughout the
world. The expenses for these plans were CHF 284 million.

Defined Benefit Plans

There are no defined benefit plans reported in Credit Suisse Parent Company. None of
the defined benefit plans according to FER 16 are sponsored by Credit Suisse
brariches. In those instances where a Credit Suisse branche participates in a larger
Credit Suisse Group defined benefit pian, the largest local entity of Credit Suisse Group
sponsors the plan, Accardingly, the particpating non-sponsoring site reports its
expenses as defined contribution.
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12 Fire insurance value of tangible fixed assets

The following table summarizes details of fire insurance value of tangible fixed assets:

December 31, in CHEm 2004
Redlesiate 2895
Other fixed assels. - 26
13 Liabilities for future payments in connection with operating leases
The following table summarizes details of iabiliies for future payments in connection with operating leases:
Decermber 31, n CHF m 2004
Total liabilties for future payments in cannection with operating leases e 878
14 Fiduciary transactions
The following table summarizes details of fiduciary transactions:
December 31, in CHF m 2004
Fiduciary placements with third-party institutions . _ 19,508
Fiduciary placements with affiltated and associaled banks 21
Fiduciary loans and other fiduciary ransactions 54
Total fiduciary transactions B 19,883
15 Number of employees
The following table summarizes details of number of employees:
Decertber 31 | 2004,
Switzerland 16383
Abroad 1,147
Total employees 17,530
16 Foreign exchange rales
The following table summarizes details of foreign exchange rates:

Closing rate Average rate
in OHF 1208 311004 2004 2003
1 N US doﬂa_r _ 1.132Q_ ; 1.24 1.35
i Ewo 15439 154 152
1 British pound sterling 21834 298 2.20
100 Japanese yen 11038 115 1.16
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17 Quisourcing of services

Where the outsourcing of sewvices through agreements with external service providers is
considered significant under the terms of Swiss Federal Banking Commission Circular
09/2 “Outsourcing,” those agreements comply with all regulatory requirements with
respect to business and banking secrecy, data protection and custorner information. At
Credit Suisse outsourcing of services is in compliance with Circular 99/2.
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Rapnit of the Stetutory Auditors

Report of the Statutory Auditors to the General Meeting of

Credit Suisse, Zurich

112 Credit Suisse Annual Report 2003

As statutory auditors of Credit Suisse, we have audited the accounting records and the
financial statements {income statement, batance sheet and notes) for the year ended
December 31, 2005. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of
Directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Tinancial statements
based on our audit. We confirm that we meet the legal requirements conceming
professional qualification and independence.

Qur audit was conducted in accordance with Swiss Auditing Standards, which require
that an audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement. We have examined on a
test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
We have also assessed the accounting principles used, significant estimates made and
the: overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our apinion.

in our opinion, the accounting records and financial statements and the proposed
appropriation of retained eamings comply with Swiss law and Credit Suisse's Articles of
Association.

We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved.

KPMG Kiynveld Peat Marwick Goerdeler SA

Christos Papadopoulos Fhifipp Rickert
Chartered Accountant Certified Accountant
Auditor in charge

Zurich, Switzerland
March 23, 2006
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